NORTHUMBRIAN WATER (iving water WATER (iving water

ESSEX & SUFFOLK WATER WRMP24 **STRATEGIC ENVIRONMENTAL** ASSESSMENT

Scoping Report

Mott MacDonald | January 2022

FOREWORD

Essex & Suffolk Water has commissioned Mott MacDonald to undertake a Strategic Environmental Assessment for our draft Water Resource Management Plan 2024 (WRMP24).

Our WRMP24 sets out how we intend to maintain the balance between supply and demand for water between 2025 and 2080. Our WRMP24 needs to ensure a secure and sustainable supply of water, focus on efficiently delivering the outcomes that our customers want, while reflecting the value that society places on the environment.

The Strategic Environmental Assessment (SEA) of our WRMP24 will meet the requirements of the SEA Directive and the Environmental Assessment of Plans and Programmes Regulations 2004 to assess the effect of our plan on the environment. It will also inform our decision-making process and help us to put forward a best value plan.

This SEA Scoping Report is the first stage of the SEA process and presents information on the context and scope of our SEA.

We have issued this SEA Scoping Report for consultation to the Environment Agency, Natural England, Historic England and made it available via our <u>website</u> to other stakeholder organisations and individuals, for a five-week consultation period from Monday 28 February 2022. Once the consultation period has finished, all consultation responses will be carefully reviewed and tabulated, and considered as far as possible. The SEA assessment will be reported in the Environmental Report, which will include all the other environmental assessments we are undertaking and will be published alongside our Draft WRMP24 later this year.

As part of this consultation on our SEA Scoping Report we would welcome your views on the following key questions:

- Do you have any comments on the baseline information presented or any additional baseline information you think would be useful?
- Do you have any comments on the key issues and opportunities identified?
- Do you have any comments on the proposed SEA objectives and assessment questions/subthemes?
- Do you have any comments on the overall approach and environmental assessment methodology?

Please send your views either via our <u>Online Form</u> or by email to <u>waterresources@nwg.co.uk</u> – the deadline is 5.00pm on Monday 4 April 2022.





Essex & Suffolk Water WRMP24 Strategic Environmental Assessment

Scoping report January 2022

Mott MacDonald East Wing 69-75 Thorpe Road Norwich NR1 1UA United Kingdom

T +44 (0)1603 767530 mottmac.com

Essex & Suffolk Water WRMP24 Strategic Environmental Assessment

Scoping report

January 2022

Issue and Revision Record

Revision	Date	Originator	Checker	Approver	Description
1A	19.11.2021	Jn F	TS	Ja F	Draft for Comment
1B	08.12.2021	Jn F TS	HDS NL	Ja F	Final for Issue
!C	26.01.2022	Jn F	HDS	Ja F	Updated following client comments

Document reference: 100104977-DC-ESW-SEA-001 |

Information class: Standard

This document is issued for the party which commissioned it and for specific purposes connected with the abovecaptioned project only. It should not be relied upon by any other party or used for any other purpose.

We accept no responsibility for the consequences of this document being relied upon by any other party, or being used for any other purpose, or containing any error or omission which is due to an error or omission in data supplied to us by other parties.

This document contains confidential information and proprietary intellectual property. It should not be shown to other parties without consent from us and from the party which commissioned it.

Contents

Exec	cutive	summary	1
	Introd	uction	1
	The S	EA Process	1
	Next S	Steps	3
	Droug	ht Planning	3
1	Intro	duction	4
	1.2	Water Resource Planning Guidelines	5
	1.3	WRMP Environmental Assessment and the Regional Planning Process	5
	1.4	The SEA Process	8
	1.5	SEA Screening	9
	1.6	Purpose of the Scoping Stage and Report	10
	1.7	Limitations of the Scoping Report	11
	1.8	Background and purpose	11
	1.9	Relationship to Water Resources East regional plan	12
	1.10	ESW WRMP24 option types	13
		Potential supply options	13
		Potential demand management options	14
		Catchment management options	14
2	Rela	tionships with other Policies, Plans and Programmes	15
	2.1	Policies, Plans and Programmes Review	15
	2.2	Identification of Key Themes and Messages	15
3	Envii	ronmental Baseline	21
	2.1	Introduction	21
	3.1 2.2	Piediversity Elera and Fauna	21
	5.2		22
	33	Water	22
	0.0	Flood risk	24
	34	Covid-19 Impacts on Water Demand	20
	3.5	Soil	20
	3.6	Δir	27
	37	Climatic Factors	27
	0.7	Greenhouse gas emissions	21
	3.8	Population and Human Health	29
	0.0	Fisser	29
		Suffolk	29
		Eastern England	30
			50

	3.9	Economy	31
	3.10	Regional deprivation	31
	3.11	Historic Environment	32
	3.12	Landscape	33
		Tranquillity	35
	3.13	Material assets	35
		Resource Use and Waste	35
	3.14	Natural Capital	35
		Soils and geology	36
		Freshwater	36
		Farmland	36
		Grasslands	36
		Urban	36
		Woodland	36
		Coastal and marine	37
		Future baseline	37
	3.15	Key issues for the WRE Regional Plan:	37
	3.16	Wider issues:	38
4	Key	Environmental Issues and Opportunities	39
	4.1	Scoping: Issues and Opportunities	39
	4.2	Option Types: Issues and Opportunities	43
5	SEA	Framework	44
5	SEA 5.1	Framework SEA Objectives	44 44
5	<mark>SEA</mark> 5.1 5.2	Framework SEA Objectives Assessment Criteria	44 44 45
5	SEA 5.1 5.2	Framework SEA Objectives Assessment Criteria	44 44 45
5	SEA 5.1 5.2 Prop	Framework SEA Objectives Assessment Criteria osed Approach to the SEA	44 44 45 49
5	SEA 5.1 5.2 Prop 6.1	Framework SEA Objectives Assessment Criteria osed Approach to the SEA Overview of Environmental Assessment Approach	44 44 45 49 49
6	SEA 5.1 5.2 Prop 6.1 6.2	Framework SEA Objectives Assessment Criteria osed Approach to the SEA Overview of Environmental Assessment Approach Options Level Environmental Assessments	44 44 45 49 49 49
6	SEA 5.1 5.2 Prop 6.1 6.2 6.3	Framework SEA Objectives Assessment Criteria Osed Approach to the SEA Overview of Environmental Assessment Approach Options Level Environmental Assessments SEA	44 44 45 49 49 49 49
5	SEA 5.1 5.2 Prop 6.1 6.2 6.3 6.4	Framework SEA Objectives Assessment Criteria osed Approach to the SEA Overview of Environmental Assessment Approach Options Level Environmental Assessments SEA HRA	44 44 45 49 49 49 49 50
6	SEA 5.1 5.2 Prop 6.1 6.2 6.3 6.4 6.5	Framework SEA Objectives Assessment Criteria Osed Approach to the SEA Overview of Environmental Assessment Approach Options Level Environmental Assessments SEA HRA WFD	44 44 45 49 49 49 49 50 50
5	SEA 5.1 5.2 Prop 6.1 6.2 6.3 6.4 6.5 6.6	Framework SEA Objectives Assessment Criteria Osed Approach to the SEA Overview of Environmental Assessment Approach Options Level Environmental Assessments SEA HRA WFD INNS	44 44 45 49 49 49 49 50 50 50
5	SEA 5.1 5.2 Prop 6.1 6.2 6.3 6.4 6.5 6.6 6.7	Framework SEA Objectives Assessment Criteria Osed Approach to the SEA Overview of Environmental Assessment Approach Options Level Environmental Assessments SEA HRA WFD INNS Natural capital assessment	44 44 45 49 49 49 49 49 50 50 50 50
5	SEA 5.1 5.2 Prop 6.1 6.2 6.3 6.4 6.5 6.6 6.7 6.8	Framework SEA Objectives Assessment Criteria osed Approach to the SEA Overview of Environmental Assessment Approach Options Level Environmental Assessments SEA HRA WFD INNS Natural capital assessment Biodiversity Net Gain assessment	44 44 45 49 49 49 49 50 50 50 50 50
6	SEA 5.1 5.2 Prop 6.1 6.2 6.3 6.4 6.5 6.6 6.7 6.8 6.9 0.10	Framework SEA Objectives Assessment Criteria osed Approach to the SEA Overview of Environmental Assessment Approach Options Level Environmental Assessments SEA HRA WFD INNS Natural capital assessment Biodiversity Net Gain assessment Programme level environmental assessments	44 44 45 49 49 49 49 50 50 50 50 51 51 51
6	SEA 5.1 5.2 Prop 6.1 6.2 6.3 6.4 6.5 6.6 6.7 6.8 6.9 6.10 0.11	Framework SEA Objectives Assessment Criteria osed Approach to the SEA Overview of Environmental Assessment Approach Options Level Environmental Assessments SEA HRA WFD INNS Natural capital assessment Biodiversity Net Gain assessment Programme level environmental assessments Effects outside the Essex & Suffolk boundary	44 44 45 49 49 49 49 50 50 50 50 50 51 51 51 52 52
5	SEA 5.1 5.2 Prop 6.1 6.2 6.3 6.4 6.5 6.6 6.7 6.8 6.9 6.10 6.11	Framework SEA Objectives Assessment Criteria osed Approach to the SEA Overview of Environmental Assessment Approach Options Level Environmental Assessments SEA HRA WFD INNS Natural capital assessment Biodiversity Net Gain assessment Programme level environmental assessments Effects outside the Essex & Suffolk boundary Influencing the development of the ESW WRMP24	44 44 45 49 49 49 49 50 50 50 50 50 51 51 51 52 52 52
5 6 7	SEA 5.1 5.2 Prop 6.1 6.2 6.3 6.4 6.5 6.6 6.7 6.8 6.9 6.10 6.11 Cons	Framework SEA Objectives Assessment Criteria osed Approach to the SEA Overview of Environmental Assessment Approach Options Level Environmental Assessments SEA HRA WFD INNS Natural capital assessment Biodiversity Net Gain assessment Programme level environmental assessments Effects outside the Essex & Suffolk boundary Influencing the development of the ESW WRMP24 Sultation and Next Steps	44 44 45 49 49 49 49 50 50 50 50 50 50 51 51 51 52 52 52 52 52
5 6 7	SEA 5.1 5.2 Prop 6.1 6.2 6.3 6.4 6.5 6.6 6.7 6.8 6.9 6.10 6.11 Cons 7.1	Framework SEA Objectives Assessment Criteria osed Approach to the SEA Overview of Environmental Assessment Approach Options Level Environmental Assessments SEA HRA WFD INNS Natural capital assessment Biodiversity Net Gain assessment Programme level environmental assessments Effects outside the Essex & Suffolk boundary Influencing the development of the ESW WRMP24 sultation and Next Steps SEA scoping consultation	44 44 45 49 49 49 49 50 50 50 50 50 50 51 51 51 52 52 52 52 52 52 52

A.	Revi	55	
В.	Base	eline Maps	67
	B.1	Habitat Sites (SPA and SAC)	67
	B.2	Ramsar and SSSI	67
	B.3	National Nature Reserves and Local Nature Reserves	67
	B.4	Main Rivers and Agricultural Land Classification	67
	B.5	Surface Water Catchments	67
	B.6	AONBs	67
	B.7	Heritage Sites	67
C.	SEA	Process Tasks	68
D.	Opti	on Types Issues and Opportunities on types	69
	D.1	Aquifer storage and recovery	69
	D.2	Catchment management	69
	D.3	Desalination	70
	D.4	Distribution capacity expansion	70
	D.5	Drought intervention	71
	D.6	Groundwater sources	71
	D.7	Increase water treatment works (WTW) capacity and efficiency	71
	D.8	Effluent reuse	72
	D.9	Reservoirs	72
	D.10	Redevelopment of existing resources with increased yields	73
	D.11	Tankering	73
	D.12	Transfers	74
	D.13	Trading	74
	D.14	Metering	75
	D.15	Other consumption reduction	75
	D.16	Loss reduction	75
E.	Asse	essment Scoring Criteria	76

Introduction

Water companies have a statutory obligation to produce a Water Resources Management Plan (WRMP), which sets out how a company intends to maintain the balance between supply and demand for water over a minimum 25-year period. In the development of a WRMP, companies must follow the Water Resource Planning Guidelines¹ ('Guidelines'). WRMPs should ensure a secure and sustainable supply of water, focus on efficiently delivering the outcomes that customers want, while reflecting the value that society places on the environment.

The SEA Process

An SEA is required for the Essex & Suffolk Water WRMP 2024 known (hereafter in this document as ESW WRMP24) under the European Union Directive 2001/42/EC, more commonly known as the SEA Directive and the Environmental Assessment of Plans and Programmes Regulations 2004 (the 'SEA Regulations'), retained after withdrawal from the European Union, which requires an assessment of the effects of certain plans and programmes on the environment.

The SEA also works to inform the decision-making process through the identification and assessment of significant and cumulative effects a plan or programme may have on the environment. The SEA process is conducted at a strategic level and enables consultation on the potential effects of a plan with a wide range of stakeholders.

This SEA Scoping Report is the first stage of the SEA process and presents information on the context and scope of the SEA. Specifically, the scoping stage aims to:

- Review relevant international, European, national, and local policies, plans and programmes and their implications for WRMP24.
- Establish the baseline environmental and socio-economic information and key sustainability issues and opportunities for the ESW WRMP24 area.
- Set the context and objectives of the SEA.
- Decide on the scope for the SEA, ensuring that it covers all the likely significant environment effects of the WRMP.
- Provide an opportunity to engage and collaborate with the Consultation Bodies².

The SEA Scoping Report will be issued for consultation to the Environment Agency, Natural England, Historic England, and Ofwat for 5-week consultation period from XXXXX. Once the consultation period has finished, all consultation responses will be carefully reviewed and tabulated, and taken into account as far as possible. Details of how the results of the consultation have been taken into account, alongside the results of the SEA assessment, will be reported in the Environmental Report (to be published alongside ESW Draft WRMP24).

The SEA will be integrated with other environmental assessments, including Habitats Regulations Assessment (HRA), Water Framework Directive (WFD) Assessment, Natural Capital Assessment and Biodiversity Net Gain Assessment. The HRA and WFD assessments will also be included as separate reports appended to the SEA.

EA, NRW, Defra and Ofwat, 2021, "Water resources planning guideline". Available at: <u>https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/water-resources-planning-guideline/water-resources-planning-guideline</u>

² The Consultation Bodies are: Natural England, Historic England, and the Environment Agency.

The ESW WRMP24 SEA and environmental assessments will be undertaken in the context of the regional planning currently being carried out. Essex & Suffolk Water sits within Water Resources East (WRE). The proposed approach to the SEA aligns with the regional methodologies and provides efficiencies through use of information gathered for regional environmental assessments as a basis for further assessment work as part of the ESW WRMP24 development. Links to the relevant regional methodology documents are provided in Section 6 of this Scoping Report.

A key stage in the SEA process is the development of the SEA Framework which includes SEA objectives and indicators. The SEA objectives and indicators will be used during the assessment stage to appraise the WRMP24 options and preferred programme to determine their potential environmental effects. The WRMP24 SEA objectives support the Essex & Suffolk Water outcomes for customers and the environment, the Defra Guiding Principles for water resource planning, and the Defra 'Creating a great place for living: Together we are building a green and healthy future'.

The summary of proposed SEA objectives for the ESW WRMP24 are:

- To protect and enhance biodiversity, ecological functions, capacity and habitat connectivity, including protecting designated sites and their qualifying features, priority species and priority habitats.
- To provide opportunities for habitat creation or restoration and deliver a net benefit / gain for biodiversity (BNG).
- To avoid introducing or spreading and, where feasible, manage invasive non-native species (INNS).
- To protect, conserve and enhance natural capital and the ecosystem services from natural capital to increase resilience to climate change.
- To meet WFD objectives relating to biodiversity.
- To maintain and enhance the health and wellbeing of the local community, including economic and social wellbeing.
- To secure resilient, high quality, sustainable and affordable water supplies over the long term for the health and wellbeing of the community.
- To increase access and connect customers to the natural environment, provide education or information resources for the public.
- To maintain and enhance the water environment for other users including recreation, tourism and navigation.
- To reduce or manage flood risk, taking climate change into account.
- To enhance or maintain the quality of surface and groundwater waterbodies.
- To enhance or maintain surface water flows and quantity and groundwater resources.
- To meet WFD objectives and support the achievement of environmental objectives set out in River Basin Management Plans.
- To increase water efficiency and increase resilience of water supplies and natural systems to droughts.
- To protect geological and geomorphological features, and the functionality and quality of soils, including the protection of high-grade agricultural land.
- To reduce and minimise air emissions during construction and operation.
- To minimise or reduce embodied and operational carbon and greenhouse gas emissions.
- To introduce climate mitigation where required and improve the climate resilience of assets and natural systems to the threats of climate change.

- To conserve, protect and enhance the historic environment and heritage assets, and their settings, including archaeologically important sites.
- To conserve, protect and enhance landscape and townscape character and visual amenity.
- To reduce, and make more efficient, the consumption of resources, and minimise the generation of waste.
- Avoid negative effects on built assets and infrastructure.

Next Steps

The next stage of the SEA process involves assessing the options and preferred plan ('draft WRMP24') using the SEA Framework. The results of the assessment will be recorded in an Environmental Report. The Environmental Report will then be issued for formal public consultation and updated as necessary. Monitoring will be carried out by Essex & Suffolk Water following adoption of the ESW WRMP24.

Drought Planning

If a separate SEA is required for the Essex & Suffolk Drought Plan 2022 then the relevant aspects of this report will provide a suitable scope for the assessment of the Drought Plan and consultation.

1 Introduction

- 1.1.1 Water companies have a statutory obligation to produce a Water Resources Management Plan (WRMP), which sets out how a company intends to maintain the balance between supply and demand for water over a minimum 25-year period. In the development of a WRMP, companies must follow the Water Resource Planning Guidelines³ ('Guidelines'). WRMPs should ensure a secure and sustainable supply of water, focus on efficiently delivering the outcomes that customers want, while reflecting the value that society places on the environment.
- 1.1.2 The Guidelines state that in developing a WRMP in England and Wales, water companies should screen for a Strategic Environmental Assessment (SEA) and carry out a full SEA if required.
- 1.1.3 According to the SEA Regulations Part 2 (5) SEA Regulations:

'the responsible authority shall carry out, or secure the carrying out of, an environmental assessment, in accordance with Part 3 of these Regulations, during the preparation of that plan or programme and before its adoption or submission to the legislative procedure.

1.1.4 And Schedule 2 (6) confirms that the list of topics to be considered includes

'The likely significant effects on the environment, including short, medium and long-term effects, permanent and temporary effects, positive and negative effects, and secondary, cumulative and synergistic effects, on issues such as—

- (a) biodiversity;
- (b) population;
- (c) human health;
- (d) fauna;
- (e) flora;
- (f) soil;
- (g) water;
- (h) air;
- (i) climatic factors;
- (j) material assets;
- (k) cultural heritage, including architectural and archaeological heritage;
- (I) landscape; and
- (m) the inter-relationship between the issues referred to in sub-paragraphs (a) to (l).

³ EA, NRW, Defra and Ofwat, 2021, "Water resources planning guideline". Available at:

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/water-resources-planning-guideline/water-resources-planning-guideline

1.2 Water Resource Planning Guidelines

- 1.2.1 The Guidelines set out the framework and requirements for developing a WRMP with the objective 'to efficiently deliver resilient, sustainable water resources for your customers and the environment, both now and in the long term'⁴.
- 1.2.2 The Guidelines highlight the following key environmental considerations:
 - Reflect the government's 25-year Environment Plan including:
 - Setting out ambitions for environmental sustainability and resilience
 - Supporting nature recovery
 - Using natural capital in decision-making
 - Using a catchment approach
 - Delivering net gain for the environment
 - Impact of climate change with regard to river flows and groundwater recharge, and any future supply options
 - Issue of spread of invasive non-native species (INNS) and proposed measures to mitigate that risk
 - Enhancing the natural resilience of catchments by effective catchment management planning, to increase the amount and/or quality of water available for abstraction without posing unacceptable pressures on the environment
 - Consider whether abstractions are truly sustainable, looking across a catchment as a whole
 - The requirement to demonstrate Biodiversity Net Gain (BNG) for options and the plan.
 - The stronger focus and detailed guidance on natural capital including the five minimum ecosystem services to be considered and natural capital metrics.
 - Improved guidance on approaches to integrate environmental outputs into options decisionmaking and programme appraisal.
- 1.2.3 The draft supplementary guidance note 'Environment and society in decision-making'⁵ provides additional detail on how to integrate environmental and social considerations into decision-making in the WRMP process through SEA, biodiversity net gain assessment and natural capital assessment.
- 1.2.4 The Guidelines state there is a need to comply with environmental legislation, SEA and Habitats Regulations Assessments. This SEA Scoping Report is the first stage of the SEA process for WRMP24. The Scoping Report is produced early in the WRMP process, as it sets the context, approach and framework for assessing the WRMP options and subsequent preferred and alternatives plans. The results of the SEA and other environmental assessments aids decision-making on mitigation requirements, options development, and selection of preferred options for the WRMP, with the aim of developing a WRMP that meets legislative environmental requirements and provides environmental net gain.

1.3 WRMP Environmental Assessment and the Regional Planning Process

1.3.1 Regional water resource plans taking a long-term view of water planning to 2100 are currently being prepared for each region. The ESW WRMP24 SEA will be undertaken in the context of the regional planning currently being carried out. Essex & Suffolk Water falls within Water Resources East (WRE). The proposed approach to the SEA aligns with the regional

 $^{^4}$ EA, NRW, Defra and Ofwat, 2021, "Water resources planning guideline, section 1.1.1

⁵ Environment Agency, 2021, Water resources planning guideline supplementary guidance – Environment and society in decision-making (England). External guidance: 18643.

6

methodologies and provides efficiencies through use of regional environmental assessments as a basis for further assessment work as part of the ESW WRMP24 development.

- 1.3.2 Environmental assessments including SEA are being undertaken for the regional plans and also for WRMP24. However, rather than having two separate processes that duplicate effort, the regional planning assessments will provide much of the assessment work for the WRMP24 (as explained below and in Figure 1.1). The water resource options within the ESW WRMP24 will largely come from the options selected in the WRE regional plans, therefore efficiencies between the regional planning process and WRMP process can be achieved.
- 1.3.3 This report is the SEA Scoping Report prepared specifically for the ESW WRMP24 to meet legislative requirements and provide the local level details for WRMP24 including the local level plans and programmes review, baseline information and key issues and opportunities specific to Essex & Suffolk Water. The SEA framework including objectives and assessment criteria has been largely taken from the WRE SEA methodology to ensure consistency and allow the SEA results from the regional plan to be used for the WRMP24.
- 1.3.4 SEA option assessments carried out for the regional plan will be used for the WRMP24 SEA assessment. The regional SEA results will be reviewed and where relevant local information will be included in the assessments as part of WRMP24. The regional SEA results may also flag where mitigation is needed, and this will help inform further options development by Essex & Suffolk Water for the WRMP24. Any new options not included in the regional plans will need full assessment using the defined SEA framework as part of the WRMP24.
- 1.3.5 The regional plans will undergo in-combination effects assessment. This is expected to take place in 2022 for WRE. To meet legislative requirements, an in-combination effects assessment, specific to ESW WRMP, will also take place. ESW WRMP24 in-combination effects assessment will consider transfers which are outside the ESW area or in close proximity to the plan boundary with potential pathways affecting receptors outside the plan area. Further details on the proposed environmental assessment approach including the SEA method is presented in Section 6 of this SEA Scoping Report.





1.4 The SEA Process

- 1.4.1 A SEA is required for the ESW WRMP24 under the European Union Directive 2001/42/EC, more commonly known as the SEA Directive. The Directive was transposed into United Kingdom (UK) law via the Environmental Assessment of Plans and Programmes Regulations 2004 ('SEA Regulations') and retained following withdrawal from the European Union. This requires an assessment of the effects of certain plans and programmes on the environment. Part 2 (5) (2) of the SEA Regulations states that SEA is required for plans and programmes which are prepared for water management and sets the framework for development consents.
- 1.4.2 The SEA also works to inform the decision-making process through the identification and assessment of significant and cumulative effects a plan or programme may have on the environment. The SEA process is conducted at a strategic level and enables consultation on the potential effects of a plan with a wide range of stakeholders. Figure 1.2 shows the different stages in the SEA process. Appendix C presents the different tasks involved in each of the SEA stages.
- 1.4.3 The SEA process will follow current and emerging guidance on the application of SEA within water resource planning including incorporating best practice within the proposed approach. The current and emerging guidance documents include:
 - Strategic Environmental Assessment: Core Objective Identification, 2020, All Company Working Group.
 - Strategic Environmental Assessment and Habitats Regulations Assessment guidance for water resources management plans and drought plans, 2012, UK Water Industry Research.
 - Strategic Environmental Assessment and Habitats Regulations Assessment guidance for water resources management plans and drought plans, Update ongoing, UK Water Industry Research.
 - Water Resource Planning Guidelines, 2021, Environment Agency, Ofwat, Natural Resources Wales.
 - Best practice topic guidance on SEA and biodiversity, climate and heritage from Natural England, the Environment Agency and Historic England.
 - Environmental Assessment Guidance for Water Resources Management Plans and Drought Plans (UKWIR 2021).
 - Environment Agency, 2021, Water resources planning guideline draft supplementary guidance Environment and society in decision-making (England).

Figure 1.2: SEA Process Steps



Current Status of the Project The Affinity Water SEA 2024 is currently near the end of Stage A of the process. The SEA Scoping Report will be issued for a five week consultation from XXXXXX During the consultation period the Consultation Bodies will have a chance to comment on the proposed scope and approach for the SEA.

1.5 SEA Screening

- 1.5.1 Water companies, as responsible authorities, must determine if theirs fall within the scope of the SEA Directive.
- 1.5.2 Essex & Suffolk Water undertook a SEA screening exercise to determine whether a SEA of the WRMP is required. The decision tree in Chapter 3 of the UKWIR report entitled Environmental Assessment Guidance for Water Resources Management Plans and Drought Plans (UKWIR 2021) was used.
- 1.5.3 The results of the screening exercise are as follows:
 - The ESW WRMP24 will be prepared and adopted by Northumbrian Water Limited (NWL) who, under the SEA Directive, is considered an "authority". Go to Box 2 see below.
 - The WRMP is required by legislative provision, being a statutory document under the Water Act 2003, amending the Water Industry Act 1991. Go to Box 3 see below.
 - The WRMP will be prepared for water management and also sets a framework for future development consent as it will contain options for new infrastructure for the sourcing, treatment, storage and transfer of water. Go to Box 5 see below.
 - The area of jurisdiction for the WRMP would be considered greater than 'local level' and the
 options to be included within the plan are not within the meaning of 'small areas'. As WRMPs
 are required as new plans on a cyclical basis to provide for updated supply-demand
 forecasts over a long-term planning horizon, they are not considered to be 'minor
 modifications' to the previous plan (See box 7 in Figure 1.3 below).
- 1.5.4 A WRMP meets none of the exemption criteria within Box 7. Therefore, SEA of the WRMP24 is required.



Source: UKWIR (2020) Environmental Assessment Guidance for WRMPs & Drought Plans

1.6 Purpose of the Scoping Stage and Report

1.6.1 The purpose of this Scoping Report is to set the context and scope for SEA, covering Stage A of the SEA process⁶. The Environmental Report, published alongside the draft WRMP24, will set

⁶ DCLG, September 2005, A 'Practical Guide to the Strategic Environmental Assessment Directive', Pages 26 - 29

out the results of the SEA assessment (covering Stages B to D). Stage E (Monitoring) will be carried out by Essex & Suffolk Water as part of their annual monitoring.

- 1.6.2 Specifically, the scoping stage aims to:
 - Review relevant International, European, National, and local policies, plans and programmes and their implications for the WRMP.
 - Establish the baseline environmental and socio-economic information and key sustainability issues and opportunities for the ESW WRMP24 area.
 - Set the context and objectives of the SEA.
 - Decide on the scope for the SEA, ensuring that it covers all the likely significant environment effects of the WRMP.
 - Provide an opportunity to engage and collaborate with the Consultation Bodies7.

1.7 Limitations of the Scoping Report

- 1.7.1 Mott MacDonald has relied on published data and information provided by WRE, Essex & Suffolk Water and from third party organisations in the production of this SEA Scoping Report. The baseline information collected in this SEA Scoping Report is the most up-to-date information currently available, however it is possible that conditions described in this report may change over time. This dataset will be reviewed and updated as appropriate throughout the SEA process as new information becomes available. The consultation process aims to address and minimise any gaps in information to ensure all potential environmental effects have been considered with regard to the WRMP24.
- 1.7.2 The ESW WRMP24 covers a substantial geographical area. Therefore, the baseline is currently a high-level review of conditions within the region. Once options and their locations have been better defined and narrowed down in number and location, a review of the site baseline conditions will be undertaken and datasets will be included within a GIS system, which will be used to support the assessment of options.
- 1.7.3 The approach to the SEA proposes to use the WRE regional assessments where appropriate. Where baseline data or description reflects the WRE region it is described as such. However, these will be supplemented with additional local level data where possible. Where this is the case it will be described as covering the Essex & Suffolk Water area, or specifically the Essex & Suffolk Water supply area (the areas delimited in red on Figure 1.4).

1.8 Background and purpose

The SEA Regulations requires:

'an outline of the contents and main objectives of the plan or programme...'

SEA Regulations Schedule 2 (1)

1.8.1 Water companies have a statutory obligation to produce a Water Resources Management Plan (WRMP), which sets out how a company intends to maintain the balance between supply and demand for water over a minimum 25-year period. New WRMPs are prepared every five years and Essex & Suffolk Water is due to publish its next WRMP in 2024. The new WRMP24 is the subject of this SEA.

⁷ The Consultation Bodies are: Natural England, Historic England, and the Environment Agency.

1.8.2 Essex & Suffolk Water is part of Northumbrian Water Limited and provides water services to 1.8 million people, operating in two areas: one serving parts of Norfolk and Suffolk, and the other serving parts of Essex and Greater London. The Essex & Suffolk Water supply area and raw water supply network is shown in Figure 1.4 below.



Figure 1.4 Essex & Suffolk Water Network

Source: Taken from Essex & Suffolk Water Drought Map (WTR0332)

1.9 Relationship to Water Resources East regional plan

- 1.9.1 As described in Section 1.3 the ESW WRMP24 will be undertaken in the context of the WRE regional planning currently being carried out.
- 1.9.2 The main objectives, as presented in the WRE regional plans, are to:
 - Ensure there is enough water for a growing population and to support economic growth.
 - Improve the environment by leaving more water in the region's rivers, streams and underground sources.
 - Increase the region's resilience to severe drought and other extreme shocks and stresses.
 - Address the impacts of climate change on demand for water and how much is available.

- 1.9.3 WRE vision is to provide an integrated long-term strategy, prepared through multi-sector collaboration and planning, that takes account of the needs of all of those in the WRE region with an interest in the management and use of water. The ambition is that water companies in the region will collaborate with others and agree a long-term water resource strategy which will then be used to guide the development of the draft 2024 WRMPs. WRE's overall aim is to deliver a reliable, sustainable and affordable system of water supply to meet multi-sector requirements (including the environment) across the East of England for the next 50 years and beyond towards the end of the century.
- 1.9.4 The WRE regional plan⁸ suggests the WRE regional plan environmental assessments, including the SEA, can be used as a framework for the WRE member water companies such as Essex & Suffolk Water when undertaking their WRMP24 statutory environmental assessments.

1.10 ESW WRMP24 option types

1.10.1 The WRMP24 will include supply and demand options.

Potential supply options

- 1.10.2 The broad supply option types being considered include:
 - Aquifer storage and recovery aquifer storage options involve abstracting water from a river or reservoir, treating and injecting it underground to be stored in natural aquifers.
 - Desalination desalination options involve pumping sea water or brackish water (from an estuary) for treatment and release into supply. The water will be blended before putting into supply, with the brine to be piped out to sea for disposal (in the case of sea desalination) or to a sewer (in the case of brackish water desalination).
 - Distribution capacity expansion Intra-zonal network enhancements (increased pipeline capacity or booster pumping capacity) to enable water to be transferred from new sources to demand centres within the water resource zone.
 - Drought intervention drought intervention options include drought order; drought permit; recommission abandoned sources; and temporary transfer.
 - Groundwater sources Usually a borehole which abstracts water from an aquifer which then goes to a treatment works.
 - Increase water treatment works (WTW) capacity and efficiency Increase deployable output by removing constraints on dissolved oxygen within the treatment works or reducing process losses.
 - Effluent reuse effluent is treated and discharged into rivers or reservoirs.
 - Reservoirs reservoir options include dam raising (increasing the capacity of existing reservoirs), or creation of new reservoirs. It is likely that most of these will be bunded reservoirs (i.e., not within a valley) with piped transfers in and out of supply.
 - Redevelopment of existing resources with increased yields Increase the potential yield of an existing water resource asset in order to increase deployable output.
 - Transfers transfers include asset transfers, and bulk transfers within/into region, either of raw or treated water.
 - Trading involves an agreement with another water company to trade water where there is a surplus.

⁸ WRE (2021). WRE Regional Plan Integrated Environmental Assessment Scoping Report. January 2021. 123 pages. Available online at: <u>Statement of resource need (wre.org.uk)</u>

Potential demand management options

- 1.10.3 The broad demand option types being considered include:
 - Metering consumption reduction involves reducing water consumption by installing meters in currently unmeasured properties. It can include compulsory metering for household and non-household uses, smart metering, and other metering such as optant metering.
 - Other consumption reduction involves reducing household and non-household consumption in ways other than metering.
 - It can include tariffs/fees (introduction of special fees, changes to existing measured tariffs, introduction of special tariffs for specific users)
 - Water recycling (rainwater harvesting / grey water reuse for new or existing household and non-household).
 - It can also include water efficiency measures such as water use audit and inspection, awareness campaigns, sponsoring water efficiency enabling activities by others, home visits to reduce plumbing losses, and the promotion of water saving devices.
- 1.10.4 Loss reduction involves reducing distribution system leakage, including service reservoir losses and trunk main leakage, as well as reducing customer supply pipe leakage. Leakage reduction options include capital investments to both the company-side and customer-side assets and operational improvements and policy changes. Examples include pressure management, mains renewal, increasing efficiency of active leakage control, etc. Customer supply pipe leakage reduction typically includes increased customer engagement/education or incentives to repair their supply pipes between the distribution main and the property.

Catchment management options

1.10.5 Catchment management options are also being considered. As catchment management is not solely considered as 'supply' or 'demand' option, but is more a combination of these, it is presented separately from the supply option types and demand option types above. Catchment management options include flow augmentation and licencing; integrated catchment management; knowledge exchange, education and agricultural activity; natural water retention measures (including natural flood management and wetland creation); nutrient and sediment reduction; pesticide reduction; river restoration; Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems (SuDS); and terrestrial habitat creation/management.

2 Relationships with other Policies, Plans and Programmes

The SEA Regulations requires:

'an outline of the contents and main objectives of the plan or programme, and of its relationship with other relevant plans and programmes'

'the environmental protection objectives, established at international, Community or Member State level, which are relevant to the plan or programme and the way those objectives and any environmental considerations have been taken into account during its preparation'

SEA Regulations Schedule 2 (1) and (5)

2.1 Policies, Plans and Programmes Review

- 2.1.1 A review of the policies, plans, and programmes relevant to the WRMP24 was undertaken as part of the SEA Scoping process. The aim was to determine how the emerging WRMP may be affected by these external factors. Furthermore, the WRMP must aim to support current relevant policies, plans, programmes, and environmental protection legislation at international, national, and local levels. The WRMP must aim to support, and where possible, strengthen the objectives of other local plans and strategies within the Essex & Suffolk Water area.
- 2.1.2 A review of these documents is required to identify potential inconsistencies or constraints, and consistencies between these documents and the draft WRMP to inform the development of the SEA Framework. **Table 2.1** lists current relevant policies, plans, and programmes which were considered during the SEA scoping stage. Appendix A presents the policies, plans, and programmes review in full.

2.2 Identification of Key Themes and Messages

- 2.2.1 The main themes, messages and objectives from the policies, plans and programmes review that are considered relevant to the WRMP are presented below. These are as follows:
 - Conserve flora and fauna and their habitats, including designated and non-designated sites.
 - Conservation and wise use of wetlands and their resources.
 - Support environmental and biodiversity net gain.
 - Integrate ecosystem service and natural capital principles.
 - Halt overall biodiversity loss and support the protection, recovery and enhancement of biodiversity.
 - Contribute to nature recovery and nature recovery networks and strategies
 - Creation of green infrastructure.9
 - Protection of landscape character and quality.
 - Improve water quality so all waters achieve 'good status' or 'no deterioration' as set out in the Water Framework Directive.
 - Prevent or limit inputs of pollutants into groundwater.
 - Monitor and provide information to consumers on drinking water quality.
 - Promote efficient use of water.
 - Reduce and manage the risks of flooding through sustainable design.

The UK Government's 25-year Environment Plan includes a sub-objective for the provision of more and better-quality green infrastructure including urban trees. Available at: https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/25-year-environment-plan

- Reduce greenhouse gas emissions to support the transition to the UK Government's 2050 net zero target.
- Adapt to the impacts of climate change including drought, flooding and peak water demand conditions.
- Increase resource efficiency and reduce natural resource use and waste.
- Create a green economy and promote sustainable growth.
- Promote sustainable and healthy communities.¹⁰
- Promote social inclusion and community participation.
- Protect cultural heritage assets including archaeology and built heritage.
- Protect best quality soils and agricultural land.
- Improve the health and resilience of Chalk Catchments.
- Improve soil health.
- Support the Lawton recommendation¹¹ for statutory undertakers planning the management of water resources to:
 - Make space for water and wildlife along rivers and around wetlands
 - Restore natural processes in river catchments, including in ways that support climate change adaptation and mitigation
 - Accelerate the programme to reduce nutrient overload, particularly from diffuse pollution
- Support the UK Government's 25 Year Plan to Improve the Environment¹²:
 - Using and managing land sustainably including embedding an "environmental net gain" principle into development (as supported by the Environment Act 2021)
 - Recovering nature and enhancing the beauty of landscapes
 - Connecting people to the environment to improve health and wellbeing
 - Increase resource efficiency and reducing pollution
 - Securing clean, healthy and productive and biologically diverse seas and oceans
 - Protecting and improving the global environment
- 2.2.2 The themes, messages and objectives identified from the policies, plans, and programmes review will provide an input into the process of identifying key issues and opportunities and developing the SEA Framework.

¹⁰ The UK Government definition of sustainable communities as outlined in the document 'Sustainable Communities: Homes for All' (ODPM, January 2005, page 74) is: "Sustainable communities are places where people want to live and work, now and in the future. They meet the diverse needs of existing and future residents, are sensitive to their environment, and contribute to a high quality of life. They are safe and inclusive, well planned, built and run, and offer equality of opportunity and good services for all".

Lawton, 2010, Making Space for Nature, Recommendation 4, Page 73

¹² UK Government (2018). A Green Future: Our 25 Year Plan to Improve the Environment. Available at: <u>https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/693158/25-year-environment-plan.pdf</u>

Table 2.1: Relevant international, national, and regional policies, plans and programmes

Policies, Plans and Programmes					
Interna	ational				
 Bern Convention on the Conservation of European Wildlife and Natural Habitats (1979) Bonn Convention on the Conservation of Migratory Species of Wild Animals (1983) Convention on Biological Diversity (1992) Ramsar Convention - The Convention on Wetlands of International Importance (1971) UN Framework Convention on Climate Change (1992) Kyoto Protocol to the UN Framework Convention on Climate Change (1997) 	 Commitments arising from the World Summit on Sustainable Development, Johannesburg (2002) Paris Agreement (2015) Charter for the Protection and Management of Archaeological Heritage (1990) The World Heritage Convention (1972) Convention on Access to Information, Public Participation in Decision-making and Access to Justice in Environmental Matters (Aarhus Convention) (1998) 				
Europ	ean ¹³				
 Ambient Air Quality Directive (2008/S0/EC) Thematic Strategy on Air Pollution (2005) Establishing measures for the recovery of the stock of European eel 2007 (1100/2007) Our life insurance, our natural capital: an EU biodiversity strategy to 2020 (2011) Fresh Water Fish Directive (2006/44/EC) Directive on the Conservation of Wild Birds (79/409/EEC) (as amended) Directive on the Conservation of Natural Habitats and of Wild Flora and Fauna (92/43/EEC) Directive on Animal health requirements for aquaculture animals and products thereof, and on the prevention and control of certain diseases in aquatic animals (2006/88/EC) Limiting Global Climate Change to 2 degrees Celsius - The way ahead for 2020 and beyond (2007) A Clean Planet for all: A European strategic long-term vision for a prosperous, modern, competitive and climate neutral economy (2018) Promotion of the use of energy and renewable sources Directive (2009/28/EC) Energy Act 2013 Mainstreaming sustainable development into EU policies: 2009 Review of the European Union Strategy for Sustainable Development European Commission Environmental Liability Directive (2004/35/EC) Directive on the assessment of the effects of certain plans and programmes on the environment 	 The Convention for the Protection of the Architectural Hentage of Europe (Grahada Convention) (1985) The European Convention on the Protection of Archaeological Heritage (Valletta Convention) (1992) The European Landscape Convention (2006) The Environmental Noise Directive (2002/49/EC) European Soils Charter (2003) Thematic Strategy for Soil Protection (2006) The Nitrates Directive (91/676/EEC) The Water Framework Directive (WFD) (2000/60/EC) Urban Wastewater Treatment Directive (91/271/EEC) Directive on Bathing Water (76/160/EEC); and Directive 2006/7/EC repealing Directive 76/160/EEC (from 2014) Groundwater Directive (2006/118/EC) Marine Strategy Framework Directive (2008/56/EEC) Directive on the Assessment and Management of Flood Risks (2007/60/EC) Blueprint to Safeguard Europe's Water Resources (2012) 				
(2001/42/EC)	nal				
Natio	ildi				

¹³ It is acknowledged that the UK has left the European Union. However, European law and policy has formed the basis for UK environmental laws and contributed to the direction of UK policy in these areas for many years. As such, they are considered to remain a useful contextual frame as part of the policies, plans and programmes review.

Policies, Plans and Programmes

- The Eels (England & Wales) Regulations 2009 (as amended)
- Salmon and Freshwater Fisheries Act 1975
- UK Post-2010 Biodiversity Framework, JNCC and Defra (2012)
- Making Space for Nature A review of England's Wildlife Sites and Ecological Network (2010)
- Biodiversity 2020: A strategy for England's wildlife and ecosystem services, Defra (2011)
- The Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations (2010) (as amended)
- The Conservation of Habitats and Species (Amendment) (EU Exit) Regulations (2019)
- Delivering a healthy natural environment. Ecosystem approach action plan, Defra (2010)
- The Invasive Alien Species (Enforcement and Permitting) Order 2019
- The Great Britain Invasive Non-Native Species Strategy, Defra (2015)
- A narrative for conserving freshwater and wetland habitats in England, Natural England (2016)
- Conservation 21 Natural England's Conservation Strategy for the 21st Century, Natural England (2016)
- State of Natural Capital Annual Report 2020, Natural Capital Committee (2020)
- Standing Advice on Protected Species, Natural England (2016)
- Climate Change Act 2008
- UK Climate Change Risk Assessment, Defra (2017)
- The National Adaptation Programme and the Third Strategy for Climate Adaptation Reporting, Defra (2018)
- National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (2019)
- A Green Future: Our 25 Year Plan to Improve the Environment, UK Government (2018)
- The draft Environment Bill 2020
- Securing the Future Delivering the UK Sustainable Development Strategy (2005)
- The Natural Choice: Securing the Value of Nature, Defra (2011)
- Marine and Coastal Access Act (2009)
- The Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended)
- Environment Protection Act 1990
- Countryside and Rights of Way (CROW) Act
- The Natural Environment and Communities Act 2006 (NERC Act)
- Creating a better place: Our ambition to 2020, Environment Agency (2018)
- UK National Ecosystem Assessment Follow-on (2014)
- National Infrastructure Delivery Plan 2016–2021, Infrastructure and Projects Authority (HM Government) (2016)
- Fixing the foundations: Creating a more prosperous nation, HM Government (2015)
- Environment Act 2021
- The Environmental Damage (Prevention and Remediation) (England) Regulations 2015

- Strategic Environmental Assessment, Sustainability Appraisal and the Historic Environment, Historic Environment (2016)
- The Setting of Heritage Assets, Historic Environment Good Practice Advice in Planning 3, Historic Environment (2017)
- Ancient Woodland and Veteran Trees: Protecting them from development, Forestry Commission and Natural England (2014)
- Our Waste, Our Resources: A Strategy for England, HM Government (2018)
- Safeguarding our Soils A strategy for England, Defra (2009)
- Water Resources Act 1991
- Water Industry Act 1991
- Water Act 2003 (as amended)
- Preparing for a drier future: England's water infrastructure needs, National Infrastructure Commission (2018)
- Draft National Policy Statement for Water Resources Infrastructure, Defra (2018)
- Water for Life White Paper, Defra (2011)
- The Water Environment (Water Framework Directive) (England and Wales) Regulations 2003 (as amended)
- Protect groundwater and prevent groundwater pollution, Environment Agency (2017)
- Groundwater protection technical guidance, Environment Agency (2017)
- The Environment Agency's approach to groundwater protection, Environment Agency (2018)
- The Groundwater (England and Wales) Regulations 2009
- Flood and Water Management Act 2010
- National Flood and Coastal Erosion Risk Management Strategy for England, Environment Agency (2020)
- The Flood and Coastal Erosion Risk Management Policy Statement, Defra (2020)
- Flood risk assessments: climate change allowances, Environment Agency (2016)
- The Water Resources Management Plan Regulations 2007
- Water Resources Planning Framework (2015-2065), Water UK (2016)
- Water Supply (Water Quality) Regulations 2016 (as amended)
- National Policy Statement for Wastewater (2012)
- Climate change approaches in water resources planning Overview of new methods, Environment Agency (2013)
- Drought response: our framework for England, Environment Agency (2017)
- Future Water: The Government's water strategy for England, Defra (2008)
- Environment Agency, 2021, Water resources planning guideline draft supplementary guidance Environment and society in decision-making (England).
- British Standard for Biodiversity Net Gain BS8683

Policies, Plans and Programmes

 Environmental Assessment of Plans and Programmes Regulations 2004 	 The Urban Waste Water Treatment (England and Wales) Regulations 1994
Creating a great place for living: together we are building a green and healthy future (2018)	The Nitrate Pollution Prevention Regulations 2015
 Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 	Managing Water Abstraction, Environment Agency (2016)
The Ancient Monuments and Archaeological Areas Act 1979	Marine Plans – South East Inshore, South Inshore, South Offshore (Marine Management
Climate Change and the Historic Environment, English Heritage (2008)	Organisation)
	UK Marine Policy Statement (2011)
Regional	l and Local
Site Improvement Plans for Natura 2000 sites: London & South East, Natural England	WRSE Regional Plan (pending 2022)
Local Development Plans (Various)	WRSE SEA Scoping Report (2020)
 Public Rights of Way Improvement Plans (ROWIPs) (Various) 	 WRSE Natural Capital and Biodiversity Net Gain Method Statement (2020)
 Local level Green Infrastructure Plans and Strategies (Various) 	 WRSE Regional Plan Environmental Assessment Methodology (2020)
AONB Management Plans (Various)	• Developing our 'Best Value' multi-sector regional resilience plan, a consultation on our objectives,
 National Character Area (NCA) Profiles, Natural England 	value criteria and metrics, WRSE (2021)
Anglian River Basin Management Plan (2015)	WRE Regional Plan (pending 2022)
Chalk-Streams First: A Permanent and Sustainable Solution to the Chilterns Chalk-Streams Crisis	, • WRE Regional Plan Method Statement, WRE (2020)
Various (2020)	 WRE Draft Integrated Environmental Assessment Scoping Report, WRE (2021)
 National Natural Capital Atlas: Mapping Indicators, Natural England (2020) 	WRW Regional Plan, WRW (pending 2022)
South East River Basin Management Plan (2015)	Draft South East Marine Plan, Marine Management Organisation (2020)
Thames River Basin Management Plan (2015)	Water Resources Planning Guideline, Various (2021)
 Catchment Flood Management Plans (2009): Anglian River Basin; South East River Basin; and Thames River Basin 	 Meeting our Future Water Needs: A National Framework for Water Resources, Environment Agency (2020)
Catchment Abstraction Management Strategies (CAMS) (2016) (Various)	 Long-term water resources environmental destination, Environment Agency (2020)
	Forward programme 2021-22, RAPID (2021)
Essex & S	Suffolk Water
Environment Strategy (2021)	Biodiversity Strategy (2012)
Pollution Incident Reduction Plan (2020)	 Draft Drought Plan 2022 (2021)
PR19 Business Plan (2020)	 Safety, Health and Environment (SHE) Statement (2020)
Emission Possible Plan to achieve net zero by 2027 (2021)	 Leakage Target (2020)
Water Environment Improvements / Blue spaces Scheme (2021	

Page deliberately blank

3 Environmental Baseline

The SEA Regulations requires consideration of:

'the relevant aspects of the current state of the environment and the likely evolution thereof without implementation of the plan or programme'

'the environmental characteristics of areas likely to be significantly affected'

SEA Regulations Schedule 2 (2) and (3)

3.1 Introduction

- 3.1.1 Current baseline information for the environment and socio-economics was reviewed for the ESW WRMP24. The baseline was collected from published sources as referenced in the text and is summarised in the sections below. Where baseline data or description reflects the WRE region it is described as such. However, these will be supplemented with additional local level data where possible. Where this is the case it will be described as covering the Essex & Suffolk Water area, or specifically the Essex & Suffolk Water supply area (the areas delimited in red on Figure 1.4). The baseline information forms an evidence base against which environmental issues or opportunities resulting from the WRMP24 can be predicted and assessed. The baseline information is presented under the SEA Regulations topics:
 - Biodiversity, flora, and fauna
 - Water
 - Soil
 - Air
 - Climatic factors
 - Population and human health
 - Historic environment
 - Landscape
 - Material assets
- 3.1.2 It should be noted the ESW WRMP24 covers a substantial geographical area and water is transferred into the supply area from throughout the WRE Region and the development of options is currently being finalised. Therefore, the baseline is currently a high-level review of conditions within the WRE region where appropriate (Fig 3.1) and therefore extending to a wider area rather than being location specific. For example, there are potential effects both from the transfer of water outside the supply area or from options close to the plan boundary with potential pathways affecting receptors outside the supply area. The baseline GIS developed to facilitate undertaking the assessments and reporting will include a buffer so that additional receptors (such as designated sites) and potential pathways are captured and can be included in the assessments. Appendix B5 maps surface water catchments that could potentially be affected and that fall either partially, or wholly outside the WRE region and the Essex and Suffolk Water supply area. These include the:
 - Bure
 - Chelmer & Blackwater

- Ely Ouse
- King George
- Stour
- Waveney

3.1.3 Once options and their locations are better defined and narrowed down in number and location a review of the specific site baseline conditions will be undertaken and the environmental datasets will be included in a GIS database to support the assessment of the options.



Figure 3.1: WRE Region

3.2 Biodiversity, Flora and Fauna

Designated Sites

3.2.1 The WRE region contains numerous Special Areas of Conservation (SAC), Special Protection Areas (SPA), Ramsar sites, Sites of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI), National Nature Reserves (NNR), Local Nature Reserves (LNR), Marine Protected Areas (MPA) and Marine Conservation Zones (MCZ). The number and type of terrestrial ecological sites across the WRE region is presented in **Table 3.1** and in Appendices B.1 to B.3. Should plan options be proposed that have the potential to impact Marine Sites or freshwater dependent terrestrial ecosystems the baseline will be extended will be assessed within the SEA.

Designated Site	Total Number
SAC	182
SPA	29
Ramsar	124
SSSI	1294
NNR	227
LNR	405
MPA	3
MCZ	2

Table 3.1: Ecological sites in the WRE Region

3.2.2 Under the Natural Environment and Rural Communities (NERC) Act 2006, Essex & Suffolk Water has a duty to have regard to the conservation of biodiversity in exercising its function. The duties relate to habitats and species of principal importance, some of which may be designed Local Wildlife Sites (LWS). The Environment Act 2021 strengthened the duties such that Essex & Suffolk Water has a duty to further the conservation and enhancement of biodiversity.

Priority habitats make up 8.65% of the WRE region equating to a total of 251,956ha. Deciduous woodland accounts for the highest percentage of priority habitat in the region. The split of priority habitats by type across the region is shown in **Table 3.2**.

Priority Habitat Type	Hectares (ha)	Percentage
Coastal and floodplain grazing marsh	50,648.7	1.72%
Coastal saltmarsh	11,029.8	0.38%
Coastal sand dunes	1,406.8	0.05%
Coastal vegetated shingle	707.3	0.02%
Deciduous woodland	116,809.1	4.01%
Good quality semi-improved grassland	9,251.5	0.32%
Lowland calcareous grassland	4,288.0	0.15%
Lowland dry acid grassland	5,274.8	0.18%
Lowland fens	6,154.6	0.21%
Lowland heathland	6,056.4	0.21%
Lowland meadows	2,935.2	0.10%
Maritime cliff and slope	255.7	0.01%
Mudflats	7,267.8	0.25%
No main habitat but additional habitats		
present	24,774.0	0.85%
Purple moor grass and rush pastures	623.4	0.02%
Reedbeds	1,824.9	0.06%
Saline lagoons	272.7	0.01%
Traditional orchard	2,375.3	0.08%

Table 3.2: Priority habitats in the WRE region

3.2.3 There are approximately 2,000 invasive non-native species (INNS) in the UK, and approximately 10-15% of them cause significant social, environmental, or economic impacts, costing the UK an estimated £1.7 Billion a year.

- 3.2.4 Species of particular concern for Essex & Suffolk Water highlighted in their biodiversity programme include:
 - Killer shrimp (Dikerogammarus villosus)
 - Demon shrimp (Dikerogammarus haemobaphes)
 - Quagga mussel (Dreissena rostriformis)
 - North American Signal crayfish (Pacifastacus leniusculus)
 - Japanese Knotweed (Fallopia japonica)
 - Himalayan Balsam (*Impatiens glandulifera*)
 - Giant Hogweed (Heracleum mantegazzianum)
 - Floating Pennywort (*Hydrocotyle ranunculoides*)
 - New Zealand pigmy weed (Crassula helmsii)

3.3 Water

- 3.3.1 The WRE region and therefore the Essex & Suffolk Water supply area within it is one of the driest areas in the UK and is classed as an area with serious water stress¹⁴. The anticipated population and economic growth alongside the projected changes in climate will likely continue to place additional stress on water availability and the natural environment within the Essex & Suffolk Water area. The Essex & Suffolk Water area also has a number of nationally and internationally important wetlands and other water-dependent habitats. Therefore, the management of water resources is particularly important.
- 3.3.2 The main rivers in the WRE and Essex & Suffolk Water area are shown in Appendix B4. There are two river basin districts (RBD) within the Essex & Suffolk Water area; Thames and Anglian. Most of the ESW supply area falls within the Anglian river basin district, with a small area in the extreme west, predominantly the river Lea catchment, falling within the Thames RBD.
- 3.3.3 There are sections of the Stour and Ely Ouse surface water catchments that fall outside of the WRE region and the Essex and Suffolk supply area as does the King George surface water catchment Appendix B5. It is not yet known if there are options that could impact areas not in the current baseline, if any proposed plan options emerge that could potentially have impacts in these catchments the baseline will be extended and assessment of these options will be assessed within the SEA.
- 3.3.4 The Anglian RBD covers an area of 27,900km2 and extends from Lincolnshire in the north to Essex in the south and from Northamptonshire in the west to the east Anglian coast¹⁵ Fig 3.1. The Essex and Suffolk supply area intersects 6 of the management catchments in the Anglian river basin and 4 in the Thames river basin.
- 3.3.5 The Thames RBD covers an area of 16,200km2 and includes 17 management catchments which range from chalk streams and aquifers to tidal and coastal marshes.¹⁶

¹⁴ Environment Agency (2013). Water Stressed Areas – Final Classification. Available at: <u>https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/244333/wat</u> <u>er-stressed-classification-2013.pdf</u>

¹⁵ Defra, EA, December 2015 "Part 1: Anglian river basin district river basin management plan", Page 9

¹⁶ Defra and Environment Agency (2015). Part 1: Thames River Basin District – River Basin Management Plan. Available at:

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/718342/Tha mes_RBD_Part_1_river_basin_management_plan.pdf

3.3.6 The number of water bodies in the Essex & Suffolk Water area within Thames River RBD and Anglian RBD is presented in **Table 3.3**.

Water body categories	Thames RBD	Anglian RBD	Total
Rivers and surface water	11	71	82
Lake	0	7	7
Coastal	1	7	8
Transitional	3	5	8
Groundwater	3	4	7
Canal	0	0	0
Total	18	94	112

The WFD indicator of the health of the water environment is whether a water body is at good status or potential. This is an assessment of a range of quality elements relating to the biology and chemical quality of surface waters and quantitative and chemical quality of groundwater. To achieve good ecological status or potential, good chemical status or good groundwater status every single element assessed must be at good status or better. If one element is marginally below its threshold for good status, then the whole water body's status is classed as less than good. **Tables 3.4 and 3.5** summarise the current status of surface and groundwater water bodies in the Essex & Suffolk Water area within the two RBDs¹⁷.

Table 3.4: 2019 classification for surface water bodies in the Essex & Suffolk Water area

River basin	Ecological status or potential					Chemical status	
district	Bad	Poor	Moderate	Good	High	Fail	Good
Thames RBD	0	0	14	1	0	0	1
Anglian RBD	2	16	66	6	0	0	6

Table 3.5: WFD quantitative and chemical 2019 classification for groundwater water bodies in the Essex & Suffolk Water area

River basin district	Quantitative status		Chemical s	tatus
	Poor	Good	Poor	Good
Thames RBD	2	1	2	1
Anglian RBD	3	1	4	0

3.3.8 The RBMPs for the Thames and Anglian RBDs highlight significant water management issues which prevent the sustainable management of water within the entirety of each river basin, as presented in **Table 3.6.** Within the Anglian RBD, pollution from rural areas, pollution from wastewater and pollution from towns, cities, and transport, as well as physical modifications, affect the highest proportions of water bodies. Within the Thames RBD, physical modifications, pollution from towns, cities and transport and pollution from wastewater affect the highest proportions of water bodies.

^{3.3.7}

¹⁷ It should be noted that 'coastal' waterbodies outlined in Table 4.3 within the Essex & Suffolk Water area are not included within Tables 4.4 and 4.5, as WFD classifications for these water bodies were not available considering they are not part of a river water body catchment,

Table 3.6: Water management issues

Water Management Issue	Percentage of water bodies affected	
	Thames RBD	Anglian RBD
Pollution from rural areas	28%	74%
Pollution from towns, cities, and transport	61%	41%
Pollution from wastewater	39%	59%
Physical modifications	72%	41%
Pollution from abandoned mines	6%	0%
Non-native invasive species	6%	3%
Changes to the natural flow and levels of water	11%	16%

Flood risk

- 3.3.9 Within the WRE region, the risk of flooding comes from a variety of sources which include coastal waters, surface water, groundwater, and reservoirs. The projected changes in climate presented in Section 3.7. Climatic factors are likely to increase the frequency of extreme weather events, which combined with projected increases in sea level will further impact flood risk across the region, with nearly 30% of the land mass already below sea level.
- 3.3.10 The Anglian river basin district has over 55,000 residents who are at high risk of flooding from rivers and the sea, with over 65,000 also at risk from surface water flooding. There is one primary flood risk area within the river basin district, South Essex flood risk area, which has been assessed as having a significant local flood risk.
- 3.3.11 The whole Thames river basin district has over 227,000 people at high risk of surface water flooding and over 107,000 people are at high risk of flooding from rivers and the sea. There is one flood risk area, South Essex, which is partially within the WRE region.

3.4 Covid-19 Impacts on Water Demand

- 3.4.1 The research and data that has been collated for this report all indicate that demand and PCC have been impacted by the effect of the Covid-19 pandemic. Namely that household demand has increased, and non-household demand has decreased, with overall total demand increasing. It is encouraging that figures from multiple sources are similar and by combining all the data that have investigated the effect of Covid-19 alone on demand (excluding weather) the impact can be summarised as:
 - Total Demand: A 2-5% increase of total demand (excluding weather) with times of peak demands increasing by 20-40% (this includes weather).
 - PCC: A 3-15% increase in average PCC (excluding weather); with times of peak demand increasing by around 20-40% (this includes weather).
 - Non household demand: A decrease of 25-50%.
 - Using more water at home: This ranges between a 15-55% increases in water use in the home as perceived by customers. This tallies up to what was actually seen from the demand data.
 - Working from home: Pre-Covid 5-15% of customers were working from home and during 2020 this has increased to 20-45%.
- 3.4.2 The impact of the Covid-19 pandemic will continue to affect PCC and Demand in the next few years and could potentially cause permanent changes to demand and PCC henceforward. From modelled data the PCC increase is estimated to reduce to between 2-3% by 2025 compared to an estimated 4-5% for 2021/22. These estimates

give an idea of how consumption will vary for the remainder of the AMP regarding the effect of Covid-19.

3.4.3 Essex & Suffolk Water's current long-term goal is to reach a PCC of 118 litres per person per day by 2040. Pre-covid, we reported a NWG PCC for 2019/20 of 148.86. Current reported NWG PCC (2020/21) is 165.66.

3.5 Soil

- 3.5.1 The WRE region is a hub for agriculture with cereal and livestock grazing being the predominant type of farming. Agricultural land is classified on a scale of 1 to 5 where 1 is the highest quality and 5 is the lowest. The agricultural land classification of the region is predominately of Grade 2 and Grade 3 with pockets of urban and non-agricultural land as shown in Appendix B4 There are significant areas with Grade 1, particularly around north Cambridgeshire and South Lincolnshire.
- 3.5.2 The east of England has a significant number of landfill sites. Currently, there are approximately 355 authorised landfill sites across the WRE region.

3.6 Air

3.6.1 Air quality in the WRE area and therefore the Essex & Suffolk Water area within it is varied and there are certain areas with higher concentrations of air pollutants likely to be associated with urbanisation, transport or business activities. Air Quality Management Areas (AQMAs) are declared where the national air quality objectives are not being met18. A high proportion of the local authorities which fall within the Essex & Suffolk Water area contain at least one AQMA and are predominately designated for Nitrogen dioxide (NO2) and Particulate Matter (PM10) 19. There are a total of 42 AQMAs in the Essex & Suffolk supply area.

3.7 Climatic Factors

3.7.1 Current observations indicate that the UK is continuing to warm. In 2019, four new temperature records were set, including a high of 38.7°C and a new winter record of 21.2°C²⁰. The decade between 2010 and 2019 has been on average 0.3°C warmer than the 1981-2010 average and 0.9°C warmer than 1961-1990. Annual precipitation has increased across the UK in the last few decades with 2019 seeing 107% more rainfall than the 1981-2010 average²¹. **Figure 3.1** and **Figure 3.2** below provide rainfall information for the Essex & Suffolk region in 2020 and 2021. Summers have been 11% wetter on average than 1981-2010 and 13% wetter than 1961-1990. Winters have been 4% and 12% wetter than 1981-2010 and 1961-1990 respectively.

27

¹⁸ Defra National Air Quality Objectives. Available at: <u>https://uk-air.defra.gov.uk/assets/documents/National_air_quality_objectives.pdf</u>

¹⁹ Defra List of Local Authorities with AQMAs. Available at: <u>https://uk-air.defra.gov.uk/aqma/list</u>

²⁰ RMetS (2020). State of the UK Climate. Available at: <u>https://rmets.onlinelibrary.wiley.com/doi/epdf/10.1002/joc.6726</u>

²¹ RMetS (2020). State of the UK Climate.


Figure 3.2: Barsham WTW Monthly Rainfall Totals (2020-2021)



Figure 3.3: Layer-de-la-Haye WTW Monthly Rainfall Totals (2020-2021)

3.7.2 The Met Office UK Climate Projections (UKCP) were updated for the first time since 2009 in December 2018 (UKCP18)²². The UKCP18 are largely the same as the previous projections where all areas of the UK are projected to be warmer, particularly during summer months. Rainfall is projected to vary seasonally and at a regional scale, however the UK is projected to have wetter winters and drier summers. The projected changes in temperature and precipitation for the south east of England by the 2050s (2040-2069), under the RCP8.5 scenario (high emissions scenario) are detailed in **Table 3.7.** The 1981-2010 baseline period and the central estimate, representing 'as likely as not' probability of change (50th percentile), was used for the following projections.

²² Met Office UKCP18. Available at: <u>https://ukclimateprojections-ui.metoffice.gov.uk/</u>

Table 3.7: Climate projections by the 2050s under the RCP8.5 scenario

Climatic Factor	Climate Projections
Temperature	Annual mean temperatures are projected to increase by 2.0°C. Summer temperatures are projected to see the largest increase by 2.6°C and winter temperatures by 1.7°C. Mean maximum summer temperatures are projected to increase by 2.9°C.
Precipitation	Annual mean precipitation is projected to decrease by 1.1%. Seasonal variability is projected with a 22.9% decrease in precipitation during summer months and an increase of 11.5% during winter months.

Source: Met Office UKCP18 using the central probability estimate for a RCP8.5 scenario

Greenhouse gas emissions

- 3.7.3 Based on information from the local authorities which fall within the WRE region, the total carbon dioxide (CO2) emissions for 2018 across all sectors is estimated at 32,660 kilo tonnes (ktCO2) (not including land use, land-use change, and forestry (LULUCF)).
- 3.7.4 The transport sector contributed the highest proportion of emissions to the total in 2018 at 44% followed by the domestic and industrial sector at 27% and 29% respectively. The LULUCF sector is estimated to be responsible for the removal of 214ktCO2 equating to a 0.6% reduction in the total CO2 emissions²³

3.8 Population and Human Health

3.8.1 It should be noted that data is presented differently by each Authority.

Essex

3.8.2 The total population as determined by Essex County Council local authority is 1,477,764 (2018). The Office of National Statistics population projections (2016 based) predict that by 2034 the total population will increase by another 195,160 people to a total of 1,650,500, an increase of 13.41% from 2011 estimates **Table 3.8**. Over the next 40 years an increase of 7,338 new homes occupied each year is predicted.

Table 3.8: Population projections all ages 2020 – 2035 Esse

Total population (all ages)	2018	2034
Numbers	1,477,764	1,650,500

Source: ONS Data

3.8.3 It is estimated that 18.9% of the population are aged 0-15 years (Children & Young People), 60.6% of the population are aged 16-64 (working age group) and 20.5% are aged 65 and over. Compared to the average for England, the Working Age group is 2% lower than the national average, whilst the 65+ age group is 2% higher.

Suffolk

3.8.4 The total population of Suffolk is 761,246 (2020) Currently, about 1 in 5 people living in Suffolk are aged 65 or over. Over the next 20 years, this is forecast to change, with 1 in 3 Suffolk residents being aged 65 or over, compared to 1 in 4 for England **Table 3.9**.

²³ BEIS (2020). UK local authority and regional carbon dioxide emissions national statistics: 2005 to 2018.

There are around 340,000 homes in Suffolk. Nearly 9 in 10 homes are a house or bungalow, and the rest are flats or apartments. An assessment of housing need suggests that more than 62,000 new Suffolk homes will need to be built over the next 20 years to meet demand.

Table 3.9: Population by age 2020 – 2043 Suffolk

Age	2020	%	2043	%
0-15	136243	17.9	132697	16
16 - 64	443505	58.3	442260	53.4
65+	181498	23.8	253762	30.6

Source: Suffolk Observatory

3.8.5 Life expectancy in Suffolk is 84.3 for females and 80.9 for males, this is slightly above the national average of 84.4 and 79.8 respectively. However, winter deaths in the 85+ population are 6% higher than the national average. The general Suffolk populational health in comparison to the populational health of the East of England, and of England as a whole, is presented in **Table 3.10** below.

Name	Suffolk	East of England	England
	%	%	%
Very bad health	1	1	1.2
Bad health	3.7	3.6	4.2
Fair health	13.6	12.9	13.1
Good health	35.7	35.2	34.2
Very good health	45.9	47.2	47.2

Table 3.10: General Health (2011) Suffolk

Source: Suffolk Observatory

Eastern England

- 3.8.6 Settlements within the WRE region are diverse and range from large population centres such as Colchester, Peterborough, Cambridge and Norwich to small rural hamlets and seaside towns.
- 3.8.7 The distribution of age amongst the population in the region is similar to the UK average where 20% are aged 15 and under, 66% are between 16 and 64, and 14% are over 65. Those aged 30 to 44 make up the largest proportion of the population at 23% followed by 45 to 59 at 18%.
- 3.8.8 Ethnicity in the region is predominately White. There are larger proportions of Black, Asian and Mixed ethnicities in the urban areas of the region compared to rural areas.
- 3.8.9 Life expectancy at birth for both males and females in Eastern England is better than the England average at around 81 years old and 84 years old respectively. Against the various indicators included within the Public Health Profiles, the region is generally better than the national average. Where the region is performing worse than the national average is against the following indicators:
 - Killed and seriously injured causalities on England's roads
 - Suicide rate
 - Hip fractures in people aged 65 and over
 - Estimated diabetes diagnosis rate
 - Smoking prevalence in adults (18+)

- Smoking prevalence in adults in routine and manual occupations (18-64)
- Excess winter deaths.

3.9 Economy

- 3.9.1 Eastern England contributes around 10% of the total UK economy. Gross Domestic Product (GDP) per head is £30,069 which is lower than the national UK average of £32,857. The service industry dominates the employment sector across the Eastern region, which is in line with the rest of the UK. For the three months ending June 2020 the unemployment rate was 3.8% which is slightly lower than the UK average of 3.9%.
- 3.9.2 In 2019, there were 9.7 million trips to Eastern England, which makes up around 10% of total trips to England. The total expenditure in Eastern England was £1,661 million.

3.10 Regional deprivation

3.10.1 The Index of Multiple Deprivation (IMD) 2019 is the official measure of relative deprivation for small areas (or neighbourhoods) in England. The IMD ranks every small area (Lower Super Output Area) in England from 1 (most deprived) to 32,844 (least deprived). For larger areas we can look at the proportion of LSOAs within the area that lie within each decile. Decile 1 represents the most deprived 10% of LSOAs in England while decile 10 shows the least deprived 10% of LSOAs. See **Figure 3.3**.

Nottingha ingham Ro London (Δ B Essex and Suffolk Water Resource Zone Index of Multiple Deprivation 2019 1 Most Deprived 2 3 10 Least Deprived WRZ: En 20

Figure 3.4: Distribution of the Index of Multiple Deprivation 2019 Eastern England and the E&S supply area

Source: The English Indices of Deprivation 2019 (DCLG, September 2019)

3.11 Historic Environment

3.11.1 The WRE region and the Essex & Suffolk Water supply areas are rich in heritage, with listed buildings, scheduled monuments, registered parks and gardens and registered battlefields. The total number of each of these assets within the Essex & Suffolk Water area is presented in **Table 3.11.** Scheduled monuments, registered parks and gardens, and registered battlefield are shown in Appendix B.7.

The WRE region is rich in heritage with listed buildings, scheduled monuments, conservation areas, registered parks and gardens, and registered battlefields.

Asset	Description	Number	
Listed Buildings	The statutory responsibility for listed buildings control lies with the individual Local Authorities. The Department for Digital, Culture, Media and Sport is responsible for compiling the	Grade I	2432
	statutory list of buildings of special architectural or historic interest and each building or structure of interest is classified upder one of three Grades: L 1* and II depending on their	Grade II*	4190
	significance (Grade I assessed as highest significance).	Grade II	61,450
Registered Parks and Gardens	Registered Parks and GardensHistoric England maintains a register of historic parks and gardens of special interest in England, these parks and gardens are as equally important as buildings and settlements		
	listed buildings and conservation areas, historical parks and gardens are not afforded legal protection within the UK. The registration of these historic parks and gardens is a 'material consideration' in the planning process meaning that planning	Grade II*	79
	Grade II	181	
Scheduled Monuments	Scheduled monuments are protected under the Ancient Monuments and Archaeological Areas Act 1979. The monuments are scheduled and recorded through Historic England, based on national importance and covering a diverse range of archaeological sites. Scheduled monuments are often in a ruinous or semi-ruinous condition or take on the form of earthworks. More complete structures of national significance are usually protected as listed buildings.	2929	
Conservation Areas	Conservation areas are designated by local planning authorities under their powers. The areas are protected to preserve special areas of historical and architectural importance and can range from small villages, town centres and residential areas. Each conservation area will have its own conservation area appraisal, which sets out how it should be protected.	1269	
Registered Battlefields	Historic England holds a Register of Historic Battlefields. Its purpose is to offer battlefields protection through the planning system, and to promote a better understanding of their significance and public enjoyment.	6	

It is likely that most of the Local Authorities in the WRE region will hold a Historic Environment Record (HER), which is a database of archaeological sites, listed buildings and other historic buildings, and finds of historic objects. There are hundreds of entries on the HERs from churches and houses to roman coin finds and medieval finds. There is also potential for unidentified heritage assets and archaeological remains to be present within the region.

3.12 Landscape

The landscape across the WRE region is diverse and is made up of a mixture of lowlands and small hills. The WRE region also has a striking stretch of coastline, including the Norfolk and Suffolk coasts, and picturesque seaside villages. Agriculture plays an important role in the landscape, however the WRE region also has densely populated areas, such as Norwich, Cambridge and Ipswich.

National Character Areas (NCAs) divide England's landscape into 159 distinct areas and are defined by a unique combination of aspects such as landscape, biodiversity, geodiversity and economic activity²⁴. There are 22 NCAs within the WRE boundary.

National Parks are designated to protect their outstanding landscape and countryside, wildlife and cultural heritage. There is one National Park located within the Eastern region, which was designated in 1976. The Broads National Park is 303 square kilometres, most of which is in Norfolk, with over 200 kilometres of navigable waterways. There are seven rivers and 63 broads, mostly less than four metres deep. Thirteen broads are generally open to navigation, with a further three having navigable channels.²⁵

Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB) are protected to conserve and enhance their natural beauty and distinctiveness²⁶. There are four AONB within the WRE region which are detailed in **Table 3.12** and are mapped in Appendix B6.

AONB	Description
Lincolnshire Wolds	The Lincolnshire Wolds is a peaceful and expansive landscape; unlike some AONBs with large tracts of wild land, much of the area has been in intensive agricultural for centuries with the shift from sheep farming to cultivation through agricultural improvements from as early as the 1800's. The grasslands and abandoned chalk pits are an important habitat for rare flowers and insects and some areas of fine mixed woodland are managed to conserve their traditional oak, ash and hazel coppice.
Norfolk Coast	This long coastal strip incorporates the finest, remotest and wildest of Norfolk's renowned marsh coastlands. The coast is backed by gently rolling chalkland and glacial moraine including the distinctive 90-m high Cromer Ridge. Together the coastal habitats form an ecosystem of outstanding importance and National Nature Reserves within the area include the world-famous bird reserves, Titchwell and Cley Marshes, and Winterton Dunes, one of the country's finest dune systems. The Heritage Coast stretch is a Ramsar site, a Biosphere Reserve, a SSSI, a SPA and candidate SAC and Marine SAC.
Suffolk Coast and Heath	The Suffolk Coast and Heaths AONB is a low-lying coastal landscape of astonishing variety, stretching from the Stour estuary in the South to Kessingland in the North, covering a total of 403 square kilometres. It has a unique mixture of shingle beaches, crumbling cliffs, marshes, estuaries, heathland, forests and farmland. The AONB is also one of the most important wildlife areas in Britain, encompassing three National Nature Reserves, many Sites of Special Scientific Interest and the RSPB's Minsmere Reserve. The mudflats and creeks of the AONB's estuaries contain wildlife wetland sites of national and international importance, whilst the wild, sandy stretches of ancient open heathland such as the Sandlings are a refuge for nightjar, woodlark, and rare heath butterflies.
Dedham Vale	The designated area of the AONB is just 90 kilometres square and stretches upstream from Manningtree to within one mile of Bures. The landscape quality of the remainder of the Stour Valley is often as high and representations to extend the AONB continue. As much of East Anglia's traditional grasslands have already been drained and ploughed for arable farming, the hedgerows and wildflower meadows of the Dedham Vale AONB are among some of England's most precious and vulnerable pastoral landscapes.

Table 3.11: AONB within the WRE region

²⁴ Natural England (2014). NCAs. Available at: <u>https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-character-area-profiles-data-for-local-decision-making</u>

²⁵ The Broads, England. Living Lakes Partnership 1998-2005, 2006:

https://web.archive.org/web/20051023224442/http://www.livinglakes.org/broads/

²⁶ Natural England (AONBs): designation and management. Available at: <u>https://www.gov.uk/guidance/areas-of-outstanding-natural-beauty-aonbs-designation-and-management</u>

Tranquillity

3.12.1 Tranquillity is recognised as a natural resource and one which is beneficial to health and wellbeing, however infrastructure and development is putting more pressure on this special quality. The Campaign for Rural England (CPRE) has developed a tranquillity map for England to show the range of undisturbed or disturbed tranquillity areas across the country. There are areas of high tranquillity (undisturbed areas) distributed throughout Eastern England, as well as pockets of urban areas.

3.13 Material assets

- 3.13.1 The Essex & Suffolk Water area has an extensive transport network which connects people, places and services both within the region and beyond to support the regional and national economy. It supports gateways for international trade with the UK's London Stansted Airport, and the UK's busiest container port, Felixstowe and the Ports of Ipswich and Harwich. The Port of Felixstowe is Britain's biggest and busiest container port, and one of the largest in Europe. Around 17 shipping lines operate from Felixstowe, offering 33 services to and from over 700 ports around the world.
- 3.13.2 In the wider WRE region the M1 passes through the west, starting just north of London and proceeding north toward Leicester. Two other small stretches of motorway run through East Anglia, with the end of the M11 south of Cambridge and sections of the A1 in Cambridgeshire and around Peterborough being classed as motorway. Main trunk routes maintained by Highways England in the region include the A1, A11, A12, A14 and A47. A variety of other major roads run through the region, maintained by county councils.

Resource Use and Waste

3.13.3 In 2018/19 the total amount of local authority managed waste was 25.6 million tonnes. Eastern England managed 2.9 million tonnes of waste in 2018/2019, with nearly half (47.8%) of this collected waste sent for recycling, 33% sent to incineration, 14% sent to landfill and the remaining 2.4% fell within the 'other' category. The recycling rate for Eastern England was the second highest in England, with only the South West (49.9%) performing better.

3.14 Natural Capital

The WRE region contains a diverse range of Natural Capital stocks that provide a 3.14.1 range of ecosystem services at the national, regional and local levels. The landscape is a mixture of coastal area, lowlands and small hills that contain all eight broad habitat types included within the United Kingdom's National Ecosystem Assessment (UK NEA). The UK NEA reports, first published in 2011 with follow-on reports published in 2014, set out the direct relationships between healthy, functioning ecosystems and human well-being and economic prosperity. The findings, which included extensive research from hundreds of natural scientists, economists, social scientists and other stakeholders, explained that many of the UK's ecosystems are in a state of decline, and that it is critically important for decision-making processes to recognise the benefits that society receives from those ecosystems. Anthropogenic pressures, such as agricultural intensification and population growth, threaten the functioning of those ecosystems, with the report citing a significant decline in the UK's semi-natural grasslands in the last 60 years due to agriculture, as well as a similar decline in coastal margin habitats due to development and coastal squeeze. It is an imperative for the WRE assessment process to recognise the current state and benefits derived from its ecosystems. It is also important to recognise that the WRE region contains several key abiotic stocks including fertile soils and coastal shelves, which also directly benefit society.

3.14.2 The land cover percentages for Natural Capital stocks within the WRE region have been estimated using open source data and are provided below. Estimates for coastal and marine land cover were not available, however these habitats will be included in the Natural Capital baseline for the options assessments and wider IEA process.

Soils and geology

3.14.3 Information on soils stocks within the WRE region is provided in Appendix B4, Section 3.5 and **Table 4.1**. The WRE region contains nationally important stocks of soils.

Freshwater

3.14.4 Freshwater natural capital stocks cover approximately 1.7% of the WRE region. This encompasses all waterbodies and wetlands such as rivers, ponds, fens, marshes and bogs. Within the WRE region artificial freshwater habitats, such as canals and reservoirs are also an important natural capital stock. These natural capital stocks are vital to support the region's biodiversity and provide other ecosystem services such as water supply, climate regulation and cultural services

Farmland

3.14.5 Farmland natural capital stocks cover approximately 73.3% of the WRE region, agriculture with cereal and livestock grazing being the most predominant type of farming. Examples of types of Farmland stocks include Arable and rotational leys, Horticulture, Improved grassland, Orchards and top fruit and Permanent pasture. In addition to the primary production of agricultural products, farmland provides many other services such as supporting biodiversity and providing cultural and heritage services.

Grasslands

3.14.6 Grassland natural capital stocks cover approximately 4.1% of the WRE region and include predominately semi natural grasslands. These habitats provide key services supporting biodiversity, sequestering carbon and mitigating climate change and livestock production. In addition, this stock is associated with recreation and physical benefits.

Urban

3.14.7 Urban natural capital stocks cover approximately 13.5% of the WRE region and include greenspace, blue space and mosaic habitats within urban areas. These natural capital stocks provide a wide range of ecosystem services supporting a diverse array of plants and animals and can be particularly important for pollination services. Amenity greenspaces (parks, outdoor sports facilities) are vital for community cohesion, and the mental and physical health of urban residents.

Woodland

3.14.8 Woodland natural capital stocks cover approximately 6.2% of the WRE region and consist of several sub habitat types including Broadleaved, mixed and yew woodland, Coniferous woodland, Individual trees/veteran trees and Woodland priority habitats. The quality of woodland stocks vary within the region as the majority is under management however several high-quality stocks include ancient woodland. These stocks provide services such as carbon sequestration, air purification and flood prevention.

Coastal and marine

- 3.14.9 Coastal and marine habitats cover a small proportion of the land cover within the WRE region however include several key habitats and natural capital stocks such as:
 - Beach
 - Salt marsh
 - Sand dunes
 - Intertidal rock
 - Intertidal sediment
 - Reefs
 - Sea grass beds
 - Shallow subtidal sediment.
- 3.14.10 These stocks support a range of services including reaction, cultural service, hazard prevention and climate regulation.

Future baseline

- The SEA Regulations requires that "the relevant aspects of the current state of the environment and the likely evolution thereof without implementation of the Plan or Programme" is identified. Prediction of future trends is difficult because they depend on a wide range of global, national and regional factors and decision making. Key trends have been identified and from an initial review it is likely that the following trends of aspects influencing change will continue:
- Climatic factors the climate is expected to continue to change with annual average temperatures projected to increase, particularly in summer. Winters are projected to be wetter and summers drier. Carbon and other GHG emissions will continue to be emitted, however regulations and legislation will likely continue to promote the reduction in emissions through commitments to net zero. The water industry in the UK is aiming to become net zero by 2030.
- Material assets regeneration and future investment and demand are likely to increase the number and quality of material assets such as housing, transport infrastructure, waste facilities, and community facilities.

3.15 Key issues for the WRE Regional Plan:

- Biodiversity, flora and fauna habitats and species are likely to continue to be
 protected through UK legislation. England's wildlife habitats have become
 increasingly fragmented and isolated, leading to declines in the provision of some
 ecosystem services, and losses to species populations. Lawton (2010) recognises
 that future climate change, demographic change, economic growth, new
 technologies, societal preferences and changes in policy and regulatory
 environments may all have profound consequences. However, new legislation such
 as the Environment Act continues protection of biodiversity by providing a
 framework for a legally binding target of net gain within the planning system.
- Population and human health water available for consumptive use may be affected by climate change whereby access to water is limited through more frequent droughts or floods. Population is projected to increase in the region and life expectancy is also higher than the nation average meaning that the numbers of elderly residents are likely to increase. As such, water demand will increase, and further pressure will be placed on water resources within the region.
- Soil as the population increases it is likely that more brownfield land will be remediated and developed. There is potential for a loss of agricultural land through development pressures.

 Water - the region is already water-stressed and in a negatively affected state. Projected economic and population growth will likely place further pressure on the region's water resources and water dependent environments. Water quality is likely to continue to be maintained and improved through legislation such as the WFD. There is potential for an increased need for wastewater treatments as a result of WFD water quality standards combined with population increase. Given the energy intensity of wastewater treatment, the water industry CO2 emissions may increase and further contribute to climate change. Climate change is projected to result in more extreme weather events, potentially causing or exacerbating periods of drought which alongside population and economic growth will impact water availability.

3.16 Wider issues:

- 3.16.1 Air quality new development, economic growth and tourism may lead to increased car journeys and congestion within the area leading to localised air quality effects. Public transport improvements, national air quality targets and European emissions standards for new vehicles should contribute to reducing future air quality impacts from motor vehicles.
- 3.16.2 Historic environment Historic England recently reported that heritage assets at risk are decreasing. There are now 87 fewer heritage assets at risk than in 2018 with successes in buildings and structures and archaeology. Historic assets will likely continue to be protected through European and UK legislation. Development could put pressure on heritage assets and their setting.

4

Key Environmental Issues and Opportunities

The SEA Regulations require:

2. Consideration of 'any existing environmental problems which are relevant to the plan or programme including, in particular, those relating to any areas of particular environmental importance, such as areas designated pursuant to Council Directive 79/409/EEC on the conservation of wild birds (a) and the Habitats Directive'

SEA Regulations Schedule 2 (4)

4.1 Scoping: Issues and Opportunities

- 4.1.1 A key stage in the scoping process is to decide what topics are relevant for the ESW WRMP SEA and what topics (if any) should be scoped out. It is considered that all the SEA Regulations topics are relevant to the WRMP and therefore they have all been scoped in, as presented in **Table 4.1**, which also provides an overview of the key issues and opportunities relevant to each SEA Regulations topic.
- 4.1.2 Topics were scoped in based on the baseline situation and the potential for the ESW WRMP24 to impact them. This was assessed by reviewing baseline conditions and current environmental issues for the Essex & Suffolk Water area and assessing the likelihood of a potential impact.

Implications

Opportunities

OLA TOPIO	ocopea m	Implicatione	opportunities
Biodiversity, Flora and Fauna	Yes	The Essex & Suffolk Water area is rich in habitats and species diversity, and includes national and internationally designated sites including SSSIs, NNRs, SPAs, SACs and Ramsar sites. Development of new water infrastructure can directly or indirectly affect designated and non-designated sites, habitats and species through loss of land, disturbance and damage. There is potential for the options within the ESW WRMP24 to result in surface and/or groundwater pollution which could have an impact on wildlife. Wetland and marsh habitat rely on water,	 The ESW WRMP24 should ensure that there are no negative impacts on biodiversity and should look to enhance biodiversity and achieve biodiversity net gain where possible. There are opportunities to include options which result in improvements to the natural environment and biodiversity net gain through habitat creation or enhancement, support Nature Recovery Networks and Strategies, connectivity of ecological networks to increase species resilience and introduction of vegetation to slow run-off and reduce flood risk, amongst others. Protect, conserve and enhance biodiversity losses/declines Protect sensitive chalk stream habitats

Table 4.1: Key Issues and Opportunities

SEA Tonic Sconod in

SEA Topic	Scoped in	Implications	Opportunities
		the ESW WRMP24 should ensure that it does not affect these areas through over abstraction and should look for opportunities to reduce abstraction pressure where cost effective and possible.	 Integrate biodiversity into new infrastructure
Soil	Yes	Agriculture has a dominant role in the landscape of the Essex & Suffolk Water area. Agriculture land of Grade 2 and 3 are the most common across the region. The options within the ESW WRMP24 have the potential to result in a loss of agricultural land or through a reduction in water availability for agricultural processes. There is also potential for soil contamination through the construction phase.	 Soil is an important natural resource and as such the ESW WRMP24 should consider the impact of options on the soil stocks and avoid options which have significant negative effects. The options within the ESW WRMP24 should avoid impacts on agricultural land of Grade 1 and 2 if possible, and mitigation should be included where impacts are unavoidable. There are opportunities for the options to positively affect agriculture, for example options to increase raw water storage and supply: Promote regenerative agricultural practices Prioritise the implementation of catchment management solutions to help manage soils, increase soil health and reduce impacts of waterbodies Ensure measures are taken to prevent soil erosion Reduce nutrient loads within surface water and groundwater bodies
Water	Yes	Phosphate and physical modifications are the most common pressures affecting the achievement of 'Good' status. The significant water management issues which are most common in affecting the achievement of 'Good' are pollution from wastewater, physical modifications and pollution from town, cities or rural areas. There is potential for the options within the ESW WRMP24 to have a negative impact on water quality. Areas of the region are at high risk of flooding from both surface water and rivers and the sea There is potential that the options within the WRMP could be	The ESW WRMP24 should avoid options which have a negative impact on water quality or ecology. Options which reduce pressures on the water environment should be explored. WFD will be considered during the optioneering process to contribute to the selection of options which could lead to WFD improvements or avoid WFD deterioration. The ESW WRMP24 has the opportunity to improve the environment by leaving more water in the region's rivers, streams and underground sources. The options within the ESW WRMP24 should avoid areas at high risk of flooding and, where appropriate, implement measures to reduce flood risk:

SEA Topic	Scoped in	Implications	Opportunities
		affected by or contribute to an increased risk of flooding.	 Ensure the protection, improvement and sustainable use of waterbodies Avoid, control or reduce water pollution Leave more water in the natural environment Beduce or mitigate flood risk
Air	Yes	Air quality in the region is varied. Generally, it is good, however there are some areas designated as AQMAs. Air pollution sources include transport and industry. The options within the ESW WRMP24 have the potential to impact air quality. This could include the generation of air pollutants from treatment plants and there is also likely to be effects from the construction phase.	There is potential for the ESW WRMP24 to mitigate any increases in air pollutants as a result of the options and improve air quality in the region. • Improve air quality
Climatic Factors	Yes	The Essex & Suffolk Water area is projected to have hotter and drier summers, and wetter and warmer winters, as well as short duration "extreme weather events" such as thunderstorms and heatwaves. There is potential that this could affect water availability through increases in periods of drought. There is also potential for options within the ESW WRMP24 to result in carbon emissions during the construction and operation phase which will further contribute to climate change.	 The ESW WRMP24 has the opportunity to consider the impact of climate change within the option selection process. Measures to increase the resilience of the option to a changing climate could also be considered. The options should also consider the impact on climate change through the optioneering and design processes. The ESW WRMP24 has the opportunity to address the impacts of climate change on demand for water and how much is available, and to increase the region's resilience to severe drought and other extreme events and stresses: Increase resilience to climate change, including the resilience of resource, infrastructure and the environment Reduce contribution to climate change Ensure zero net emissions Promote nature-based solutions and restore habitats to offset and sequester carbon within the Essex & Suffolk region, while also achieving biodiversity net gains
Landscape	Yes	The Essex & Suffolk Water area's landscape is diverse and there are important landscapes	Consideration of the impacts of the landscape should be considered as part of the option development. There is

SEA Topic	Scoped in	Implications	Opportunities
		within the region, including AONBs. There is potential for the options within the ESW WRMP24 to have an impact on the landscape. This could include temporary construction effects and permanent effects associated with infrastructure which could affect visual amenity or the character of the area.	 potential for the ESW WRMP24 to enhance the landscape. This may involve selecting certain materials or colours for the option or through planting or habitat creation: Ensure the protection of landscape character Enhance landscapes by working with stakeholders through habitat creation, implementation of catchment- based solutions and safeguarding existing habitats.
Historic Environment	Yes	The Essex & Suffolk Water area is rich in heritage and contains many listed buildings, scheduled monuments, and registered parks and gardens, amongst others. The options within the ESW WRMP24 have the potential to directly or indirect impact the historic environment through effecting the asset's fabric or setting.	 The options within the ESW WRMP24 should consider the historic environment and minimise adverse effects: Protect archaeology Careful consideration to the siting of options to reduce effects on historic assets and their setting Encourage public awareness through promoting heritage sites
Population and Human Health	Yes	Population is expected to grow which will likely place additional pressure on the water environment within the region. Economic growth and climate change will also add to this pressure. Health within the region is generally good. The options within the ESW WRMP24 have the potential to result in temporary disturbance effects during the construction phase. There is also potential for impacts on the water or natural environment which could have impacts on recreation and wellbeing.	There is an opportunity for the ESW WRMP24 to engage with the local community. The Essex & Suffolk WRMP could also look to maximise opportunities for recreation through enhancing access and the condition of the water environment, greenspaces or areas of the natural environment. Thus, improving the inclusivity of and connection to the local natural environment. The ESW WRMP24 also has the opportunity to ensure a resilient and reliable water supply for customers now and in the future, ensuring there is enough water for a growing population and to support economic growth. Ensure an economically sustainable water supply for customers. This may see the economic value of water increase and require a greater value to be assigned to water through increased charges and/ or seasonal water rates: Prevent disturbance effects for the local community

SEA Topic	Scoped in	Implications	Opportunities
			 Enhance the natural environment for recreation purposes Improve access to the natural environment for all members of the community Provide a resilient and reliable water supply for customers
Material Assets	Yes	The Essex & Suffolk Water area contains important transport links which could be affected during construction works. There is also significant water and wastewater treatment infrastructure across the region. The region produces and manages a significant amount of waste and there are over 100 authorised landfill sites. The ESW WRMP24 has the potential to increase the use of resources within the region and result in the generation of waste.	 The ESW WRMP24 has the opportunity to consider the use of resources within the option development and reduce the use of energy, materials and prevent waste generation: Reduce resource use Minimise waste generation Avoid impacts on the transport network Achieve required leakage reduction targets Reduce unplanned outages

4.2 Option Types: Issues and Opportunities

4.2.1 Appendix D presents key issues and opportunities identified for each of the different water resource supply and demand option types (as described in section 1.10) proposed for WRMP24 (**Appendices D.1 to D.16**).

5 SEA Framework

5.1 SEA Objectives

- 5.1.1 A key part of the SEA Scoping process is the development of the SEA Framework. The SEA Framework forms the basis for predicting and assessing the effects arising from the implementation of the ESW WRMP24 and will be used to assess the WRMP options and the preferred programme. An overarching set of SEA objectives and assessment questions to guide the assessment have been developed for the WRE regional plans. Essex & Suffolk Water will maintain similar SEA objectives for WRMP24 as outlined in the WRE regional plan. The reason for this is that the great majority of ESW WRMP24 options are located within the WRE region and following a consistent approach will enable the results of the regional plan options-level SEA results to be easily used as part of the ESW WRMP24 process. However, as ESW is part of Northumbrian Water Ltd it also needs to align with the SEA Objectives of WREN. For this reason the SEA objectives are not exactly the same as those used by WRE. The results of the HRA and WFD assessments will feed into the SEA objectives on biodiversity and water.
- 5.1.2 The compatibility of the ESW WRMP24 SEA objectives with the WRE regional plan SEA objectives is shown in **Table 5.1** below.

SEA Topics	ESW WRMP24 Objectives	WRE SEA Objectives
Biodiversity, Flora and Fauna	To protect and enhance biodiversity, ecological functions, capacity and habitat connectivity, including protecting designated sites and their qualifying features, priority species and priority habitats.	To protect designated sites and their qualifying features.
	To provide opportunities for habitat creation or restoration and deliver a net benefit / gain for biodiversity (BNG).	To deliver Biodiversity Net Gain, protect biodiversity, priority species and vulnerable habitats such as chalk rivers.
	To avoid introducing or spreading and, where feasible, manage invasive non-native species (INNS).	To avoid spreading and, where required, manage invasive and non- native species (INNS).
	To protect, conserve and enhance natural capital and the ecosystem services from natural capital to increase resilience to climate change.	To introduce climate mitigation where required and improve the climate resilience of assets and natural systems.
	To meet WFD objectives relating to biodiversity.	To meet WFD objectives relating to biodiversity
Soils	To protect geological and geomorphological features, and the functionality and quality of soils, including the protection of high-grade agricultural land.	To protect and enhance the functionality and quality of soils, including the protection of high-grade agricultural land, and geodiversity.
Water	To reduce or manage flood risk, taking climate change into account.	To reduce or manage flood risk, taking climate change into account.
	To enhance or maintain the quality of surface and groundwater waterbodies.	To enhance or maintain surface water quality, flows and quantity.
	To enhance or maintain surface water flows and quantity and groundwater resources.	To enhance or maintain groundwater quality and resources.

Table 5.1: ESW WRMP24 SEA and WRE regional SEA objectives compatibility

SEA Topics	ESW WRMP24 Objectives	WRE SEA Objectives
	To meet WFD objectives and support the achievement of environmental objectives set out in River Basin Management Plans.	To meet WFD objectives and support the achievement of environmental objectives set out in River Basin Management Plans.
	To increase water efficiency and increase resilience of water supplies and natural systems to droughts.	To increase water efficiency and increase resilience of water supplies and natural systems to droughts.
Air	To reduce and minimise air emissions during construction and operation.	To reduce and minimise air emissions during construction and operation.
Climate	To minimise or reduce embodied and operational carbon and greenhouse gas emissions.	To minimise/reduce embodied and operational carbon emissions
	To introduce climate mitigation where required and improve the climate resilience of assets and natural systems to the threats of climate change.	To introduce climate mitigation where required and improve the climate resilience of assets and natural systems.
Landscape & Visual amenity	To conserve, protect and enhance landscape and townscape character and visual amenity.	To conserve, protect and enhance landscape and townscape character and visual amenity.
Historic Environment	To conserve, protect and enhance the historic environment and heritage assets, and their settings, including archaeologically important sites.	To conserve/protect and enhance historic environment and heritage assets, and their setting, including archaeologically important sites.
Population and Human Health	To maintain and enhance the health and wellbeing of the local community, including economic and social wellbeing.	To maintain and enhance the health and wellbeing of the local community, including economic and social wellbeing.
	To secure resilient, high quality, sustainable and affordable water supplies over the long term for the health and wellbeing of the community.	To secure resilient water supplies for the health and wellbeing of the community.
	To increase access and connect customers to the natural environment, provide education or information resources for the public.	To increase access and connect customers to the natural environment, provide education or information resources for the public.
	To maintain and enhance the water environment for other users including recreation, tourism and navigation.	Maintain and enhance tourism and recreation.
Material assets	To reduce, and make more efficient, the consumption of resources, and minimise the generation of waste.	Minimise resource use and waste production.
	Avoid negative effects on built assets and infrastructure	Avoid negative effects on built assets and infrastructure.

5.2 Assessment Criteria

Table 5.2 presents the proposed assessment criteria that will form the assessment framework for the options and WRMP24 assessment.

Table 5.2: SEA assessment criteria for ESW WRMP24

SEA Topic	Proposed SEA Objectives	Assessment Questions/Sub- Themes
Biodiversity, flora and fauna	To protect and enhance biodiversity, ecological functions, capacity and habitat connectivity, including protecting designated sites and their qualifying features, priority species and priority habitats. To provide opportunities for habitat creation or restoration and deliver a net benefit / gain for biodiversity (BNG). To avoid introducing or spreading and, where feasible, manage invasive non-native species (INNS). To protect, conserve and enhance natural capital and the ecosystem services from natural capital to increase resilience to climate change. To meet WFD objectives relating to biodiversity.	 Is the option likely to affect the conservation status of any SPA, SACs, Ramsar sites, SSSI or locally designated sites? Will the option provide opportunities to enhance and provide climate change resilience of water dependent Natura 2000 sites/ features? Will the option protect and enhance aquatic habitats and species, including freshwater fisheries and chalk rivers? Will the option affect the marine environment, habitats and species (including Marine Conservation Areas (MCZ) and Marine Protection Areas (MPA))? Is the option likely to affect ancient woodland, Section 41 of the NERC act habitats and species of principal importance for the purpose of conserving biodiversity? Will the option affect any habitats that support legally protected species or species of conservation concern? Is there potential for contribution to achieving 'favourable' conservation status or for creation of new priority habitats? Is the option likely to have an impact on a current or future Nature Recovery Network? Are there any opportunities for habitat creation or restoration? Will the option contribute to the loss or gain in habitat connectivity? Is there a possibility for INNS to be spread/ introduced or for algal blooms to occur? Is there an opportunity to improve biodiversity value through removal of
Soil	To protect geological and geomorphological features, and the functionality and quality of soils, including the protection of high- grade agricultural land.	 Will the option affect high grade agricultural land? Will the option promote the efficient use of land? Will the option prevent soil erosion and retain soil stocks as a natural resource? Will the option promote soil health? Will the option involve use of brownfield or greenfield land? Will the option prevent mineral sterilisation? Will the option affect soil contamination or involve remediation? Is the option likely to affect geodiversity, including SSSIs of geological importance? Will the option prevent nutrient loading in water bodies?
THE STATES	taking climate change into account.	Will the option contribute to or reduce the risk of flooding?

SEA Topic	Proposed SEA Objectives	Assessment Questions/Sub- Themes	
		• Will the option mitigate flood risk? (i.e., attenuation of flows through NFM, catchment storage etc.) (Flooding include fluvial, marine, surface and groundwater)	
	To enhance or maintain the quality of surface and groundwater waterbodies.	 Will the option affect surface water quality or quantity? Will the option affect ground water quality or quantity? Is the option likely to contribute to or conflict with the achievement of WFD objectives? 	
	To enhance or maintain surface water flows and quantity and groundwater resources.	 Will the option affect shellfish water protected areas? Will the option affect chalk rivers and streams? Will the option affect raw water quality? Will the option reduce the flashy nature of surface waters? Will the option slow the flow in upper catchments and reduce soil losses to river systems? Will the option comply with flow targets? 	
	To meet WFD objectives and support the achievement of environmental objectives set out in River Basin Management Plans. To increase water efficiency and increase resilience of water supplies and natural systems to droughts.	 Does the option provide a reliable and sustainable water supply which meets changing demand? Will the option protect and enhance the environmental resilience of the water environment to climate change, flood risk and drought? Does the option reduce the presence of containments in waterbodies, and make 	
Air	To reduce and minimise air emissions during construction and operation.	 more water available to the environment? Is the option in an air quality management area (AQMA)? Will the option affect local air quality? 	
Climatic Factors	To minimise or reduce embodied and operational carbon and greenhouse gas emissions.	 Will the option affect carbon or other greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions? Is there potential for the option to incorporate climate mitigation measures to reduce its carbon footprint, such as lower embodied carbon or incorporating renewable energy? Will the option affect carbon sequestration? 	
	To introduce climate mitigation where required and improve the climate resilience of assets and natural systems to the threats of climate change.	 Is the option vulnerable to climate change effects? Does the option include climate resilience measures? Will the option create catchment resilience to drought? 	
Landscape & Visual Amenity	To conserve, protect and enhance landscape and townscape character and visual amenity.	 Will the option have an effect on the character of the landscape, townscape or seascape, including tranquillity and views? Will the option improve access to the countryside? Will the option create or improve green infrastructure which contributes to access to the landscape? 	

47

SEA Topic	Proposed SEA Objectives	Assessment Questions/Sub- Themes	
		 Will the option protect and enhance designated landscapes and features? 	
Historic Environment	To conserve, protect and enhance the historic environment and heritage assets, and their settings, including archaeologically important sites.	 Will the option affect designated or non-designated historic assets, sites and features? Will the option affect the setting and/or significance of a historic asset? Will the option affect archaeology (including unknown archaeology)? Will the option affect heritage assets at risk? Will the option affect conservation areas or historic landscape/townscape areas? Will the option alter the hydrological conditions of water-dependent heritage assets, including organic remains? 	
Population and Human Health To maintain and enhance health and wellbeing of the community, including ecor social wellbeing. To secure resilient, high q sustainable and affordable supplies over the long terr health and wellbeing of the community. To increase access and co customers to the natural environment, provide educ information resources for the supplication resources for the including recreation, touris navigation.	To maintain and enhance the health and wellbeing of the local community, including economic and social wellbeing. To secure resilient, high quality, sustainable and affordable water supplies over the long term for the health and wellbeing of the	 Does the option promote water efficiency and encourage a reduction in water consumption? Will the option secure resilient water supplies for the health and wellbeing of customers? Will the option allow for economic development? Will the option allow for economic diversity? Will the option have an effect on active lifestyles, such as impacts on active travel through disruption to pedestrian 	
	community. To increase access and connect customers to the natural environment, provide education or information resources for the public.	 and cycle routes? Will the option affect Public Rights of Way? Will the option affect road or rail infrastructure? Will the option minimise disturbance from noise, light, visual, and transport? Will the local communities have been actively engaged to foster an inclusive environment and participate in decision makino? 	
	To maintain and enhance the water environment for other users including recreation, tourism and navigation.	 Will the option maintain or enhance tourism? Does the option improve access to the natural environment for recreation, including those living within deprived areas? Will the option have an effect on freshwater fisheries for recreational purposes? Will the option have an effect on marine fisheries for recreational purposes? 	
Material Assets	To reduce, and make more efficient, the consumption of resources, and minimise the generation of waste.	 Will the option reuse existing infrastructure? Will the option minimise the use of resources? Will the option reduce the production of waste? 	
	Avoid negative effects on built assets and infrastructure.	 Will the option affect built assets and infrastructure, including transport infrastructure? 	

6 Proposed Approach to the SEA

6.1 Overview of Environmental Assessment Approach

- 6.1.1 The proposed approach to the environmental assessments to support the ESW WRMP24 development will follow the WRPG and supplementary guidance. The following environmental assessments will be undertaken:
 - Strategic Environmental Assessment
 - Habitats Regulations Assessment
 - Water Framework Directive Assessment
 - Invasive Non-Native Species Risk Assessment
 - Natural Capital Assessment
 - Biodiversity Net Gain Assessment
- 6.1.2 The proposed methodology outlined in the sections below is aligned to the regional planning approach for environmental assessment. The WRE regional plan options assessments will form the basis of the ESW WRMP24 assessments. Environmental assessments will be updated based on additional local datasets and updated options information (where available).
- 6.1.3 To determine the environmental effects of the options and alternatives programmes for WRMP24, the following tasks are proposed:
 - Options level environmental assessments:
 - Review and update assessment undertaken as part of WRE for ESW WRMP24 with additional local level data and updated options information (if available).
 WRE assessments will also be translated into the ESW WRMP24 SEA objectives for consistency.
 - Assessment of new options network enhancement options and options under 10MI/d (for WRE) will not have been previously assessed as part of the regional planning.
 - Programme level environmental assessment of the draft ESW WRM24 (best value plan) and the alternative programmes (e.g., least cost plan) including cumulative and in-combination effects.

6.2 Options Level Environmental Assessments

- 6.2.1 As discussed in section 6.1, the options level environmental assessments will involve reviewing and updating assessments undertaken as part of the regional planning, and assessing new options using a consistent methodology. The proposed approach is summarised below.
- 6.2.2 An ESRI ArcGIS tool has been developed to store most of the environmental data required as part of the assessment process. To ensure consistency the data layers used for the regional planning are included in the GIS tool. Additional local datasets will also be included where available (e.g., local wildlife sites, housing allocations, mineral and waste allocations).

6.3 SEA

6.3.1 Each SEA objective has a set of defined datasets and a defined effect assessment and evaluation system using a qualitative scale of minor, moderate, major positive and minor, moderate, major negative, and neutral. The effects of each option will be

assessed using this scale and the evaluation set out through a narrative justification. The proposed datasets and definitions of scale of effect are presented in Appendix E and are consistent with the regional planning approach.

- 6.3.2 The regional plan option level SEAs will be reviewed and updated where required with additional local information or re-assessment where options have been further developed or changed. The mitigation and enhancement measures identified during regional assessments will be further developed with the options development team.
- 6.3.3 Options requiring new assessments or re-assessments (as discussed above) will utilise the GIS tool to identify key constraints and opportunities for each option. Professional judgement will then be applied to assess the impacts of the option, evaluate the effects and justify findings using the assessment criteria presented in Appendix E. The assessment will be split into construction effects and operational effects as these may be quite different and would not provide an accurate picture if they were combined. An option may have both positive and negative effects under a SEA objective, and rather than trading these effects to cancel each other out, both positive and negative effects will be reported to show that an option may have mixed effects.

6.4 HRA

- 6.4.1 The HRA is a statutory requirement in its own right, but also feeds into the SEA objective on biodiversity. The stages of HRA include the Test of Likely Significance (ToLS), Appropriate Assessment (AA) (if required from the ToLS), and consideration of alternatives (if the AA finds that effects on site integrity cannot be adequately mitigated).
- 6.4.2 The regional plan option level HRA ToLS will be reviewed and re-assessed if options have changed or further options information is available. Likewise, HRA AA will be reviewed and updated if required. The HRA process will be applied to any new options following the regulatory requirements and approach set out in the WRE²⁷ HRA method statements.

6.5 WFD

6.5.1 The WFD assessment is a statutory requirement in its own right, but also feeds into the SEA objective on water quality. The regional plan option level WFD assessments followed the ACWG WFD Assessment Guidelines which includes a Level I Basic Screening for Impact and a Level 2 Detailed Screening for Impact. The regional plan Level 1 and Level 2 WFD assessments will be reviewed and updated if required. The WFD process will be applied to any new options in line with the ACWG guidelines and WRE WFD method statement²⁸.

6.6 INNS

6.6.1 The tasks in the INNS assessment include: i) identify species present, ii) identify relevant pathways, iii) identify specific source pathway receptors, iv) assessment of risks. It will follow the approach set out in the WRE INNS method statement²⁹ aligning with the EA's most recently published methodology for risk assessment of SROs.

²⁷ WRE Regional Plan Integrated Environmental Assessment Scoping Report (2021) – Appendix F: HRA Method Statement. Available at: https://wre.org.uk/wpcontent/uploads/2021/01/WRE_IEAScopingReport_Final_6Jan21.pdf.pagespeed.ce.slkMX_wnbo.pdf

 ²⁸ WRE Regional Plan Integrated Environmental Assessment Scoping Report (2021) – Appendix G: WFD Assessment Method Statement. Available at: https://wre.org.uk/wp-

content/uploads/2021/01/WRE_IEAScopingReport_Final_6Jan21.pdf.pagespeed.ce.slkMX_wnbo.pdf ²⁹ WRE Regional Plan Integrated Environmental Assessment Scoping Report (2021) – Appendix H: INNS Method Statement. Available at: https://www.assessment.com/assessment/asse

Available at: https://wre.org.uk/wpcontent/uploads/2021/01/WRE_IEAScopingReport_Final_6Jan21.pdf.pagespeed.ce.slkMX_wnbo.pdf

6.6.2 The results of the INNS assessment will feed back into the SEA process under the biodiversity objective. For those assets or raw water transfer scenarios determined as high risk for the potential spread of INNS, a mitigation options appraisal will be conducted. This will involve reviewing known mitigation technologies and determining their effectiveness with regard to species type, transmission pathway and feasibility.

6.7 Natural capital assessment

- 6.7.1 The Natural Capital Assessment (NCA) undertaken for the regional planning involved defining and developing the natural capital baseline using open source data as described in NECR285³⁰ to generate a Natural Capital account of the stocks within the region. A NCA was undertaken for each feasible option that included assessments across the option footprint and zone of influence. The impact of each option on the Natural Capital stocks and indicators of condition was reported for each option quantitatively. This impact was reported for construction and post construction to give an estimation of the impact of the option's whole lifecycle. The results of the stock assessment were reported in total losses and gains within each option's zone of influence. The WRE NCA's assessments aligned with Defra's Enabling a Natural capital Approach (ENCA) this guidance was updated in 2021. This approach will be undertaken for the ESW WRMP24.
- 6.7.2 The results of the change in natural capital stocks informed the assessment against the ecosystem services listed below. During the initial phase of the NCA, all of the ecosystem services listed were reviewed and scoped in or out due to the geographical or socio-economic context of the option and its zone of influence. Five of the ecosystem services were monetised, however, water purification was assessed quantitatively. The ecosystem services used to assess the impact on natural capital included:
 - Carbon sequestration (Climate regulation)
 - Natural Hazard management
 - Water purification * Quantitative
 - Water Regulation
 - Biodiversity and Habitats * assessed separately through Biodiversity net gain
 - Air pollutant removal
 - Recreation & amenity value
 - Food production
- 6.7.3 The NCA undertaken for ESW WPMP24 options at the regional level will be reviewed and updated if required and any new options defined in 6.1.3 will follow the approach set out above. Options that do not require land use change will be scoped out of NCA.

6.8 Biodiversity Net Gain assessment

- 6.8.1 Biodiversity net gain or net loss must be considered at both the option and programme level. Each option should look to secure biodiversity net gain if required and any mitigation should be included in the option cost. The Water resources planning guideline supplementary guidance states that if there would be a significant additional cost for an option to get significant extra benefit, this could be included as a separate option for consideration. Options that do not require land use change will be scoped out of BNG assessment
- 6.8.2 As part of the regional planning a biodiversity baseline was developed from spatial data sets of habitats inventories and assessed broadly in line with the DEFRA BNG metric 3.0 which was used to calculate BNG change through land use of each option, this was

³⁰ Natural England (2020) National Natural Capital Atlas: Mapping Indicators

determined by the option boundary. The Natural Capital account was used to identify the biodiversity value of the footprint of each option prior to construction. The post construction land use was used to calculate the post construction biodiversity score. The BNG assessments undertaken for ESW WRMP24 options at the WRE regional level will be reviewed and updated if required and any new options will follow the approach set out above.

6.9 **Programme level environmental assessments**

- 6.9.1 A range of potential programmes will be developed for the ESW WRMP24 with the aim of selecting a Best Value Plan. The alternative programmes as well as the draft WRMP24 (Best Value Plan) will undergo environmental assessment to identify any cumulative and/or in-combination effects. If significant negative effects are identified, additional mitigation measures will be investigated or alternative options.
- 6.9.2 Through the natural capital and biodiversity net gain assessments the plan-wide implications and opportunities will be investigated to develop a plan that delivers environmental net gain.

6.10 Effects outside the Essex & Suffolk boundary

6.10.1 There is potential for effects outside the Essex & Suffolk area, for example, from transfer of water outside the area or from options close to the plan boundary with potential pathways affecting receptors outside the plan area. It is likely that SROs will cross boundaries. The baseline GIS database will include a buffer around the plan area so that additional receptors (such as designated sites) are captured and can be included in the assessments.

6.11 Influencing the development of the ESW WRMP24

- 6.11.1 As presented in the method sections above, the SEA and other environmental assessments will be an ongoing and iterative process throughout the WRMP24 development. However, there are some key decision-points for influencing the plan:
 - Regional plan assessments environmental assessments undertaken for the regional plans will flag the environmental effects of Essex & Suffolk Water options as well as potential mitigation and enhancement opportunities that can be further developed by Essex & Suffolk Water.
 - ESW WRMP24 options assessments and options design The option assessments will assess the positive and negative environmental effects of each option and will identify possible mitigation and enhancement measures that will be fed back to the options design teams. Options with major or moderate negative effects will need appropriate mitigation in order for them to be taken forward. Opportunities to maximise benefits will also be considered with the design teams.
 - ESW WRMP24 programme development and appraisal the results of the environmental assessments will feed into the selection of programme options for and Essex & Suffolk Water decision-making. Once WRMP24 alternative programmes are identified individual options within them will be reviewed and the cumulative effects assessed. If major or moderate negative cumulative effects are identified additional mitigation will be needed or alternative options or programmes will need to be considered.

7 Consultation and Next Steps

7.1 SEA scoping consultation

- 7.1.1 The SEA Scoping Report will be issued for a 5-week consultation period from XXXXXX to the three statutory bodies: The Environment Agency, Natural England and Historic England, as well as being made available to wider stakeholders.
- 7.1.2 The WRE process and SEA objectives have been consulted upon over the last year. Therefore, at this stage Essex & Suffolk Water would welcome your views on the SEA Scoping Report on the following key questions:
 - 1. Do you have any comments on the baseline information presented or any additional baseline information you think would be useful?
 - 2. Do you have any comments on the key issues and opportunities identified?
 - 3. Do you have any comments on the proposed SEA objectives and assessment questions/sub-themes?
 - 4. Do you have any comments on the overall approach and environmental assessment methodology?
- 7.1.3 Following the Scoping Report consultation period, all consultation responses will be carefully reviewed and tabulated, and considered as far as possible. Details of how the scoping stage consultation has been considered, alongside the results of the SEA assessment, will be presented in the Environmental Report.

7.2 Next steps

Structure of the

7.2.1 Following the Scoping consultation, SEA Stage B (the assessment stage – see **Figure 1.2** and Appendix C will be undertaken. The options within the ESW WRMP24 and the cumulative effects will be assessed against the SEA objectives. The findings will be presented in the ESW WRMP24 Environmental Report. The proposed structure and content for the Environmental Report is presented in **Table 7.1**

Environmental Report	
Non-technical summary	 Summary of the SEA process Summary of the likely significant effects of the WRMP24 Statement on the difference the process has made to date How to comment on the report
Methodology used	 Approach adopted in the SEA Who was consulted and when Difficulties encountered in compiling information or carrying out the assessment
Background	 Purpose of the SEA Objectives and context of the ESW WRMP24

Table 7.1: Environmental Report – proposed structure and content

Information to include

Structure of the Environmental Report	Information to include
SEA Objectives, Baseline and Context	 Summary of the scoping stage: Plans and programmes review and implications for the ESW WRMP24 and SEA Description of the baseline characteristics and the predicted future baseline Environmental issues and opportunities Limitations of the data, assumptions made SEA Framework
ESW WRMP24 Options Assessment	 Description of options Assessment of environmental effects Proposed mitigation measures and enhancement opportunities As there is a potential for effects outside the Essex & Suffolk Water area, the baseline GIS database will include a 20km buffer around the regional plan are so that additional receptors (such as designated sites) are captured and can be included in the assessment. Any options that fall outside that area will also be assessed (Appendix B5)
ESW WRMP24 Cumulative Assessment	Assessment of cumulative effectsUncertainties and risks
Implementation	 Links to other tiers of plans and programmes and the project level Proposals for monitoring

- 7.2.2 The SEA Environmental Report will be issued for public consultation alongside the draft ESW WRMP24 in late 2022. Comments received on the SEA will be recorded in a log and addressed in the final SEA Environmental Report. Any significant alterations to the ESW WRMP24 as a result of the consultation will be assessed in terms of their environmental implications and influence on the revision of the WRMP. The final SEA Environmental Report will be amended as necessary to reflect any changes.
- 7.2.3 Following adoption of the ESW WRMP24, a Post-Adoption statement will be produced which outlines how the SEA process has influenced the development of WRMP, how consultation comments were taken into consideration and how the WRMP will be monitored. This summary will provide enough information to make it clear how the ESW WRMP24 was influenced (if at all) as a result of the SEA process and consultation.
- 7.2.4 Stage E 'Monitoring implementation of the plan' of the SEA process will be carried out by Essex & Suffolk Water. It is likely that monitoring of the ESW WRMP24 will be incorporated with the annual monitoring process. Monitoring proposals will be developed as part of the SEA process and presented in the SEA Environmental Report.

Review of Relevant Policies, Plans and Programmes Α.

Policy, Plan or Programme	Торіс	Key objectives, guidance and references
International		
Bern Convention on the Conservation of European Wildlife and Natural Habitats (1979)	Biodiversity	The aims are to conserve wild flora and fauna and their natural habitats and to promote European cooperation. Particular importance is placed on the n and endangered vulnerable species, including migratory species.
Bonn Convention on the Conservation of Migratory Species of Wild Animals (1983)	Biodiversity	The Convention aims to conserve terrestrial, aquatic and avian migratory species throughout their range.
Convention on Biological Diversity (1992)	Biodiversity	The Biodiversity Convention has three main aims which are to conserve biological diversity; to ensure the sustainable use of the components of biologic of the benefits arising out of the utilization of genetic resources.
Ramsar Convention - The Convention on Wetlands of International Importance (1971)	Biodiversity	Provides the framework for national action and international cooperation for the conservation and wise use of wetlands and their resources. The aim is ' through local and national actions and international cooperation, as a contribution towards achieving sustainable development throughout the world'. Th types of wetlands covered, including lakes and rivers, swamps and marshes, wet grasslands and peatlands, oases, estuaries, deltas and tidal flats, nea reefs, and human-made sites such as fishponds, rice paddies, reservoirs, and salt pans.
UN Framework Convention on Climate Change (1992)	Climatic Factors	The stated objective is to achieve stabilisation of greenhouse gas concentrations in the atmosphere at a level that would prevent dangerous anthropoge parties should protect the climate system for the benefit of present and future generations of humankind, on the basis of equity and in accordance with t and respective capabilities.
Kyoto Protocol to the UN Framework Convention on Climate Change (1997)	Climatic Factors	The Kyoto Protocol was adopted in 1997 and ratified in 2005. It commits its parties to limit climate change by setting internationally binding targets for en GHGs, it required the UK to reduce emissions by 12.5% in the first commitment period (2008-2012). This was successfully achieved, and a second com European Union (EU) countries will aim to achieve a joint 20% reduction compared to 1990 levels.
Commitments arising from the World Summit on Sustainable Development, Johannesburg (2002)	Climatic Factors	Adopted at the World Summit on Sustainable Development in 2002 and built upon earlier declarations made at previous conferences and summits. It corresponsibility to build a human, equitable and caring global society cognisant of the need for human dignity for all. The Declaration also reinforces the the environmental, economic and social development at the local, national, regional and global level.
Paris Agreement (2015)	Climatic Factors	The Paris Agreement came out of the COP21 and aims to limit global temperature rises to 1.5°C to 2°C above pre-industrial levels. It brings together 19 common cause and requires all parties to put forward nationally determined contributions to strengthen efforts in the years ahead. It also aims to strengt impacts of climate change.
Charter for the Protection and Management of Archaeological Heritage (1990)	Historic Environment	The charter lays down principles relating to the different aspects of archaeological heritage management. These include the responsibilities of public aut the professional performance of the processes of inventorisation, survey, excavation, documentation, research, maintenance, conservation, preservatio public access and use of the heritage, and the qualification of professionals involved in the protection of the archaeological heritage. The Charter states archaeological heritage should constitute an integral component of policies relating to land use, development, and planning as well as of cultural, enviro
The World Heritage Convention (1972)	Historic Environment	The Convention defines the kind of natural or cultural sites which can be considered for inscription on the World Heritage List. It also sets out the duties role in preserving them.
Convention on Access to Information, Public Participation in Decision-making and Access to Justice in Environmental Matters (Aarhus Convention) (1998)	Population and Human Health	The Aarhus Convention was created to give empowerment to citizens and civil society organisations in relation to environmental matters and is founded It provides for access to environmental information; public participation in environmental decision making; and access to justice.
European ³¹		
Ambient Air Quality Directive (2008/50/EC)	Air	It establishes ambitious, cost-effective targets for improving human health and environmental quality up to 2020. The EU objective on air quality is 'to ac unacceptable impacts on, and risks to, human health and the environment'.
Thematic Strategy on Air Pollution (2005)	Air	The Strategy recognises the impact of air pollution on human health and the environment. It establishes interim objectives for air pollution in the EU and achieving them.
Establishing measures for the recovery of the stock of European eel 2007 (1100/2007)	Biodiversity	Advice from the International Council for the Exploration of the Sea (ICES) in 2006 indicated that the stock of the European eel (<i>Anguilla anguilla</i>) is out waters. The population has declined significantly, reducing to 5% of the original 1980s stock levels. In response to this advice, the European Union adopt which requires Member States to undertake a series of measures aimed at the recovery of eel stock. The goal is to achieve 40% escapement of adult eranthropogenic factors, to sea to spawn. The EU Regulation was transposed into UK law under The Eels (England and Wales) Regulations 2009. Eleven Eel Management Plans have been prepared, one for each River Basin identified in England and Wales. The plans outline the current situation arequired by the European Regulation. Such measures include a reduction in fishing pressure, improving access and habitat quality, and reducing the imprevent the installation of passes at obstructions and screens at abstraction and discharge points that prevent the migration of eels.

need to protect endangered natural habitats

cal diversity; and the fair and equitable sharing

'the conservation and wise use of all wetlands he Convention uses a broad definition of the ar-shore marine areas, mangroves and coral

enic interference with the climate system. The their common but differentiated responsibilities

emission reductions. Covering the six main nmitment period has been agreed whereby

ommits nations to take a collective hree pillars of sustainable development:

96 parties from across the world into a then the ability of countries to deal with the

thorities and legislators, principles relating to on, reconstruction, information, presentation, s that policies for the protection of onmental and educational policies.

s of states in identifying potential sites and their

d on the principles of participative democracy.

chieve levels of air quality that do not result in

proposes appropriate measures for

tside safe biological limits across European pted Council Regulation (EC) No 1100/2007, eels, relative to that in absence of

and how we intend to achieve the targets npacts of entrainment. The measures that will

³¹ It is acknowledged that the UK has left the European Union. However, European law and policy has formed the basis for UK environmental laws and contributed to the direction of UK policy in these areas for many years. As such, they are considered to remain a useful contextual frame as part of the policies, plans and programmes review.

Policy, Plan or Programme	Торіс	Key objectives, guidance and references
Our life insurance, our natural capital: an EU biodiversity strategy to 2020 (2011)	Biodiversity	Strategy to halt the loss of biodiversity and ecosystem services in the EU by 2020. There are six main targets and 20 actions to help Europe reach its got Full implementation of EU nature legislation to protect biodiversity Better protection for ecosystems, and more use of green infrastructure More sustainable agriculture and forestry Better management of fish stocks Tighter controls on invasive alien species A bigger EU contribution to averting global biodiversity loss The strategy is in line with two commitments made by EU leaders in March 2010. The first is the 2020 headline target: 'Halting the loss of biodiversity and the degradation of ecosystem services in the EU by 2020, and restoring them in so far as feasible, while stepping up biodiversity loss'; the second is the 2050 vision: 'By 2050, European Union biodiversity and the ecosystem services it provides – its natural capital – are p for biodiversity's intrinsic value and for their essential contribution to human wellbeing and economic prosperity, and so that catastrophic changes caused
Fresh Water Fish Directive (2006/44/EC)	Biodiversity	The Directive concerns the quality of fresh waters and shall apply to those waters designated by the Member States as needing protection or improveme shall not apply to waters in natural or artificial fishponds used for intensive fish-farming.
Directive on the Conservation of Wild Birds (79/409/EEC) (as amended)	Biodiversity	Directive 2009/147/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council of 30 November 2009 on the conservation of wild birds (this is the codified version Directive ensures far-reaching protection for all of Europe's wild birds, identifying 194 species and sub-species among them as particularly threatened an There are a number of components to this scheme: Member States are required to designate SPAs for 194 particularly threatened species and all migratory bird species. SPAs are scientifically identified a species, such as wetlands. They are part of the Natura 2000 ecological network set up under the Habitats Directive 92/43/EEC. A second component bans activities that directly threaten birds, such as the deliberate killing or capture of birds, the destruction of their nests and taking
		such as trading in live or dead birds (with a few exceptions). A third component establishes rules that limit the number of bird species that can be hunted (82 species and subspecies) and the periods during which methods which are permitted (e.g., non-selective hunting is banned).
Directive on the Conservation of Natural Habitats and of Wild Flora and Fauna (92/43/EEC)	Biodiversity	The main aim of the Habitats Directive is to promote the maintenance of biodiversity, taking account of economic, social, cultural and regional requirement to the general objective of sustainable development; it ensures the conservation of a wide range of rare, threatened or endemic species, including around rare and characteristic habitat types are also targeted for conservation in their own right. The Directive provides for a ban on the downgrading of breeding protected animal species. Exceptions to the strict protection rules can be granted under very specific conditions. The Habitats Directive also establishes to of protected areas. For these areas it provides a high level of safeguards against potentially damaging developments. Together with the Birds Directive, the EU nature protection legislation.
Directive on Animal health requirements for aquaculture animals and products thereof, and on the prevention and control of certain diseases in aquatic animals (2006/88/EC)	Biodiversity	The Directive sets out rules on animal health concerning aquaculture animals and related products which apply to the marketing, importation and transit of measures aimed at the prevention and control of diseases in aquaculture animals as well as making further provisions regarding the authorisation to aqua processing establishments.
Limiting Global Climate Change to 2 degrees Celsius - The way ahead for 2020 and beyond (2007)	Climatic Factors	This a set of binding legislation to ensure the EU meets its climate and energy targets for the year 2020. The targets are: 20% reduction in GHGs 20% of EU energy from renewables 20% improvement in energy efficiency
A Clean Planet for all: A European strategic long-term vision for a prosperous, modern, competitive and climate neutral economy (2018)	Climatic Factors	The long-term strategy sets out Europe's commitment to lead in global climate action and to present a vision that can lead to achieving net-zero greenhors socially-fair transition in a cost-efficient manner. It looks into the portfolio of options available for Member States, business and citizens, as well as into he of our economy and improve the quality of life of Europeans, protect the environment, and provide for jobs and growth.
Promotion of the use of energy and renewable sources Directive (2009/28/EC)	Climatic Factors	The Directive sets ambitious targets that the EU will reach a 20% share of energy from renewable sources by 2020 and a 10% share of renewable energy sets out to improve the legal framework for promoting renewable energy.
Energy Act 2013	Climatic Factors	The Act makes provides a framework for delivering secure, affordable and low carbon energy. It includes provisions for decarbonisation and the duties in
Mainstreaming sustainable development into EU policies: 2009 Review of the European Union Strategy for Sustainable Development	Cross-cutting	 The Renewed EU Sustainable Development Strategy (2006) deals in an integrated way with economic, environmental and social issues and lists the following of the followi
European Commission Environmental Liability Directive (2004/35/EC)	Cross-cutting	The Directives relates to the prevention and remedying of environmental damage (ELD) and establishes a framework based on the polluter pays principle damage. The Directive defines "environmental damage" as damage to protected species and natural habitats, damage to water and damage to soil.
Directive on the assessment of the effects of certain plans and	Cross-cutting	The Directive, known as the SEA Directive, sets out the requirement for the assessment of certain plans and programmes on the environment. An SEA is prepared for agriculture, forestry, fisheries, energy, industry, transport, waste/ water management, telecommunications, tourism, town & country planning future development consent of projects listed in the EIA Directive. SEA is also required where plans/programmes have been determined to require an as

al. The six targets cover:

the EU contribution to averting global protected, valued and appropriately restored d by the loss of biodiversity are avoided'.

ent in order to support fish life. This directive

n of Directive 79/409/EEC as amended). This nd in need of special conservation measures.

areas critical for the survival of the targeted

ng of their eggs, and associated activities

they can be hunted. It also defines hunting

ents. While the Directive makes a contribution of 450 animals and 500 plants. Some 200 or and resting places for certain strictly the EU wide Natura 2000 ecological network the Habitats Directive forms the backbone of

of such products. It also establishes uaculture production businesses and

ouse gas emissions by 2050 through a now these can contribute to the modernisation

gy specifically in the transport sector. It also

in relation to it.

lowing seven key challenges:

le to prevent and remedy environmental

is mandatory for plans/programmes which are g or land use and which set the framework for ssessment under the Habitats Directive.

Policy, Plan or Programme	Торіс	Key objectives, guidance and references
programmes on the environment (2001/42/EC)		
The Convention for the Protection of the Architectural Heritage of Europe (Granada Convention) (1985)	Historic Environment	The Convention sets out to reinforce and promote policies for the conservation and enhancement of Europe's heritage. It also affirms the need for Europ conservation and is designed to foster practical co-operation among the Parties. It establishes the principles of "European co-ordination of conservation the thrust of the policies to be implemented.
The European Convention on the Protection of Archaeological Heritage (Valletta Convention) (1992)	Historic Environment	The Convention aims to protect the archaeological heritage as a source of the European collective memory and as an instrument for historical and scier
The European Landscape Convention (2006)	Landscape	The Convention is also known as the Florence Convention and it aims to promotes the protection, management and planning of European landscapes a landscape issues.
The Environmental Noise Directive (2002/49/EC)	Population and Human Health	The Directive is the EU's main instrument to identify noise pollution levels and covers the following three key action areas: the determination of exposure information on environmental noise and its effects is made available to the public; and preventing and reducing environmental noise where necessary a where it is good. It applies to noise to which humans are exposed, particularly in built-up areas, in public parks or other quiet areas in an agglomeration, hospitals and other noise-sensitive buildings and areas. It does not apply to noise that is caused by the exposed person himself, noise from domestic active workplaces or noise inside means of transport or due to military activities in military areas.
European Soils Charter (2003)	Soil	The Charter sets out to protect soil as a complex natural resource which is fundamental to life. It recognises that: Soil is a precious asset Soil is a limited resource which is easily destroyed Land has a wide variety of uses and a proper planning policy is needed by Governments for urban development and civil engineering projects Farmers and foresters must preserve the soils quality Soil must be protected from erosion and pollution Further research and collaboration is required to ensure the wise use and conservation of soil
Thematic Strategy for Soil Protection (2006)	Soil	The Strategy aims to protect soil and promote its sustainable use. It is based on the following guiding principles: Preventing further soil degradation and preserving its functions Restoring degraded soils to a level of functionality consistent at least with current and intended use, thus also considering the cost implications of the r
The Nitrates Directive (91/676/EEC)	Water	The Nitrates Directive aims to protect water quality across Europe by preventing nitrates from agricultural sources polluting ground and surface waters a practices. This Directive forms integral part of the Water Framework Directive and is one of the key instruments in the protection of waters against agricultural sources.
The Water Framework Directive (WFD) (2000/60/EC)	Water	The WFD has the following key aims: Expanding the scope of water protection to all waters, surface waters and groundwater Achieving 'good status' for all waters by a set deadline Water management based on river basins 'Combined approach' of emission limit values and quality standards Getting the prices right Getting the citizen involved more closely Streamlining legislation There are a number of objectives in respect of which the quality of water is protected. The key ones at European level are general protection of the aqua valuable habitats, protection of drinking water resources, and protection of bathing water. Member States must aim to reach good chemical and ecologie 2015.
Urban Wastewater Treatment Directive (91/271/EEC)	Water	The objective of this Directive is to protect the environment from the adverse effects of urban wastewater discharges and discharges from certain indu collection, treatment and discharge of such wastewater.
Drinking Water Directive (1998/83/EC)	Water	The Drinking Water Directive sets out the following objectives: Sets quality standards for drinking water quality at the tap (microbiological, chemical and organoleptic parameters) and the general obligation that drin Obliges Member States to regular monitoring of drinking water quality and to provide to consumers adequate and up-to-date information on their drink Member States may exempt water supplies serving less than 50 persons or providing less than 10 m3 of drinking water per day as an average and wa the quality of water cannot affect the wholesomeness of the foodstuff in its finished form.
Directive on Bathing Water (76/160/EEC); and Directive 2006/7/EC repealing Directive 76/160/EEC (from 2014)	Water	The overall objective of the Directive remains the protection of public health whilst bathing, but the revised Directive also offers an opportunity to improve and to standardise the information provided to bathers across Europe and aims to set more stringent water quality standards and also puts a stronger e information.
Groundwater Directive (2006/118/EC)	Water	This directive establishes a regime which sets underground water quality standards and introduces measures to prevent or limit inputs of pollutants into quality criteria that takes account local characteristics and allows for further improvements to be made based on monitoring data and new scientific know. The directive thus represents a proportionate and scientifically sound response to the requirements of the WFD as it relates to assessments on chemica and reversal of significant and sustained upward trends in pollutant concentrations. Member States will have to establish the standards at the most apprive regional conditions. The groundwater directive complements the WFD. It requires: Groundwater quality standards to be established by the end of 2008 Pollution trend studies to be carried out by using existing data and data which is mandatory by the WFD (referred to as 'baseline level' data obtained in Pollution trends to be reversed so that environmental objectives are achieved by 2015 by using the measures set out in the WFD Measures to prevent or limit inputs of pollutants into groundwater to be operational so that WFD environmental objectives can be achieved by 2015

pean solidarity with regard to heritage policies" including consultations regarding

ntific study.

and organises European co-operation on

re to environmental noise; ensuring that and preserving environmental noise quality a, in quiet areas in open country, near schools, ctivities, noise created by neighbours, noise at

restoration of soil

and by promoting the use of good farming cultural pressures.

atic ecology, specific protection of unique and ical status in inland and coastal waters by

ustrial sectors. The Directive concerns the

nking water must be wholesome and clean. king water quality.

ater in food-processing undertakings where

ve management practices at bathing waters emphasis on beach management and public

o groundwater. The directive establishes wledge.

al status of groundwater and the identification propriate level and take into account local or

in 2007-2008)

Policy, Plan or Programme	Торіс	Key objectives, guidance and references
		Reviews of technical provisions of the directive to be carried out in 2013 and every six years thereafter
		Compliance with good chemical status criteria (based on EU standards of nitrates and pesticides and on threshold values established by Member State
Marine Strategy Framework Directive (2008/56/EEC)	Water	The aim of the Marine Strategy Framework Directive is to protect more effectively the marine environment across Europe. It aims to achieve Good Enviro by 2020 and to protect the resource base upon which marine-related economic and social activities depend. The Directive enshrines in a legislative fram management of human activities having an impact on the marine environment, integrating the concepts of environmental protection and sustainable use
Directive on the Assessment and Management of Flood Risks (2007/60/EC)	Water	Its aim is to reduce and manage the risks that floods pose to human health, the environment, cultural heritage and economic activity. The Directive requi preliminary assessment by 2011 to identify the river basins and associated coastal areas at risk of flooding. For such zones they would then need to draw flood risk management plans focused on prevention, protection and preparedness by 2015. The Directive applies to inland waters as well as all coastal well.
Blueprint to Safeguard Europe's Water Resources (2012)	Water	The Blueprint outlines actions in relation to improved implementation of current water legislation and the integration of water policy objectives into other p regard to water quantity and efficiency. The objective is to ensure that a sufficient quantity of good quality water is available for people's needs, the econ It is closely linked to EU's 2020 Strategy and the 2011 Resource Efficiency Roadmap; however, the analysis spans up to 2050 and is therefore expected
National		
The Eels (England & Wales) Regulations 2009 (as amended)	Biodiversity	Transposed from the European Directive (1100/2007) into UK law, the Regulations aim to establish measures for the recovery of the stock of European e delivery Eel Management Plans.
Salmon and Freshwater Fisheries Act 1975	Biodiversity	The Act sets out the legal framework in which salmon and freshwater fisheries are regulated. It covers regulation on fishing methods and related offence freshwater fisheries administration and law enforcement.
UK Post-2010 Biodiversity	Biodiversity	The purpose of the Framework is to set a broad enabling structure for action across the UK between now and 2020:
Framework, JNCC and Defra		To set out a shared vision and priorities for UK-scale activities, in a framework jointly owned by the four countries, and to which their own strategies will
(2012)		To identify priority work at a UK level which will be needed to help deliver the Aichi targets and the EU Biodiversity Strategy.
		country work.
		To streamline governance arrangements for UK-scale activity.
Making Space for Nature - A review of England's Wildlife Sites	Biodiversity	The report aims to answer the following questions: Do England's wildlife sites comprise a coherent and resilient ecological network? If not, what needs to approaches required to achieve a coherent and resilient ecological network are varied, and 24 wide-ranging recommendations are presented. Five them
and Ecological Network (2010)		We need to continue the recent progress in improving the management and condition of wildlife sites, particularly our SSSIs. We also make recommen and managed in ways that enhance their resilience to climate change.
		We need to properly plan ecological networks, including restoration areas. Restoration needs to take place throughout England. However, in some area to enhance the network, and the ensuing There are a large number of surviving patches of important wildlife habitat scattered across England outsid Sites. We need to take steps to improve the protection and management of these remaining wildlife habitats. 'Protection' will usually be best achieve at times may require designation.
		We need to become better at deriving multiple benefits from the ways we use and interact with our environment. There are many things that society ha to do with nature conservation, but could have, or even should have if we embrace more radical thinking; flood management by creating wetlands is these 'win-win' opportunities to the full. Being better at valuing a wider range of ecosystem services would help this process.
		We will not achieve a step-change in nature conservation in England without society accepting it to be necessary, desirable, and achievable. This will n and significant improvements in collaboration between local authorities, local communities, statutory agencies, the voluntary and private sectors, farr and individual citizens.
Biodiversity 2020: A strategy for England's wildlife and ecosystem services, Defra (2011)	Biodiversity	The Strategy builds on the Natural Environment White Paper and sets out how the UK is implementing the international and EU commitments. The missi overall biodiversity loss, support healthy well-functioning ecosystems and establish coherent ecological networks, with more and better places for nature
The Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations (2010) (as amended)	Biodiversity	The Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2010 apply in the terrestrial environment and in territorial waters out to 12 nautical miles. The EU transposed in UK offshore waters by separate regulations. The new regulations do not make any substantive changes to existing policies and procedure Management Organisation. The Marine Management Organisation takes on certain licensing functions from Natural England to ensure consistency with Access Act 2009. The objective of the Habitats Directive is to protect biodiversity through the conservation of natural habitats and species of wild fauna a the protection, management and exploitation of such habitats and species.
The Conservation of Habitats and Species (Amendment) (EU Exit) Regulations (2019)	Biodiversity	This instrument provides changes to those parts of the 2017 conservation of habitats and species regulations which would no longer work when the UK I
Delivering a healthy natural environment. Ecosystem approach action plan, Defra (2010)	Biodiversity	Known as the "Ecosystems Approach Action Plan" (EAAP)), it was first published in 2007 and was then updated in 2010. It sets out the concept and fran how this could be translated into "an ecosystems approach" to policy and decision making that could be applied at all levels of Government.
The Invasive Alien Species (Enforcement and Permitting) Order 2019	Biodiversity	The Order brings into force the EU Invasive Alien Species Regulation (1143/2014) on the prevention and management of invasive alien plant and anima relevant licenses, permits and rules for keeping invasive alien species.
The Great Britain Invasive Non- Native Species Strategy, Defra (2015)	Biodiversity	The Strategy builds on the first which was published in 2008 and sets out a series of aims and objectives to underpin action until 2020. It aims to address biodiversity, quality of life and economic interests.
A narrative for conserving freshwater and wetland habitats in England, Natural England (2016)	Biodiversity	Provides a narrative as to why the natural ecosystem system function is important for freshwater and wetland wildlife and recognises the ecosystem serving framework for decision making for conserving these important habitats.

es)

onmental Status of the EU's marine waters nework the ecosystem approach to the

ires Member States to first carry out a w up flood risk maps by 2013 and establish waters across the whole territory of the EU.

policies, and also aims to fill the gaps in nomy and the environment throughout the EU. If to drive EU water policy over the long term.

eel. The Regulations will help implement

es, obstructions to fish passage, salmon and

I contribute.

I bring benefits compared to individual

o be done? The report concludes that the les unite them:

ndations for how these should be designated

eas, both the scale of what can be delivered de of SSSIs, for example in Local Wildlife ed through incentive-based mechanisms, but

as to do that may seem to have rather little an obvious example. We need to exploit

require strong leadership from government mers, landowners and other land-managers

tion for this strategy is as follows: 'to halt for the benefit of wildlife and people'.

J Habitats and Wild Birds Directives are es other than the establishment of the Marine the approach in the Marine and Coastal and flora. The Directive lays down rules for

leaves the EU.

mework of ecosystem services and describes

I species in England and Wales, including the

is the issues of INNS in the UK to protect

vice benefits. It aims to provide a strategic

Policy, Plan or Programme	Торіс	Key objectives, guidance and references			
Conservation 21 - Natural England's Conservation Strategy for the 21st Century, Natural England (2016)	Biodiversity	The Strategy sets out how Natural England aim to contribute to the ambition set out the in Defra's strategy to 2020 and how they can work together with Strategy is based on the following three principles: Creating resilient landscapes and seas Putting people at the heart of the environment Growing natural capital			
State of Natural Capital Annual Report 2020, Natural Capital Committee (2020)	Biodiversity	The Nature Capital Committee's seventh annual report on the state of natural capital. The report recognises the importance that nature-based inter targets. The report makes recommendations for the Government to take forward and outlines key points for inclusion within the Environment Bill.			
Standing Advice on Protected Species, Natural England (2016)	Biodiversity	Provides guidance on reviewing planning applications which might have an affected on protected species.			
Climate Change Act 2008	Climatic Factors	The Act sets out a legal framework to commit the Government to tackling climate change and climate change adaptation is also covered in the Act as it policy. The Act sets out a target of net zero by 2050 based on 1990 levels.			
UK Climate Change Risk Assessment, Defra (2017)	Climatic Factors	Identifies the key climate change risks and opportunities for the UK which are as follows: Flooding and coastal change risks to communities, businesses and infrastructure Risks to health, well-being and productivity from high temperatures Risks of shortages in the public water supply for agriculture, energy generation and industry Risks to natural capital including terrestrial, coastal, marine and freshwater ecosystems, soils and biodiversity Risks to domestic and international food production and trade New and emerging pests and diseases and invasive non-native species affecting people, plants and animals			
The National Adaptation Programme and the Third Strategy for Climate Adaptation Reporting, Defra (2018)	Climatic Factors	This is the second National Adaptation Programme (NAP) and sets out the Government's response to the second Climate Change Risk Assessment (Co taken to address the climate change issues identified in the CCRA across the following key sectors: Natural environment; Infrastructure; People and the and Local government.			
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (2019)	Cross-cutting	The updated NPPF sets out government's planning policies for England and how these are expected to be applied. Achieving sustainable development three overarching objectives in the social, economic and environmental spheres.			
A Green Future: Our 25 Year Plan to Improve the Environment, UK Government (2018)	Cross-cutting	The 25 Year Plan sets out the Governments actions for improving the health of the natural environment. It includes six actions in order achieve clean air wildlife, reduced harm from environmental hazards, sustainable resource use and enhanced beauty, heritage and engagement with the natural environment Using and managing land sustainably Recovering nature and enhancing the beauty of landscapes Connecting people with the environment to improve health and wellbeing Increasing resource efficiency, reducing pollution and waste Securing clean, productive and biologically diverse seas and oceans Protecting and improving the global environment			
The Environment Act 2021	Cross-cutting	The Environment Act became law in January 2021. The Environment Act supports the 25 Year Environment Plan and brings about urgent and meaningf that the UK is facing. It sets out a requirement for biodiversity net gain which includes at least a 10% improvement in biodiversity value for new developm Creating a new governance framework for the environment A new direction for resources and waste management Improving air quality Securing our water services Enhancing our green spaces Updating laws on chemicals (REACH)			
Securing the Future – Delivering the UK Sustainable Development Strategy (2005)	Cross-cutting	The Strategy for sustainable development aims to '…enable all people throughout the world to satisfy their basic needs and enjoy a better quality of life of future generations.' Guiding principles: Living within environmental limits Ensuring a strong, healthy, and just society Achieving a sustainable economy Promoting good governance Using sound science responsibly UK priorities for immediate action Sustainable consumption and production Climate change and energy Natural resource protection and environmental enhancement Sustainable communities			
The Natural Choice: Securing the Value of Nature, Defra (2011)	Cross-cutting	The White Paper outlines the Government's vision for the natural environment for the next 50 years.			
Marine and Coastal Access Act (2009)	Cross-cutting	The Act sets out to protect marine functions, activities and wildlife. It commits the UK to ambitions actions and sets out the provisions for Marine Consenses, reform of inshore fishers, amongst others.			

n others to deliver this shared ambition. The

tions will have on achieving net zero by 2050

provides a legal framework for adaptation

CCRA). It also outlines the actions that will be e built environment; Business and industry;

t is at the heart of the NPPF whereby it has

r, plentiful and clean water, thriving plants and nent:

gful action to combat the environmental issues ment. It also includes details on:

without compromising the quality of life of

vation Zones (MCZs), a Marine Planning

Policy, Plan or Programme	Торіс	Key objectives, guidance and references		
The Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended)	Cross-cutting	The Wildlife and Countryside Act is the main Act which protects animals, plans and habitats in the UK. It implements the Bern Convention and the Birn and national designated sites, protection for designated species.		
Environment Protection Act 1990	Cross-cutting	The Act aims to set out provisions for the control of pollution to the environment (air, water and land) by regulating the management of waste and emis or person who produces waste to do so carefully and in line with requirements.		
Countryside and Rights of Way (CROW) Act	Cross-cutting	The Act was introduced in 2000 with the intention to give greater freedom for people to explore open countryside and contains provisions to introduce a recreation to mountain, moor, heath, down and registered common land. It also includes a power to extend the right to coastal land by order and enable irrevocably any land to public access.		
The Natural Environment and Communities Act 2006 (NERC Act)	Cross-cutting	The Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act is designed to help achieve a rich and diverse natural environment and thriving rural communities arrangements for delivering Government policy. It is about conserving and enhancing places and nature and helping people to enjoy them – taking a win management which encompasses access and recreation, and aiming where possible to achieve economic and social outcomes alongside conservation		
Creating a better place: Our ambition to 2020, Environment Agency (2018)	Cross-cutting	This aims to protect and improve natural resources in the UK and sits alongside Defra's 25 Year Environment Plan. It sets out the Environment Agen well as how they aim to deliver against the 25 Year Environment Plan.		
UK National Ecosystem Assessment Follow-on (2014)	Cross-cutting	The 2011 UK National Ecosystem Assessment (UK NEA) which identified that the natural world and its ecosystems are important to our well-being and consistently undervalued. This follow on provides new information and tools to help decision makers integrate the value of ecosystems into decision makers.		
National Infrastructure Delivery Plan 2016–2021, Infrastructure and Projects Authority (HM Government) (2016)	Cross-cutting	Sets out the Government's plans for economic infrastructure over the next 5 years to support delivery of housing and social infrastructure. The Plan reco under increasing pressure because of population growth and a changing climate. The Plan sets out the following key objectives for water: Start of construction on the Thames Tideway Tunnel Reductions in average bills of about 5% in real terms Further expenditure from 2020 with the start of Asset Management Period 7		
Fixing the foundations: Creating a more prosperous nation, HM Government (2015)	Cross-cutting	The reports sets out the importance of productivity and the Government's vision to delivering a UK economy which is the richest of all major economies productivity: Encouraging long term investment in economic capital, including infrastructure, skills and knowledge. Promoting a dynamic economy that encourages innovation and helps resources flow to their most productive use.		
Environment Act 1995	Cross-cutting	The Act set out provisions for the creation of a number of government agencies including the Environment Agency and the Scottish Environment Protect standards for environmental protection.		
The Environmental Damage (Prevention and Remediation) (England) Regulations 2015	Cross-cutting	The Regulations seek to ensure action is taken put any environmental damage right and are based on the 'polluter pays principle'. It transposes the Eur Directive into UK law. The Regulations require action in response to the most significant cases, covering specific types of: damage to species and habita health from contamination of land.		
Environmental Assessment of Plans and Programmes Regulations 2004	Cross-cutting	The regulations transpose the SEA Directive into UK law which requires an assessment of the effects of certain plans and programmes on the environm for plans and programmes which are prepared for water management, set the framework for development consents, and/or are likely to have a signification of the effects of certain plans and programmes which are prepared for water management, set the framework for development consents, and/or are likely to have a signification of the effects of certain plans and programmes which are prepared for water management, set the framework for development consents, and/or are likely to have a signification of the effects of certain plans are prepared for water management.		
Creating a great place for living: together we are building a green and healthy future (2018)	Cross-cutting	The Defra group sets out make air purer, water cleaner, land greener and food more sustainable, and their mission is to restore and enhance the environment in a better state. There are 10 goals which underpin this mission and include: Sustainable farming and food Pure air, clean rivers and a resilient water supply Healthy seas and oceans Beautiful landscapes, flourishing wildlife and native species Thriving rural economies and communities Efficient resource use and reduced waste Protecting animals and plants from health risks Resilient communities and economies Great places for living for people and animals Green global Britain		
Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990	Historic Environment	An Act of Parliament that altered the laws on granting of planning permission for building works, notably including those of the listed building system in I		
The Ancient Monuments and Archaeological Areas Act 1979	Historic Environment	This Act is concerned with the provisioning, investigation, recording and the preservation and protection of archaeological sites and ancient monuments		
Climate Change and the Historic Environment, English Heritage (2008)	Historic Environment	The statement recognises the climate change impacts the UK is facing and how this poses a risk to the historic environment.		
Strategic Environmental Assessment, Sustainability Appraisal and the Historic Environment, Historic Environment (2016)	Historic Environment	Provides guidance on SEA in relation to the historic environment.		
The Setting of Heritage Assets				

s Directive and contains details of European

sions. It places a duty of care on any business

a new statutory right of access for open-air es landowners voluntarily to dedicate

s through modernised and simplified ider view, pursuing environmental n goals.

's vision, principles and purpose until 2020 as

economic prosperity, however they are aking.

cognises that water services are likely to come

by 2030. It includes two pillars for raising

ction Agency (SEPA). It also set out new

ropean Commission Environmental Liability tats; damage to water; or risks to human

nent. Article 3 (2b) states that SEA is required ant environmental effect.

onment for the next generation, and to leave

England and Wales

landscapes, against the backdrop of the period appreciated, as well as advice on how views

Policy, Plan or Programme	Торіс	Key objectives, guidance and references		
Practice Advice in Planning 3, Historic Environment (2017)				
Ancient Woodland and Veteran Trees: Protecting them from development, Forestry Commission and Natural England (2014)	Landscape	Sets out guiding principles for considerations when developments affect ancient woodlands or veteran trees. Ancient woodland is defined as an irreplace soils, recreational value and cultural, historical and landscape value. Ancient tree is one which attributes include the following: great age, size, condition, guidance also states that all ancient trees are veteran trees but not all veteran trees are ancient. A veteran tree may not be very old, but it has decay fea which contribute to its biodiversity, cultural and heritage value. When making decisions the following should be considered: conserving and enhancing biodiversity		
(2011)		reducing the level of impact of the proposed development on ancient woodland and ancient and veteran trees		
Our Waste, Our Resources: A Strategy for England, HM Government (2018)	Material Assets	The Strategy recognises that natural capital is one of our most valuable assets and sets out how the Government plans to preserve the stock of material resource efficiency and moving towards a circular economy. They also set out how they aim to minimise damage to the natural environment and is aligned. This is our blueprint for eliminating avoidable plastic waste over the lifetime of the 25 Year Plan, doubling resource productivity, and eliminating as		
Safeguarding our Soils - A strategy for England, Defra (2009)	Soil	The Strategy recognises that soil is fundamental resource and sets out a 2030 vision for the sustainable management of soil where degradation threats the quality of England's soils and safeguard their ability to provide essential services for future generations.		
Water Resources Act 1991	Water	The Act sets out the functions of National Rivers Authority (now the Environment Agency) and introduced water quality classifications and objectives for		
Water Industry Act 1991	Water	The Act sets out the main powers and duties of the water and sewerage companies, thus replacing those set out in the Water Act 1989 and defined the Services (now the Water Services Regulation Authority (Ofwat)).		
Water Act 2003 (as amended)	Water	The Act amends the Water Resources Act and Regulations 1991 and the Water Industry Act 1991. The Act has the following four broad aims: the sustainable use of water resources strengthening the voice of consumers a measured increase in competition the promotion of water conservation		
Preparing for a drier future: England's water infrastructure needs, National Infrastructure Commission (2018)	Water	Sets out the National Infrastructure Commission's advice on how to address England's water supply challenges and deliver the appropriate level of re- water shortages is a risk in England and that climate change alongside an increasing population A (especially in the drier south and east) and the new further challenges.		
Draft National Policy Statement for Water Resources Infrastructure, Defra (2018)	Water	The draft National Policy Statement for Water Resources Infrastructure (NPS) sets out the need and government's policies for the development of nati relevant to water resources in England. It is aligned with the goal of clean and plentiful water as set out in the UK Government's 25 Year Environment is required to secure resilient water supplies.		
Water for Life White Paper, Defra (2011)	Water	This White Paper sets out a vision for future water management in which the water sector is resilient; water companies are more efficient and customer and finite resource it is. It explains that everyone has a part to play in the realisation of this vision. It sets out the principles and timetable for an overhau how and when water can be taken from the environment for use by business, agriculture and the public; and explains how improved interconnections be be moved more easily around the country to areas of need. It details Government policy on charging for water and providing help to those who struggle		
The Water Environment (Water Framework Directive) (England and Wales) Regulations 2003 (as amended)	Water	The Regulations transpose the EC WFD in UK law. They will help implement the WFD requirement in England and Wales. They aim to protect and enha Surface freshwater (including lakes, streams and rivers) Groundwaters Groundwater dependant ecosystems Estuaries Coastal waters out to one mile from low-water		
Protect groundwater and prevent groundwater pollution, Environment Agency (2017)	Water	It aims to avoid negative impacts on groundwater sources including impacts of pollution by providing guidance on discharging or abstracting from ground		
Groundwater protection technical guidance, Environment Agency (2017)	Water	It aims to avoid negative effects on the quality and quantity of groundwater resources by providing guidance on the inputs of substances and pollutants t substances and when geological formations can be determined permanently unsuitable for other purposes.		
The Environment Agency's approach to groundwater protection, Environment Agency (2018)	Water	These position statements describe the Environment Agency's approach to managing and protecting groundwater. They update Groundwater protection		
The Groundwater (England and Wales) Regulations 2009	Water	The Regulations transpose the EU Groundwater Directive (2006/118/EC) into UK law. The Regulations set out to protect groundwater from being pollute		
Flood and Water Management Act 2010	Water	The Act seeks to address the threat of flooding and water scarcity. The Act takes forward a number of recommendations from the Pitt Review into the 20 the Environment Agency, local authorities and others to manage the risk of flooding. Climate projections suggest extreme weather will happen more freq reducing the flood risk associated with extreme weather.		
National Flood and Coastal Erosion Risk Management Strategy for England, Environment	Water, Climatic Factors, Population,	The Strategy sets out the long-term delivery objectives the nation should take over the next 10 to 30 years as well as shorter term, practical measures ris working with partners and communities. It includes the following long term vision: 'a nation ready for, and resilient to, flooding and coastal change – toda includes the following three long-term ambitions:		
Agency (2020)	Human Health	Climate resilient places		
		A nation ready to respond and adapt to flooding and coastal change		

ceable habitat which is important for wildlife, n, biodiversity, cultural heritage and value. The atures, such as branch death and hollowing

al resources by minimising waste, promoting ned to the Government's 25 Year Environment voidable waste of all kinds by 2050.

are tackled successfully. It aims to improve

r the first time.

powers of the Director General of Water

lience for the long term. It recognises that to protect the environment will result in

onally significant infrastructure projects Plan and recognises that a twin track approach

r focused; and water is valued as the precious Il of the abstraction regime, which governs etween water catchments will allow water to a to afford their bills.

ance the quality of:

dwater sources.

to groundwater, discernibility of hazardous

: principles and practice (GP3).

ed by hazardous substances.

2007 floods and places new responsibilities on quently in the future and this Act is central to

isk management authorities should take ay, tomorrow and to the year 2100', and

Policy, Plan or Programme	Торіс	Key objectives, guidance and references	
The Flood and Coastal Erosion Risk Management Policy Statement, Defra (2020)	Water, Climatic Factors, Population, Human Health	The Policy Statement sets out the long-term goal of the Government to create a nation which is resilient to future flood and coastal erosion, and therefore economy. The National Flood and Coastal Erosion Strategy has helped to inform this policy statement. It identifies five key areas for action which include Upgrading and expanding our national flood defences and infrastructure Managing the flow of water more effectively Harnessing the power of nature to reduce flood and coastal erosion risk and achieve multiple benefits Better preparing our communities Enabling more resilient places through a catchment-based approach	
Flood risk assessments: climate change allowances, Environment Agency (2016)	Water, Climatic Factors	The guidance sets out how climate change should be accounted for when local authorities prepare strategic flood risk assessment as well as when dev flood risk assessments for planning applications, and development consent orders for nationally significant infrastructure projects. The guidance provid following and are aligned to each river basin in some cases: peak river flow; peak rainfall intensity; sea level rise; and offshore wind speed and extreme	
The Water Resources Management Plan Regulations 2007	Water	The regulations set out the statutory duty for water companies to prepare and publish a WRMP.	
Water Resources Planning Framework (2015-2065), Water UK (2016)	Water	The project aims to develop a high-level strategy and framework for the long-term management and planning of water resources in England and Wales resources including climate change, resilience to droughts and demand growth and presents options to mitigate the issues.	
Water Supply (Water Quality) Regulations 2016 (as amended)	Water	The regulations consolidate legislation concerning the quality of water supplies for human consumption in England. They also apply in Wales where the based in England.	
National Policy Statement for Wastewater (2012)	Water	National Policy Statement (NPS) sets out Government policy for the provision of major wastewater infrastructure. It aims to make existing policy and nationally significant wastewater infrastructure.	
Climate change approaches in water resources planning – Overview of new methods, Environment Agency (2013)	Water, Climatic Factors	 The report explores different ways in which the possible impacts of climate change could be incorporated into Water Resource Management Plans (WRI improvements are suggested, but not limited to: Undertaking vulnerability assessments to evaluate Water Resource Zones (WRZs) vulnerability to current and future climate and using the outcomes to assess future impacts of climate change. Alternative methods to scaling the impacts of climate change from the base year to the 2030s and beyond. Headroom assessment should clearly distinguish between climate and non-climate risks and report outputs for specific reference levels of headroom. 	
Drought response: our framework for England, Environment Agency (2017)	Water, Climatic Factors	The document outlines the national framework for how drought is managed by the Environment Agency, the government and water companies to reduce environment. It sets out how drought affects different areas of England, who is involved in management drought and how those stakeholders, and how d on.	
Future Water: The Government's water strategy for England, Defra (2008)	Water	The Strategy sets Defra's vision for the water sector up to 2030 and outlines the steps they will implement to achieve that vision. Their vision is where risk for people and wildlife, with benefits for angling, boating and other recreational activities, and with continued provisions for excellent quality drinking wat demand, water quality in the natural environment, surface water drainage, river and coastal flooding, greenhouse gas, water charging, the regulatory fractional activities and with continued provisions for excellent quality drinking wat demand, water quality in the natural environment, surface water drainage, river and coastal flooding, greenhouse gas, water charging, the regulatory fractional activities are provided by the standard strategy of the strateg	
Water Resources Planning Guideline, Environment Agency (2016)	Water	This document provides guidance on the requirements and process for water resource planning through WRMPs to ensure resilient and sustainable was is out for public consultation until October 2020.	
The Urban Waste Water Treatment (England and Wales) Regulations 1994	Water	The Regulations transpose the EU Urban Waste Water Treatment Directive (91/271/EEC) and sets out to regulate the disposal of sewage.	
The Nitrate Pollution Prevention Regulations 2015	Water	The Regulations transpose EU Nitrates Directive (91/676/EEC) into UK law and aim to reduce the pollution in the water environment from nitrates.	
Managing Water Abstraction, Environment Agency (2016)	Water	Sets out how the Environment Agency manage water resources in England and outlines the technical, legal and policy requirements behind the abstract	
Marine Plans – South East Inshore, South Inshore, South Offshore (Marine Management Organisation)	Water	A marine plan: Sets out priorities and directions for future development within the plan area Informs sustainable use of marine resources Helps marine users understand the best locations for their activities, including where new developments may be appropriate. Each of the 11 marine plan areas will have a marine plan with a long-term (20 years) view of activities and will be reviewed every three years. There will have a single plan following requests to have a single process and one plan for these areas. All marine plan areas are scheduled to have a plan by 2021	
UK Marine Policy Statement (2011)	Water	The UK Marine Policy Statement (MPS) provides the policy framework for the marine planning system. It provides the context for marine plans. Marine provides the context for marine plans. Marine planning environment that are identified in the MPS alongside the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the Localism Act 2011. Where there is direction for decisions that affect the marine areas, such as granting licences for all public bodies.	
Regional and Local			
Site Improvement Plans for Natura 2000 Sites, Natural England	Biodiversity	Site Improvement Plans (SIPs) have been developed for each Natura 2000 site in England as part of the Improvement Programme for England's Natura combined term for sites designated as Special Areas of Conservation (SAC) and Special Protected Areas (SPA). There are 12 SACs and 7 SPAs within The plan provides a high level overview of the issues (both current and predicted) affecting the condition of the Natura 2000 features on the site(s) and comprove the condition of the features. It does not cover issues where remedial actions are already in place or ongoing management activities which are not cover issues.	

re protects people, the environment and the de:

relopers and their agents when they prepare es allowances for anticipated change of the e wave height.

. It identifies the challenges facing water

water undertaker or licensee is primarily

actice clear and transparent in relation to

RMPs) in England and Wales. A number of

to determine the level of modelling required

the effects on the people, business and the drought is manged, monitored and reported

ivers, canals, lakes and seas have improved ter. It is structured around water supply and amework and innovation.

ater supplies. It is currently being updated and

tion licensing strategies.

I be ten marine plans as the North West will

plans put into practice the objectives for the s no marine plan in place, the MPS sets the

a 2000 Sites (IPENS). Natura 2000 sites is the n the Essex & Suffolk Water area. outlines the priority measures required to required for maintenance.

Policy, Plan or Programme	Торіс	Key objectives, guidance and references		
Local Development Plans (Various)	Cross-cutting	 Local Development Plans or Core Strategies are the main framework for planning in a local authorities and set out the long-term spatial vision to guide s policies on key area such as housing, transport, the natural environment, employment and economic development, carbon reduction and resources, and The following local authorities are within the Essex & Suffolk Water area: Watford District (B); Stevenage District (B); St. Albans District (B); Three Rivers District; Runnymede District (B); Harrow London Borough; Harlow District (B); Hillingdon London Borough; Uttlesford District; North Hertfordshire District; Tendring District; Welwyn Hatfield District (B); East Hertfordshire Borough; Epping Forest District; Dacorum District (B); Spelthorne District (B); Folkestone and Hythe District (B); Hounslow London Borough; Windsor a Slough (B); Canterbury District (B); Wycombe District; Colchester District (B); Enfield London Borough; Broxbourne District (B); Haringey London Borough; Bistrict (B); Canden London Borough; Havering London Borough; Babergh District; Chelmsford District (B); Aylesbury Vale District; Redbridge London F and Mole Valley District. 		
Public Rights of Way Improvement Plans (ROWIPs)	Cross-cutting	ROWIPs outline how local authorities aim to improve public rights of way within their local area in order to ensure improved accessibility, connectivity ar		
Local level Green Infrastructure Plans and Strategies	Cross-cutting	Green Infrastructure Strategies set out how local authorities will improve provision of and access to quality green spaces.		
National Natural Capital Atlas: Mapping Indicators, Natural England (2020)	Cross-cutting	The state of the natural capital in England is outlined in this report through a series of maps and indicators to show the quality, quantity and location of na services that they provide. Quantity indicators are divided into eight broad habitat type categories including freshwater; farmland; grasslands; mountain, i and marine. Quality indicators are also split out into broad categories which cover vegetation; nutrient and chemical status; soil / sediment process; spec These indicators are designed to inform decision making and to help to achieve the commitments set out in the 25 Year Plan, and also acts a baseline to		
AONB Management Plans	Landscape	 The Management Plans summarise the key issues facing the AONBs and outline the management policies and actions required to conserve these areas Essex & Suffolk Water area: The Chilterns AONB Management Plan 2019-2024 – key issues for the site in relation to water include unsustainable abstraction; high levels of water us ecological conditions in chalk streams; pollution; INNS; and the impacts of climate change. Kent Downs AONB Management Plan 2021-2026 - key issues for the site in relation to water include water quality; abstraction; climate change; nutrient Dedham Vale AONB Management Plan 2016-2021 – the following have been identified as key pressures demand for agricultural, horticultural and recre associated with riparian habitats; demand for potable water; loss of natural processes operating in the river system; requirement to improve ecologic Framework Directive; recreational use of the river; Ely-Ouse to Essex water transfer scheme; INNS; and costs of maintaining river structures falling Surrey Hills Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty Management Plan 2020-2025 – key issues for water include meeting WED standards; wetland babitats; 		
National Character Area (NCA) Profiles, Natural England	Landscape	The profiles for each outline the characteristics which are unique to that area and help to form distinctive set Estuary Suffolk Coast and Heaths South Suffolk and North Essex Clayland East Anglian Chalk Bedfordshire and Cambridgeshire Claylands Chilterns Greater Thames North Thames Basin	nse of place. There are 15 NCAs within the E Inner London Thames Basin Lowlands Thames Valley North Downs Wealden Greensand Low Weald Romney Marshes Thames Basin Heaths	
Anglian River Basin Management Plan (2015)	Water	The purpose of a river basin management plan is to provide a framework for protecting and enhancing the benefits provided by the water environment. T resources are closely linked, it also informs decisions on land-use planning. The following have been identified as key pressures for the basin: Physical modifications - affecting 51% of water bodies in this river basin district Pollution from waste water – affecting 50% of water bodies in this river basin district Pollution from towns, cities and transport - affecting 10% of water bodies in this river basin district Changes to the natural flow and level of water - affecting 10% of water bodies in this river basin district Negative effects of invasive non-native species - affecting 6% of water bodies in this river basin district Pollution from rural areas - affecting 47% of water bodies in this river basin district		
South East River Basin Management Plan (2015)	Water	The purpose of a river basin management plan is to provide a framework for protecting and enhancing the benefits provided by the water environment. The sources are closely linked, it also informs decisions on land-use planning. The following have been identified as key pressures for the basin: Physical modifications - affecting 43% of water bodies in this river basin district Pollution from waste water – affecting 40% of water bodies in this river basin district Pollution from towns, cities and transport - affecting 9% of water bodies in this river basin district Changes to the natural flow and level of water - affecting 7% of water bodies in this river basin district Negative effects of invasive non-native species - affecting 2% of water bodies in this river basin district Pollution from rural areas - affecting 30% of water bodies in this river basin district		
Thames River Basin Management Plan (2015)	Water	The purpose of a river basin management plan is to provide a framework for protecting and enhancing the benefits provided by the water environment. The resources are closely linked, it also informs decisions on land-use planning. The following have been identified as key pressures for the basin: Physical modifications - affecting 44% of water bodies in this river basin district Pollution from waste water – affecting 45% of water bodies in this river basin district Pollution from towns, cities and transport - affecting 17% of water bodies in this river basin district Changes to the natural flow and level of water - affecting 12% of water bodies in this river basin district Negative effects of invasive non-native species - affecting 3% of water bodies in this river basin district Pollution from rural areas - affecting 27% of water bodies in this river basin district		

sustainable development. They include ongst others.

ict; Hertsmere District (B); Luton (B); Woking e District; Chiltern District; Barnet London prough; South Bucks District; Ealing London and Maidenhead (B); Central Bedfordshire; igh; South Cambridgeshire District; Ashford Borough; Braintree District; Rother District;

nd quality of the network for all.

atural assets as well as the ecosystem moor and heath; woodland; urban; coastal; cies composition; vegetation; and cultural. o measure change.

s. The following Plans are relevant to the

se; modifications of water courses; poor

t pollution; and water stress. eational water supplies; loss of wildlife ical condition of catchment through the Water to landowners.

water quality; and flooding.

Essex & Suffolk Water area which include:

To achieve this, and because water and land

To achieve this, and because water and land

To achieve this, and because water and land
Policy, Plan or Programme	Торіс	Key objectives, guidance and references
Catchment Flood Management Plans (2009): Anglian River Basin South East River Basin Thames River Basin	Water	CFMPs have been produced to assess inland flood risk across England and Wales. The CFMPs relevant to the WRMP are detailed in the column to the flooding: from rivers, ground water, surface water and tidal flooding (but not coastal flooding, which is covered by Shoreline Management Plans. The role management policies which will deliver sustainable flood risk management for the long term. CFMPs should be used to inform planning and decision ma Environment Agency, local authorities, Internal Drainage Boards, water companies and other utilities; transportation planners; land owners, farmers and enhance their understanding of flood risk management policies: The CFMPs identify six generic flood risk management policies: Policy 1- Areas of little or no flood risk where the EA will continue to monitor and advise: this policy will tend to be applied in those areas where there are
		reflects a commitment to work with the natural flood processes as far as possible. Policy 2 - Areas of low to moderate flood risk where the EA can generally reduce existing flood risk management actions: this policy will tend to be applied and property is low to moderate.
		Policy 3 - Areas of low to moderate flood risk where the EA are generally managing existing flood risk effectively: this policy will tend to be applied where managed and where the risk of flooding is not expected to increase significantly in the future.
		Policy 4 - Areas of low, moderate or high flood risk where the EA are already managing the flood risk effectively but where they may need to take further this policy will tend to be applied where the risks are currently deemed to be appropriately-managed, but where the risk of flooding is expected to si
		Policy 5 - Areas of moderate to high flood risk where the EA can generally take further action to reduce flood risk: this policy will tend to be applied to the reduce flood risk is most compelling, for example where there are many people at high risk, or where changes in the environment have already incr
		Policy 6 - Areas of low to moderate flood risk where the EA will take action with others to store water or manage run-off in: locations that provide overall benefits. This policy will tend to be applied where there may be opportunities in some locations to reduce flood risk locally or more widely in a catch
		To select the most appropriate policy, the CFMPs consider how the social, economic and environmental objectives are affected by flood risk manageme policies identified in the CFMPs will be delivered through a range of delivery plans, projects and actions.
Catchment Abstraction Management Strategies	Water	The Catchment Abstraction Management Strategy (CAMS) set out how the EA will manage water abstraction. They outline where water is available, and reduce current rates of abstraction.
(CAMS) (2016)		Each CAMS provides an overview of the catchment area and characteristics, including abstractions, geology, hydrology, hydrometry, water quality and or recreation and navigation.
		The CAMS make information on water resources and licensing practice publicly available and allow the balance between the needs of abstractors, other be considered in consultation with the local community and interested parties.
		CAMS are also the mechanism for managing time limited licences by determining whether they should be renewed and, if so, on what terms.
Chalk-Streams First: A Permanent and Sustainable Solution to the Chilterns Chalk- Streams Crisis Various (2020)	Water	Chalk Streams First has been developed by a coalition formed of The Angling Trust, The Rivers Trust, Salmon & Trout Conservation, The Wild Trout Tru aims to re-naturalise flows in the Chilterns chalk streams given their international uniqueness. Abstraction from the Chilterns aquifer which feed the chall resulting in low and un-natural flows. The Chalk Streams First proposes: Groundwater abstraction from the Chilterns is stopped
		Flow recovery is utilised to send water to existing surface water abstraction points within the Lower Lea and Thames as an alternatives, resulting in a 15
		The net 15% loss is recovered through strategic Essex & Suffolk Water and Thames Water proposals "Supply 2040" is brought forward to "Supply 2030"
Meeting our Future Water Needs: a National Framework for Water Recourses	Water	The Framework explores the long-term needs of all sectors that depend on a secure supply of water, taking into account the commitments set out in the the principles, expectations and challenges for the five regional groups which cover England's water supply in order to take a collaborative approach to a water resource planning. The importance of regional planning is paramount to address the following challenges:
Environment Agency (2020)		Resilience to drought
		Greater environmental improvement
		Reducing water use in the long-term
		Leakage reduction
		Reducing the use of drought permits and drought orders
		Increasing supplies
	10/	Noving water to where it is needed
Long-term water resources environmental destination, Environment Agency (2020)	Water	in the long term. The document provide the opportunity to deliver an environmental destination for water resources where environmental issues related in the long term. The document provides guidance for regional groups and water companies to help to integrate the long-term environmental water resources plans. It sets out a standard approach to allow for both consistency whilst allowing for flexibility depending on specific needs and issues. It sets out the for
		What the environmental destination should look like: Enable environmental resilience and protection for water resources up to at least 2050 through a va
		Stages needed to propose a long-term environmental destination: Review national policy, use scenarios, engage with stakeholders, develop environment
		Defining a long-term environmental destination: Use the scenarios from the National Framework to support and inform the destination development.
		What a long-term environmental destination should include: Meet current regulatory requirements for abstraction and integrate future needs.
		Actions to meet an environmental destination: Resilience to climate change, integrates stakeholder views, considers costs and scale, supports wider gov vulnerable and protected sites, integrates a catchment approach and nature based solutions, supports net gain principles, uses the best data and is The guidance also includes reference to how to carry out engagement, set milestones and outlines the governance for implementing a long-term environ
Water Resources Planning	Wator	The guideline was published by the Environment Agency. Natural Resources Wales and Ofwat. It is relevant to water companies in England and Wales
Guideline, Various (2021)	Waler	provides guidance on how to produce a Plan (WRMP or Regional Plan), taking into account all the relevant statutory requirements and government polic regional and local planning context, how to form and develop a WRMP, forecasting supply and demand, uncertainty allowances, option identification and
WRSE Regional Plan, WRSE	Water	WRSE are currently developing a Regional Plan to secure resilient and sustainable water supplies for future generations through a collaborative, region take a long-term view to water resource planning across the region to 2100 in order to secure a sustainable and resilient water supply. The WRSE region
(penang 2022)		Ensure there is enough water for a growing population and to support economic growth
		Improve the environment by leaving more water in the region's rivers, streams and underground sources
		Increase the region's resilience to severe drought and other extreme shocks and stresses
		Address the impacts of climate change on demand for water and how much is available

e left. The CFMPs consider all types of inland ble of the CFMPs is to establish flood risk haking by key stakeholders such as the d land managers; the public and businesses to

re very few properties at risk of flooding. It

lied where the overall level of risk to people

re the risks are currently appropriately

er actions to keep pace with climate change: significantly rise in the future.

nose areas where the case for further action to creased risk.

I flood risk reduction or environmental hment by storing water or managing run-off. ent activities under each policy option. The

nd also, if relevant, where the EA needs to

discharges, ecology and conservation,

water users and the aquatic environment to

rust and WWF UK. It is an approach which ilk-streams has had damaging effects ,

5% net loss in supply

e UK Government's 25 Year Plan. It sets out address the current and future challenge of

I to water supply and demand are addressed burces needs when developing their regional following:

variety of actions.

ental destination and carry out testing.

overnment ambitions, prioritises the most is not constrained by previous decisions. commental destination.

s and also to those producing regional plans. It icy. The guidance sets out the national, nd developing a best value plan.

nal approach. The WRSE regional plan aims to onal plan will seek to:

Policy, Plan or Programme	Торіс	Key objectives, guidance and references
Developing our 'Best Value' multi-sector regional resilience plan, a consultation on our	Water	The report sets out WRSE's proposed approach to identifying the 'Best Value' plan as part of the regional planning process. Given that 'Best Value' can report aims to create a framework that will be used to assess the additional value delivered by water resource programmes. WRSE outline the following a of which have associated criteria and metrics used to assess the various water resource programmes in their investment modelling:
objectives, value criteria and		Deliver a secure and wholesome supply of water to customers and other users to 2100
metrics, WRSE (2021)		Be deliverable at a cost that is acceptable to customers
		Deliver long-term environmental improvement and social benefits
		A set of regional policies have also been developed to be delivered through the Regional Plan, some of which are regulatory requirements, however the
		No use of drought orders and permits that cause unnecessary harm* to the environment by 2040 and identification of those that could be considered as a
		A common level of service for customer temporary use bans across the six companies that operate in our region
		A provision of water to support those with private water supplies during droughts to overcome public health and animal welfare concerns by 2050
		Only import transfers of water that meet at least the same standards as our regional plan, for example environmental standards
WRSE Regional Plan Environmental Assessment Methodology, WRSE and Mott	Water	The guidance sets out the methodology for the environmental appraisal of the WRSE Regional Plan and provides a framework for WRMP24 developmer guidance and takes an integrated approach for SEA, Habitats Regulation Assessment (HRA), Water Framework Directive (WFD), Biodiversity Net Gain (environmental assessment methodology is structured around the following key stages:
MacDonald (2020)		Scoping – sets out the process for SEA Scoping to outline the context, scope and methodology for the SEA assessment. SEA, HRA and WFD datasets a environmental ambition feed into this stage.
		Assessment – two stage assessment process proposed (high level screening and detailed assessment). High level screening to be undertaken on the co red, amber green (RAG) approach with "Red" options flagged for rejection or mitigation. The detailed assessment to include SEA, HRA, WFD and N outlines the approach for each. From the detailed assessments, SEA, NC and BNG metrics are to be developed for the multi-criteria optimisation and and programme appraisal stage of the Regional Plan.
	14/-+	Reporting and Consultation – presents the process of reporting the environmental appraisal for consultation.
WRSE Regional Plan SEA Scoping Report, WRSE and Mott MacDonald (2020)	Water	Plan is not a statutory plan and SEA is not legally required, however, to ensure sustainability is integrated into the Plan, WRSE wishes to undertake a leg (biodiversity, flora and fauna; water; soil; air; climatic factors; population, communities and human health; historic environment; landscape; and material a SEA framework sets out the SEA objectives and criteria which the resource options will be assessed against.
WRSE Natural Capital and Biodiversity Net Gain Method Statement, WRSE and Mott MacDonald (2020)	Water	The Method Statement provides a review of the environmental and natural capital elements of the new draft water resources planning guidance and its a approach to environmental assessment for the WRSE Regional Plan. The Statement outlines that BNG will be incorporated within the assessment of diff biodiversity gain across any implemented plan. Mott MacDonald has suggested developing a biodiversity baseline from spatial data sets of habitat invent BNG change through land use of each option. This is recommended as a suitable methodology within the new guidance and will allow for the individual or plan within the development of their WRMPs. NC metrics will also be developed for integration within the multi-criteria optimisation process.
WRE Regional Plan, WRE (pending 2022)	Water	WRE are developing a Regional Plan to increase resilience of water resources for all users across the region, to ensure water resources do not pose a b the environment. The Plan will take a long-term view to 2100 and aims to balance the needs of each sector, ensuring that there is enough water for the e and risk to managed; both for water supply systems, as well as for the natural systems on which all abstractors depend. WRE covers the following water resource zone); Anglian Water; Cambridge Water (part of South Staffordshire Water); Essex & Suffolk Water (part of Northumbrian Water); and Severn T zones).
WRE Regional Plan Method Statement, WRE (2020)	Water	The Method Statement sets out how WRE will produce their Regional Plan in line with the National Framework. A collaborative approach will be taken will representatives from sectors and organisations across the region, developing the Plan through engagement, co-creation and collective decision making. elements within the WRE Regional Plan which includes:
		Strategic, regional scale planning which will include a combination of multi-objective robust decision making (MO-RDM), systematic conservation plannin on the Economics of Balancing Supply and Demand (EBSD)
		Sub-regional, including catchment scale, planning
		The Plan aims to make the responsibility of each sector clear in terms of the financing and delivery of schemes which include those specifically for water WRMPs as well as strategies, plans or schemes which need to be delivered by others.
WRE Draft Integrated Environmental Assessment Scoping Report, WRW (2021)	Water	An Integrated Environmental Assessment (IEA) is being undertaken to support the development of the WRE Regional Plan. The IEA will include SEA, HF The IEA encompasses an overarching SEA with the other assessments contributing to it. The Scoping Reports sets out the context and scope of the IEA into the SEA assessment and the report outlines the SEA framework and the assessment criteria which will be used to assess the options presented with approach is proposed to determine the environmental effects of the options and alternatives programmes: A high-level environmental screening assessment
		Detailed options-level assessment (including SEA, HRA, WFD, Natural Capital, BNG, and INNS assessments)
		Programme Appraisal, including cumulative and in-combination effects for SEA, HRA, WFD, Natural Capital, BNG, and INNS.
Water Resources West Regional Plan, WRW (pending 2023)	Water	The WRW Regional Plan covers catchment areas in the north-west of England, the Midlands and the cross-border catchments with Wales. The aim is to that reflects the needs and characteristics of their diverse region. The Plan will cover the period from 2025 to 2085 with a final version published in 2023. regional ambitions:
,		Sustainable water supplies, meeting wider societal needs for wellbeing
		Continued environmental improvement for sustainable water resources
		Resilience to extreme droughts in a changing climate · Water available to support economic growth across multiple sectors
		Ambitious water demand management
		Cost-effective plans, identified through innovation and co-operation, so solutions are affordable
Forward programme 2021-22	Water	The Regulator's Alliance for Progressing Infrastructure Development (RAPID) is a partnership formed of Ofwat the Environment Agency and the Drinking
RAPID (2021)	Walci	Wales involved in an advisory capacity for Welsh schemes. To achieve the vision for high quality, resilient and environmentally beneficial water resource Resource Options (SROs) are required and involve collaboration and complex arrangements between water companies and regions. Funding was alloca SRO infrastructure supply solutions and RAPID were established to support their development. RAPID undertakes the following roles:

mean different things to different people, the as objectives for the 'Best Value' Plan, each

following at within WRSE's discretion: an option within the regional plan

nt. It aligns with Environment Agency (BNG) and Natural Capital (NC). The

as well as regional prioritises and

onstrained options list and scored using a NC assessments and the methodology approach as part of the investment modelling

gy for undertaking the SEA. The Regional gally compliant SEA. All SEA topics assets) have been scoped into the SEA. The

alignment to the scope and proposed ferent programmes to ensure there is net tories, which can then be used to calculate companies to utilise work from the regional

parrier to economic growth and to enhance environment and allows long-term uncertainty r companies: Essex & Suffolk Water (Brett Trent (Nottinghamshire and Rutland resource

here WRE will work with planners and There are two inter-related multi-sector

ng (SCP), and least cost optimisation based

companies to be incorporated within their

RA, WFD, BNG, NC and INNS assessments. A with a focus on SEA. All topics are scoped hin the Regional Plan. The following

build a long-term, multi-sector adaptive plan . The Plan will be shaped by the following

ng Water Inspectorate with Natural Resources as which meet customer needs, Strategic ated to water companies to develop these

Policy, Plan or Programme	Торіс	Key objectives, guidance and references
		Gated process: The first role of RAPID is to provide oversight to the gated process which has been developed to ensure SROs are on track and meet ne way. Gate 1 submission has already taken place with Gate 2 due to complete in October 2022.
		Water Resources National Framework: RAPID acts as an enabler for the National Framework, supporting the co-ordination of the five regional groups ar
		Regulatory and commercial framework: Thirdly, RAPID are developing the regulatory and commercial framework to support the timely delivery of water r
		For the period 2021-2022, RAPID have identified the following five key delivery areas: developing a positive culture and driving performance; providing e engaging people and organisations; achieving effective long-term water resources resilience; and exploring and addressing regulatory and commercial or
Draft South East Marine Plan, Marine Management Organisation (2020)	Water	The south east inshore marine plan area stretches from Felixstowe in Suffolk to near Folkestone in Kent, covering approximately 1,400 kilometres of coa 3,900 square kilometres of sea. The French marine area, east inshore and offshore marine plan areas and the south inshore marine plan area border the area overlaps with 42 local authorities and three Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty. The River Thames has a large influence on the south east inshore
		The Plan sets out specific policy areas which include, but not limited to, co-existence, aquaculture, water quality, climate change, fisheries, marine litter, There are three key objectives, each of which have further aims associated with them:
		Achieving a sustainable marine economy
		Ensuring a strong, healthy and just society
		Living within environmental limits
Essex & Suffolk Water		
Environment Strategy (2021)	Environment	The strategy sets out guidance on overall assets and operations management to avoid environmental effects. It includes guidance on interactions with th rivers and beaches within the region and the overall environmental conditions.
Biodiversity Strategy (2021)	Biodiversity	This strategy supports the Government's national framework on biodiversity (July 2012) and uses an identified list of priority habitats and species called part of the Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act which upholds all water and sewerage companies to maintain, and where possible, enhance strategy allows for engagement with local environmental partners in the region to deliver site management work and enhancement schemes.
Pollution Incident Reduction Plan (2020)	Water	The purpose of this plan for 2020-25 is to set out guidance for reducing pollutions and meeting the zero pollutions goal as a result of assets and operatio varied stakeholders (the government, regulators, customers, environmental NGO's and the customer challenge group) with the objectives to maintain an and reduce the number of pollution incidents from wastewater and water operations. This plan further includes proven business-as-usual activities and in programmes to maintain and improve overall performance.
Draft Drought Plan 2022 (2021)	Water	The purpose of this plan is to identify how future droughts in the region will be managed; what measures are available to reduce demand and support su when actions are required and communication strategies with customers during a drought. It identifies and advices on 4 levels of water restrictions; maps stages; highlights the order of drought implementations actions in 4 levels and summarizes extreme drought measures as detailed actions.
PR19 Business Plan (2020)	Cross Cutting	This plan is structured across six key themes as identified during the consultation process with stakeholders. The purpose of this plan is to provide guida needed in each theme to deliver set out objectives and aims. The themes include:
		Unrivalled Customer Experience - delivering a package of measures to support an unrivalled customer experience.
		Affordable and Inclusive services - ensuring water and sewerage services remain affordable for all customers.
		Reliable and Resilient services - anticipating change in services, plan and make correct long-term decisions.
		Leading in Innovation - keeping updated with innovative solutions through technological advances and changing political and physical climates.
		Improving the Environment - creating a step change in environmental activities with an aim to demonstrate leadership and improve the environment with
		Building successful economies in the regions - demonstrating leadership and wider contributions to life within the region.
Safety, Health and Environment (SHE) Statement (2020)	Cross cutting	This statement highlights the overall ethical responsibility of the company by setting out clear directions on safety, health and the environment. It reflects regulatory requirements which will be under a continuous review, with any significant changes identified and the policy updated to reflect the same.
Emission Possible Plan to achieve net zero by 2027 (2021)	Climatic Factors	The purpose of this plan is to identify the progress by the company so far regarding reduction of carbon emissions from 303,000 tonnes in 2008 to 56,00 target of zero emissions by 2027. This plan recognizes the urgency and priorities for interventions needed to reach net zero emissions and provides info Fossil fuel reductions, Natural Gas Reductions, fuel change in operational vehicles, using renewables, managing offsets and implementing innovation stresses.
Leakage Target (2020)	Water	This report identifies the use of space satellites, drones and the public support (through the Leakage Portal) to reduce water leakage throughout the netw by 17.5% by 2025.
Water Environment Improvements / Blue spaces Scheme (2021)	Water	1. This scheme identifies, develops and includes water environment improvement projects throughout the network worth a £1 million for th anticipated overall 250km water environment improvement in areas that can be accessed and enjoyed for their water and wildlife, and the associated here.

eeds in a cost and environmentally efficient

nd helping to shape regional plans.

resources infrastructure.

effective oversight of the strategic solutions opportunities, gaps and barriers.

astline, taking in a total of approximately ne south east inshore marine plan area. The re marine plan area.

biodiversity, and net gain and natural capital.

he water environment to protect and improve

the Section 41 lists. The Section 41 lists are e biodiversity on their landholdings. This

ons. The plan considers expectations from n industry-leading pollution performance; nterventions and highlights transformative

upplies; what triggers can be used to identify os out the drought management process in 7

ance on the detailed goals and innovations

in the region.

the company safety direction, legislative and

00 tonnes in 2020 as well as the plan to hit the ormation on possible solutions for the same: trategies throughout the company.

work with an aim to reduce water leakage

ne period of 2020-25. It includes an alth and wellbeing benefits.

B. Baseline Maps

- B.1 Habitat Sites (SPA and SAC)
- B.2 Ramsar and SSSI
- **B.3** National Nature Reserves and Local Nature Reserves
- B.4 Main Rivers and Agricultural Land Classification
- B.5 Surface Water Catchments
- B.6 AONBs
- B.7 Heritage Sites

383187-MMD-WR-00-Y-RP-0001 | Jan 2022



	Location Map						
		the second				J	
	Key	to Symbols					
		 WRE a Specia Specia 	rea I Area I Prot	a of Conservatic ection Area (SP	on (SAC	;)	
	Note Contain Contain © Natu databas	S Is OS data © Crow Is data from OS Zo ral England copyrig se right 2020	un Copyrig bomstack ght. Conta	ht and database right 2020 ins Ordnance Survey data © C	2rown copyrig	nt and	
	01 Rov	26/01/2022	LJ/SLG	For Information	JF	CLB App'd	
	WF Sci De	Mott Macdon/ NOR NOR NOR NOR Signated	EA port Sites	Mott Macl 22 Statior Cambridg United Kin T +44 (0) W mottma	Donald n Road le, CB1 2. ngdom 120 8774 2 ac.com	D 0000	
TKilometres			A	ppendix B1			



	Location Map					
	Loca Key 1	s s SOS data @ Crow is data from OS Zor ral England copyrije e right 2020	ea Specia	I Scientific Intere	st (SSS	I)
	01	26/01/2022	LJ/SLG	For Information	JF	CLB
	Rev	Date	Drawn	Description	Ch'k'd	App'd
		M MOTT MACDONA		Mott Macl 22 Station Cambridg United Kir T +44 (0) W mottma	Donald n Road e, CB1 2, ngdom 20 8774 2 ac.com	1D 2000
	WF Sci De	RMP24 Slopping Repsignated	EA port Sites	(SSSI and Rar	msar)	
TKilometres	L		A	ppendix B2		



C:\Users\glo27857\Mott MacDonald\100104977 NWL WRMP24 Option Development & Assessment - GIS\AStRO_Dashboard\03_Map_Composition\NWL WRMP24 - Environmental Assessment\NWL WRMP24 - Environmental Assessment.aprx\20220126 National Nature Reserves and Local Nature Reserves

	Location Map					
	Keyt	to Symbols	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			<u> </u>
		WRE a	area			
		Local N	Vatur	e Reserve (LNR	.)	
		Nation	al Na	ture Reserve (N	NR)	
	Note Contain © Natur databas	S is OS data © Crow is data from OS Zi ral England copyri ae right 2020	vn Copyrig oomstack ght. Conta	ht and database right 2020 ins Ordnance Survey data © Cn	own copyrig	nt and
	01 Rev	26/01/2022 Date	LJ/SLG Drawn	For Information Description	JF Ch'k'd	CLB App'd
				Mott MacD 22 Station Cambridge United King T +44 (0)2 W mottmac	onald Road , CB1 2, gdom 20 8774 2 c.com	ID 2000
		NOR WAT		JMBRIAN Living wai	ter	
	WF Sco De	RMP24 S oping Re signated	EA port Sites	(LNR and NNR)	
TKilometres			Арр	endix B3		



	1						
	Location Map						
		to prove	7	3	AND	7 e	J.
	Key t	o Symbols					
	Note: Contain	o Symbols WRE are Main rive Grade 1 Grade 2 Grade 3 Grade 4 Grade 5 Non agric Urban Exclusion S S S O data © Crow s data from OS 2 al England copyri e right 2020 onment Agency or e rights 2020	a r ricultur cultural	al Land C	Classificatio	n (ALC	C)
						1	
	01	26/01/2022	SLG/L.I	For Informa	tion	JF	CLB
	Rev	Date	Drawn	Description		Ch'k'd	App'd
			M		Mott MacDo 22 Station R Cambridge, United Kingo T +44 (0)20 W mottmac.	nald Coad CB1 2. dom) 8774 2 com	JD 2000
	WF Sco Ma Cla	RMP24 S oping Re in Rivers	EA port and a	Agricult	g wat	er	
☐Kilometres 50			A	ppendix	(B4		



C:\Users\glo27857\Mott MacDonald\100104977 NWL WRMP24 Option Development & Assessment - GIS\AStRO_Dashboard\03_Map_Composition\NWL WRMP24 - Environmental Assessment\NWL WRMP24 - Environmental Assessment.aprx\20220126 Environmental Baseline CatchmentsOverview

	Location Map						
		the second	7	37	the week	{or	P
	Key t	o Symbols					
	Key t	s Symbols WRE SSUPPORT SSUPPO	area x and urce / iter ca ner use Georg eny	Suffolk Area atchmen ge	Water It been and Suffolk Wa	ter, 2021-	2022.
	02	26/01/2022	SLG	For Informat	tion	JE	CLB
	01	01/12/2024	1.1	For Informat	tion		CLP
	UT Dett	01/12/2021	LJ		1011		ULB Annisi
	KeV				Mott MacDor 22 Station Ro Cambridge, 0 United Kingd T +44 (0)20 W mottmac.c	on kd bad CB1 2J om 8774 2	лрра 2000
		NOR WAT	THU ER (JMB	RIAN g wate	er	
	WF Sco Wa Ca	RMP24 S oping Re Iter Reso tchment I	EA port urces Boun	s East Ai dary Ov	rea and erview		
Kilometres			A	ppendix	B5		

30



	Loca	tion Map								
	Location Map									
		- And	7	3			7	J		
	Key to Symbols									
		WRE a	area f Outs	standing) Natura	al E	3eaut	зу		
	Notes	s								
	Contain	s OS data © Crov	wn Copyrig	ht and databas	e right 2020					
	© Natur databas	al England copyri se right 2020	ight. Conta	ins Ordnance S	Survey data ©	Crow	n copyrig	ht and		
	01	26/01/2022	LJ/SLG	For Informa	ation		JF	CLB		
	Rev		Drawn	Description	Mott Mac 22 Statio Cambride United K T +44 (0 W mottm	Dor n Ri ge, (ingd)20 ac.o	Ch'k'd oad CB1 2. Iom 8774 2 com	App'd ID 2000		
	NORTHUMBRIAN WATER living water									
	WF Sco Are	RMP24 S oping Re eas of Ou	EA port itstan	ding Na	itural B	ea	uty			
es	Appendix B6									



	Loca	tion Map					
	Keyt	to Symbols	*	3			J.
		WRE a Regista Scheda Regista Regista	area ered j uled r ered l	oark and nonumer oattlefield	garde I	n	
	Note Contain © Histo databas obtaine Data ca	S is OS data © Crov is data from OS Zi ric England 2022. Se right 2022. The i do 04/01/2022. In be obtained fror	vn Copyrig oomstackC Contains C Historic En The most p n HistoricE	ht and database ri NS 1:10K © Crown Ordnance Survey o gland GIS Databe ungland.org.uk.	ght 2020 © data © Crow ontained in t ip to date Hi	vn copyright ar his material w storic England	id as GIS
	01 Rev	Date	Drawn	Por Informatio Description 2 C U U T V	n 10tt Macl 2 Statior 2ambridg Jnited Kin - +44 (0) V mottma	Donald n Road je, CB1 2J ngdom j20 8774 2 ac.com	CLB App'd D
	WF	NOR WAT	THU ER (JMBR iving	wa	ter	
∃Kilometres 50	De	signated	port Herita	age Asse	ts B7		

C. SEA Process Tasks

Table C.1: Description of SEA Stages and Tasks

SEA Stage	SEA Task	Task Purpose		
Stage A Setting the context and objectives, establishing the	A1: Identifying other relevant plans, programmes, and environmental protection objectives	To establish how the plan or programme is affected by outside factors, to suggest ideas for how any constraints can be addressed, and to help to identify SEA objectives		
baseline and deciding on the scope	A2: Collecting baseline information	To provide an evidence base for environmental problems, prediction of effects, and monitoring; to help in the development of SEA objectives		
	A3: Identifying environmental problems	To help focus the SEA and streamline the subsequent stages, including baseline information analysis, setting of the SEA objectives, prediction of effects and monitoring		
	A4: Developing SEA objectives	To provide a means by which the environmental performance of the plan or programme and alternatives can be assessed		
	A5: Consulting on the scope of SEA	To ensure that the SEA covers the likely significant environmental effects of the plan or programme. This is a statutory five-week consultation period, as a minimum)		
Stage B Developing and refining alternatives	B1: Testing the plan or programme objectives against the SEA objectives	To identify potential synergies or inconsistencies between the objectives of the plan or programme and the SEA objectives and help in developing alternatives		
and assessing effects	B2: Developing strategic alternatives	To develop and refine strategic alternatives		
	B3: Predicting the effects of the draft plan or programme, including alternatives	To predict the significant environmental effects of the plan or programme and alternatives		
	B4: Evaluating the effects of the draft plan or programme, including alternatives	To evaluate the predicted effects of the plan or programme and its alternatives and assist in the refinement of the plan or programme		
	B5: Considering ways of mitigating adverse effects	To ensure that adverse effects are identified and potential mitigation measures are considered		
	B6: Proposing measures to monitor the environmental effects of plan or programme implementation	To details the means by which the environmental performance for the plan or programme can be assessed		
Stage C Preparing the Environmental Report	C1: Preparing the Environmental Report	To present the predicted environmental effects of the plan or programme, including alternatives, in a form suitable for public consultation and use by decision-makers		
Stage D Consulting on the draft plan or programme and the Environmental Report	D1: Consulting on the draft plan or programme and Environmental Report	To give the public and the Consultation Bodies an opportunity to express their opinions on the findings of the Environmental Report and to use it as a reference point in commenting on the plan or programme. There is no set time period for consultation. The SEA Directive states that the Consultation Bodies and the public 'shall be given an early and effective opportunity within appropriate time frames to express their opinion on the draft plan or programme and the accompanying environmental report before the adoption of the plan or programme or its submission to the legislative procedure'. The Environmental Report will be consulted upon alongside the draft WRMP To gather more information through the opinions and concerns of the public		
	D2: Assessing significant changes	To ensure that the environmental implications of any significant changes to the draft plan or programme at this stage are assessed and taken into account		
	D3: Decision making and providing information	To provide information on how the Environmental Report and consultees' opinions were taken into account in deciding the final form of the plan or programme to be adopted		
Stage E Monitoring implementation of	E1: Developing aims and methods for monitoring	To track the environmental effects of the plan or programme to show whether they are as predicted; to help identify adverse effects		
the plans or programme	E2: Responding to adverse effects	To prepare for appropriate responses where adverse effects are identified		

D. Option Types Issues and Opportunities on types

D.1 Aquifer storage and recovery

Aquifer storage options involve abstracting water from a river or reservoir, treating and injecting it underground to be stored in natural aquifers.

Table D.1: Aquifer storage and recovery

SEA Topic	Issues	Benefits/ Opportunities
Water	 Potential loss of water through underground flows. Pumping of water underground may exacerbate flooding from groundwater and reduce capacity for infiltration (because of a higher water table). Risk of groundwater quality impacts such as mobilisation of heavy metals or fluoride upon injection of oxygenated surface water. 	 A quantity of potable fresh water can be stored for use in times of drought/high demand. Pumping of water underground may reduce overland flows and run-off which could reduce flooding in some circumstances.
Population and Human Health	 Potential effect on agricultural land and consequently farmers' livelihoods through increase flood risk and landtake for plant and pipelines. If there is a reduction of downstream flows this could affect recreational activities such as canoeing and fishing activities, and downstream communities detrimentally. 	 Source of water during drought conditions to maintain water supply for customers. Pumping water underground during high flows could reduce flood risk to property and businesses. Aquifer storage and recovery (ASR) could help maintain flows in drought conditions benefiting farming and recreational activities.
Biodiversity, Flora and Fauna	 Potential loss of habitat resulting from landtake for the construction of plant and pipeline (significance of effects will depend on the existing ecological value of the site). Reduced amount of water available for downstream habitats which may be dependent on damp environments. 	 There could be increased groundwater and discharge back to rivers enhancing habitats and improving resilience of habitats during droughts.
Landscape	 New plant and pipeline associated with ASR options may not be in keeping with the existing landscape character and cause visual effects. 	-
Historic Environment	 Potential damage, disturbance, or effects on the setting of heritage assets and archaeology from construction of plant and pipeline infrastructure. 	-
Climate Factors	 The additional treatment of water and pumping may emit GHGs. Short-term GHG emissions likely to be emitted during construction of plant and pipeline infrastructure. 	 ASR options will provide an increased quantity of stored water which can be used in times of drought. Potential for surface flood risk reduction by taking high flows of rivers and storing underground.
Air	 The additional treatment of water and pumping may emit pollutants. Short-term emissions of air pollutants likely during construction. 	-
Soil	 Risk of localised ground heave at ASR site. 	-
Material Assets	 New infrastructure is required and therefore the use of materials is required. It is likely that energy use will increase during both construction and operation phases. 	Opportunity to implement sustainable design measures.

D.2 Catchment management

Catchment management options include flow augmentation and licencing; integrated catchment management; knowledge exchange, education and agricultural activity; natural water retention measures (including NFM and wetland creation); nutrient and sediment reduction; pesticide reduction; river restoration; Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems (SuDS); and terrestrial habitat creation/management.

Table	e D.2:	Catc	hment	: manag	jement
-------	--------	------	-------	---------	--------

SEA Topic	Issues	Benefits/ Opportunities
Water	• -	Improvement to water quality.Sustainable management of water.
Population and Human Health	• -	 Community involvement in projects. Opportunity to create new recreation provision for the community and visitors at the reservoir such as fishing, bird watching, water sports, mountain biking. Increased community knowledge on catchment management.
Biodiversity, Flora and Fauna	 Management activities could affect species and habitats e.g., river restoration during construction work. Management activities such as woodland planting need to be in locations that do not impact other sensitive or designated habitats and sites. 	 Opportunities for increased biodiversity and habitat creation and management, and through the creation of wetlands. Improved habitat through river restoration. Improved habitat through nutrient and sediment reduction.
Landscape	Short-term construction effects of constructing.	Potential to create new aesthetic landscape.
Historic Environment	• Potential for damage to uncovered archaeological artefacts if excavation needed.	• -
Climate Factors	 Short-term GHG emissions likely to be emitted during construction. 	• Use of renewables during construction for energy supply and use of materials with lower embodied carbon.
		 Reduce vulnerability to climate change risks and hazards through the implementation of a catchment management approach.
Air	Short-term emissions of air pollutants likely during construction.	• -
Soil	 Potential loss of agricultural land for catchment schemes such as woodland planting. 	 Increased soil stability through the terrestrial habitat creation/management.
Material Assets	Short-term energy use required during construction.	Opportunity to implement sustainable design measures.

D.3 Desalination

Desalination options involve pumping sea water or brackish water (from an estuary) for treatment and release into supply. The water will be blended before putting into supply, with the brine to be piped out to sea for disposal (in the case of sea desalination) or to a sewer (in the case of brackish water desalination).

SEA Topic	Issues	Benefits/ Opportunities	
Water	• Brine discharge into the sea or from sewer outfalls could affect salinity of water.	 Desalination options will relieve pressure on the natural system by providing an alternative water resource resulting in more freshwater available for the natural systems. 	
Population and Human Health	 Desalination removes iodine from water and could increase risk of iodine deficiency disorders if this is not re-added, although micronutrient deficiencies could be addressed by re-adding elements to the water. 	 Indirect benefit to agriculture through increased supply of freshwater within terrestrial component of water supply available for agricultural irrigation use. 	
	 Potential loss of agricultural land and effects on farmers' livelihoods if agricultural land is lost due to landtake for plant and associated infrastructure. 		
Biodiversity, Flora and Fauna • Potential loss of habitats and species due to landtake for construction of the desalination plant and associated infrastructure.	 Increased quantity of freshwater within the system could supply more freshwater to habitats dependent on freshwater supply. Increased quantity could make habitats more resilient to element out therefore motivate the there. 		
	 Release of brine into the ocean could affect sensitive habitats and species. 	during drought conditions.	
	 Intake structures have potential to suck in fish, shellfish (or their eggs), depending on intake type and water withdrawal rate. Potential for larger organisms to be injured/killed if they become trapped against screens at front of intake structures. 	 Opportunity to include habitat creation within plant site through landscape planting. 	
Landscape	 Potential visual impact of desalination plant, especially if it located close to a beach or coastal path etc. 	• -	
Historic Environment	 Desalination plant and site could alter heritage value of landscape or heritage assets (including archaeology) if insensitively located or designed. 	• -	
Climate Factors	• Plant likely to be a net source of greenhouse gases emissions and will use large amounts of energy which will contribute to global warming and climate change.	 Opportunity to use renewable energy technologies in the future to power the plant. 	
		 Increased quantity of freshwater within the system could increase resilience to drought. 	
Air	The pumping may emit pollutants.	• -	
	 Short-term emissions of air pollutants likely during construction. 		
Soil	 Potential habitat loss from additional landtake required for plant and associated infrastructure 	• -	
Material Assets	 Production of highly saline and potentially contaminated by- products (sludge). If a re-use (e.g., industrial) cannot to be disposed of. 	• -	

D.4 Distribution capacity expansion

Intra-zonal network enhancements (increased pipeline capacity or booster pumping capacity) to enable water to be transferred from new sources to demand centres within the water resource zone.

Table D.4:	Distribution	capacity	expansi	ion
------------	--------------	----------	---------	-----

SEA Topic	Issues	Benefits/ Opportunities
Water	 Potential reduction in river flows of new sources could reduce provision water provision for other users and dependent ecology. Water from new sources may be of a different quality and mineral make-up which may require treatment. 	 Additional water will be available in the receiving system. Increased provision of freshwater for users connected to network.
Population and Human Health	 If reduction of flows in identified new sources this could affect recreational activities such as canoeing and fishing activities, and downstream communities detrimentally. If reduction of flows in identified new sources this could affect agricultural systems and habitats and make them more susceptible to drought stress. 	Additional source of water available to users.
Biodiversity, Flora and Fauna	 If reduction in flows in identified new sources this could reduce freshwater supporting existing habitats. Potential habitat loss from additional landtake required to increase pipeline capacity or booster pumping capacity. 	Enables water transfer from areas of surplus, reducing pressure on the local water environment.
Landscape	 Potential habitat loss from additional landtake required to increase pipeline capacity or booster pumping capacity. Short-term construction effects of constructing network enhancements. 	Potential to create new aesthetic landscape.
Historic Environment	 Potential for damage to uncovered archaeological artefacts from excavation to support increased pipeline capacity or booster pumping capacity. 	• -
Climate Factors	 Short-term GHG emissions likely to be emitted during construction of network enhancements. Carbon could be generated from materials used to construct network enhancements. 	Use of renewables during construction and operation for energy supply and use of materials with lower embodied carbon.
Air	 Short-term emissions of air pollutants likely during construction. 	• -
Soil	 Potential habitat loss from additional landtake required to increase pipeline capacity or booster pumping capacity. 	• -
Material Assets	 New infrastructure to support network enhancements is required and therefore the use of materials is required. It is 	Opportunity to implement sustainable design measures.

SEA Topic	Issues	Benefits/ Opportunities
	likely that energy use will increase during both construction and operation phases.	

D.5 Drought intervention

Drought intervention options include drought order; drought permit; recommission abandoned sources; and temporary transfer. Under drought conditions, where a serious deficiency of supplies threatens to occur, or already exists, Drought Permits may be required in order to increase supplies to manage the supply-demand balance. Short-term options.

Table D.5: Drought intervention

SEA Topic	Issues	Benefits/ Opportunities
Water	 Potential reduction in river flows could reduce provision water provision for other users and dependent ecology. 	• -
	 Additional pressure on sources of water, risk to water quality. 	
Population and Human Health	 Reduction in river flows could affect recreation, communities, agricultural systems, and habitats, and make them more susceptible to drought stress. 	 Water supply which can be relied on even in situation of drought.
Biodiversity, Flora and Fauna	 Reduction in river flows could reduce freshwater supporting existing habitats. 	• -
Landscape	 Additional reduction in available water, risk to adversely impact existing landscaping. 	• -
Historic Environment	 Landscape characteristics could be lost through the lack of water. 	• -
Climate Factors	 Short-term GHG emissions could be emitted (for the duration of the drought conditions only). 	• -
Air	• Short-term emissions of air pollutants (for the duration of the drought conditions only).	• -
Soil	• Potential loss of soils (depending on the temporary solution).	• -
Material Assets	 Short-term energy use required during construction and operation. 	Opportunity to implement sustainable design measures.

D.6 Groundwater sources

Usually a borehole which abstracts water from an aquifer which then goes to a treatment works.

Table D.6: Groundwater sources

SEA Topic	Issues	Benefits/ Opportunities	
Water	 Pumping of water underground may exacerbate flooding from groundwater and reduce capacity for infiltration (because of a higher water table). Risk of groundwater quality impacts. 	Additional source of water available to users.	
Population and Human Health	 Potential loss of agricultural land and effects on farmers' livelihoods if agricultural land is lost due to landtake for plant and associated infrastructure. 	Additional source of water available to users.	
Biodiversity, flora and fauna	 Potential loss of habitat resulting from landtake for the construction of plant and associated infrastructure. 	Opportunities for habitat creation.	
Landscape	 The treatment plant could affect the aesthetic value of the landscape. 	 Potential for landscaping in proximity of the treatment works. 	
Historic Environment	 The treatment plant could affect fabric or setting of heritage assets. Potential for damage to uncovered archaeological artefacts from borehole. 	• -	
Climate Factors	 Carbon could be generated from materials used to construct the treatment works (embodied carbon), construction activities and from operation of the treatment works. 	 Use of renewables during construction and operation for energy supply and use of materials with lower embodied carbon. 	
Air	 Short-term emissions of air pollutants likely during construction. The additional treatment of water and pumping may emit pollutants. 	• -	
Soil	• Loss of soils due to landtake required for treatment works.	• -	
Material Assets	• New infrastructure therefore the use of materials is required. It is likely that energy use will increase during both construction and operation phases.	Opportunity to implement sustainable design measures	

D.7 Increase water treatment works (WTW) capacity and efficiency

Increase deployable output by removing constraints on dissolved oxygen within the treatment works, or reducing process losses.

SEA Topic	Issues	Benefits/ Opportunities
Water	 Additional pressure on sources of water as a result of greater WTW capacity. 	 Improved water quality as a result of amendments to the treatment process.
Population and Human Health	 Potential loss of agricultural land and effects on farmers' livelihoods if agricultural land is lost due to landtake for new infrastructure and/or expansion of existing infrastructure. 	Additional source of water available to users.
Biodiversity, Flora and Fauna	 Potential habitat loss from additional landtake required for new infrastructure and/or expansion of existing infrastructure. 	• -
Landscape	Potential habitat loss from additional landtake from new infrastructure and/or expansion of existing infrastructure.	Potential to create new aesthetic landscape.

Table D.7: Increase water treatment works (WTW) capacity and efficiency

383187-MMD-WR-00-Y-RP-0001 | Jan 2022

SEA Topic	Issues	Benefits/ Opportunities
	 Short-term construction effects of constructing new infrastructure and/or expansion of existing infrastructure. 	
	 New infrastructure and/or expansion of existing infrastructure could affect the aesthetic value of the landscape. 	
Historic Environment	 Potential for damage to uncovered archaeological artefacts from excavation to support new infrastructure and/or expansion of existing infrastructure. 	• -
	The treatment plant could affect setting of heritage assets.	
Climate Factors	 Short-term GHG emissions likely to be emitted during construction. 	 Use of renewables during construction and operation for energy supply and use of materials with lower embodied
	 Carbon could be generated from materials used for new infrastructure and/or expansion of existing infrastructure. 	carbon.
Air	 Short-term emissions of air pollutants likely during construction. 	• -
Soil	 Potential habitat loss from additional landtake required for new infrastructure and/or expansion of existing infrastructure. 	• -
Material Assets	 New infrastructure and/or expansion of existing infrastructure is required and therefore the use of materials is required. It is likely that energy use will increase during both construction and operation phases. 	Opportunity to implement sustainable design measures.

D.8 Effluent reuse

Effluent is treated and discharged into rivers for re-abstraction downstream into potable water treatment works or piped into supply.

SEA Topic	Issues	Benefits/ Opportunities
Water	 Potential reduction in flows downstream of effluent treatment plant could reduce provision water provision for other users and dependent ecology; 	 Increased provision of freshwater for users connected to network with effluent treatment.
	 Potential for increased salinity and metals in final effluent from reverse osmosis. 	
Population and Human Health	 Transfers of treated effluent could provide route for disease spread. Reduction in flows downstream of effluent treatment plant could affect recreation, communities, agricultural systems, and habitats, and make them more susceptible to drought 	 - Potential for additional water in the system to support agriculture; Treated effluent can be abstracted to meet demand.
Biodiversity, Flora and Fauna	 stress. Reduction in river flows downstream of effluent treatment could reduce freshwater supporting existing habitats; Potential landtake for treatment plant could cause habitat loss. 	 Opportunity for treated effluent to be distributed to support conservation efforts for ecologically important habitats in threatened catchments; Opportunity to include wetland treatment which would provide additional babitat
Landscape	• The new treatment plant could affect the aesthetic value of the landscape.	-
Historic Environment	• The treatment plant could affect fabric or setting of heritage assets.	-
Climate Factors	 Potential for release of polluting gases during treatment process, pumping, and construction of plant. 	 Opportunity to use renewable technology to power treatment plant and pumps; Reduction in flows downstream of effluent treatment could reduce impacts of flooding.
Air	 Short-term emissions of air pollutants likely during construction. 	• -
Soil	 Potential habitat loss from additional landtake required for plant and associated infrastructure 	• -
Material Assets	 New plant and associated infrastructure are required and therefore the use of materials is required. It is likely that energy use will increase during both construction and operation phases. 	Opportunity to implement sustainable design measures.

Table D.8: Effluent reuse

D.9 Reservoirs

Reservoir options include dam raising (increasing the capacity of existing reservoirs), or creation of new reservoirs. It is likely that most of these will be bunded reservoirs (i.e. not within a valley) with piped transfers in and out of supply.

Table D.9: Reservoirs

SEA Topic	Issues	Benefits/ Opportunities
Water	 A reservoir may reduce downstream flows further during dry periods; Potential eutrophication risk through nutrient inputs from surrounding farmland. 	 A reservoir will provide fresh water storage and increased provision of water for use.
Population and Human Health	 Reservoirs could provide medium for disease transmission. Potential for loss of agricultural land and associated effects on farmers' livelihoods, and loss of recreational and tourism assets through landtake for creation of the reservoir. 	 Opportunity to enhance well-being through creation of a multi-functional reservoir which includes recreation and nature provision. Opportunity to create new recreation provision for the community and visitors at the reservoir such as fishing, bird watching, water sports, mountain biking.
Biodiversity, Flora and Fauna	 The reservoir could provide a medium for pest transmission, including fish parasites. Potential risk of eutrophication and algal 'pests' within new reservoir. 	• Opportunities for increased biodiversity and habitat creation through landscaping and use of wetlands.

SEA Topic	Issues	Benefits/ Opportunities
	 Potential loss of habitat due to landtake for creation of the reservoir. 	
	• If new dam is a river dam, then it could block migratory fish.	
	 Reservoirs can experience considerable variations in levels which limits species able to survive in these conditions. 	
	 Reduced flows downstream could result in alterations in habitat cover reliant on damp conditions. 	
Landscape	Loss of existing landscape beneath new reservoir.Visual effects of new reservoir.	 Potential to create new aesthetic landscape through introduction of reservoir and landscaping.
Historic Environment	 Distinct landscapes characteristics could be lost through inundation for a new reservoir. 	 Opportunity for new dams and interconnecting features to be designed as 'art'.
	 Effects on setting or fabric of heritage assets including archaeology. 	• Cultural heritage can form an important part of the local landscape e.g. the dam itself can be a heritage feature.
Climate Factors	 Likely short term loss of GHGs from land beneath new reservoir as vegetation degrades causing release of 	 In the long term the reservoir water body could act as a sink for industrial emissions.
	pollutant gases.Creation of a large area of open water could increase	 Likely to change local microclimate - increasing humidity and reducing extremes of temperatures.
	exposure to wind.	 Increased monitoring and control of flows could assist in downstream flood alleviation.
Air	 Short-term emissions of air pollutants likely during construction. 	• -
Soil	Loss of soils due to landtake for reservoir construction.	• -
Material Assets	 New reservoir is required and therefore the use of materials is required. It is likely that energy use will increase during both construction and operation phases. 	Opportunity to implement sustainable design measures.

D.10 Redevelopment of existing resources with increased yields

Increase the potential yield of an existing water resource asset in order to increase deployable output.

Table D.10: Redevelopment of existing resources with increased yields

SEA Topic	Issues	Benefits/ Opportunities
Water	 Additional pressure on sources of water as a result of greater capacity. 	Increased provision of water for use
Population and Human Health	 Potential loss of agricultural land and effects on farmers' livelihoods if agricultural land is lost due to landtake for expansion of existing infrastructure. 	Additional source of water available to users.
Biodiversity, Flora and Fauna	 Potential habitat loss from additional landtake required for expansion of existing infrastructure. 	• -
Landscape	 Potential habitat loss from additional landtake from expansion of existing infrastructure. Short-term construction effects of constructing expansion of existing infrastructure. Expansion of existing infrastructure could affect the aesthetic value of the landscape. 	 Potential to create new aesthetic landscape.
Historic Environment	 Potential for damage to uncovered archaeological artefacts from excavation to support expansion of existing infrastructure. The expansion could affect setting of heritage assets. 	• -
Climate Factors	 Short-term GHG emissions likely to be emitted during construction. Carbon could be generated from materials used for expansion of existing infrastructure. 	 Use of renewables during construction and operation for energy supply and use of materials with lower embodied carbon.
Air	 Short-term emissions of air pollutants likely during construction. 	• -
Soil	 Potential habitat loss from additional landtake required for expansion of existing infrastructure. 	• -
Material Assets	• Expansion of existing infrastructure is required and therefore the use of materials is required. It is likely that energy use will increase during both construction and operation phases.	Opportunity to implement sustainable design measures.

D.11 Tankering

Sea tankering options from abroad are being considered. Storage and offloading facilities will be required in the UK with water piped or tankered to WTWs or reservoirs.

Table D.11: Tankering

SEA Topic	Issues	Benefits/ Opportunities
Water	 Water from donor system may be of a different quality and mineral make-up which may require treatment. 	 There will be additional water in the receiving system to increase resilience in low flow drought periods.
Population and Human Health	Transfers between countries and pipes could provide conduit for disease transmission.	 Increased water available in receiving catchment to support resilience of water supply to customers in severe
	 Potential disruption to users if a new pipeline and pumping station is constructed on agricultural land, recreation land, right of way etc. 	drought conditions.
Biodiversity, Flora and Fauna	Potential habitat loss from landtake to build pipelines.Potential for non-native species transfer.	 Additional water available in low flow periods (droughts) to for habitats in the receiving catchment.
Landscape	 Short-term construction effects of constructing new pipelines. 	• -

SEA Topic	Issues	Benefits/ Opportunities
Historic Environment	 Potential for damage to uncovered archaeological artefacts from excavation for a new pipeline. 	• -
Climate Factors	 Short-term air pollution and emissions from construction effects of new pipelines. Increased air pollutant and GHG emissions from transport movements from sea and road tankering. 	Opportunity for use of electric vehicles for tankering
Air	 Short-term emissions of air pollutants likely during construction. 	• -
Soil	Loss of soils due to landtake for pipelines.	• -
Material Assets	 New pipeline and pumping station are required and therefore the use of materials is required. It is likely that energy use will increase during both construction and operation phases. 	Opportunity to implement sustainable design measures.

D.12 Transfers

Transfers includes asset transfers, and bulk transfers within/into region, either of raw or treated water.

Table D.12: Transfers

SEA Topic	Issues	Benefits/ Opportunities
Water	 Water from different catchments may have different water qualities requiring additional treatment. 	 Additional water will be available in the receiving system. Habitat creation on banks and landscaping could provide a small degree of water purification of run-off prior to entering channel
Population and Human Health	 Transfers between catchments and channels could provide conduit for disease transmission. Potential disruption to users if a new channel or pipeline and pumping station is constructed on agricultural land, recreation land, right of way etc. 	 Potential for open channels to be a local focal point for community interest e.g. fishing, and nature watching/walking.
Biodiversity, Flora and Fauna	 Potential habitat loss from landtake to build channels or pipelines. Potential for non-native species transfer. 	 Potential for habitat creation (freshwater habitat and bankside habitat). Increased water within the receiving system could benefit water dependant ecological areas. Potential to alleviate low flows and drive habitat creation through the topping up of rivers to help rejuvenate backwaters and dried-up channels. Land restoration following pipeline construction could include new habitat creation such as wild flower areas.
Landscape	 Short-term construction effects of constructing new pipelines. 	 Open channels including inherent bankside habitat may increase aesthetic diversity of the area.
Historic Environment	 Potential for damage to uncovered archaeological artefacts from excavation for new channels and pipelines. 	• -
Climate Factors	 Likely short-term release of emissions during construction of channels and pipelines. Carbon costs associated with pumping over the watershed. 	 In the long term, open water bodies in channels could act as sinks for industrial emissions. New channels could act as flood water storage. Increased water within the receiving system will provide increased resilience against droughts.
Air	Short-term emissions of air pollutants likely during construction.	• -
Soil	Loss of soils due to landtake for channel and pipeline construction.	 Landscape planting will stabilise soils around channels. Soils and sediment could be collected from channels to be used as agricultural product.
Material Assets	• New pipelines and channels are required and therefore the use of materials is required. It is likely that energy use will increase during both construction and operation phases.	Opportunity to implement sustainable design measures.

D.13 Trading

Involves an agreement with another water company to trade water where there is a surplus.

Table D.13: Trading

SEA Topic	Issues	Benefits/ Opportunities
Water	• -	 Existing water infrastructure and source of water (no additional pressure on the water environment).
Population and Human Health	• If minor upgrades needed, could result in habitat loss.	Increased provision of water for use by the community.
Biodiversity, Flora and Fauna	• If minor upgrades needed, could result in habitat loss.	• -
Landscape	• If minor upgrades needed, short-term construction effects.	• -
Historic Environment	 If minor upgrades needed, potential for damage to uncovered archaeological artefacts from excavation for pipeline upgrades. 	• -
Climate Factors	 If minor upgrades needed, short-term GHG emissions likely to be emitted during construction. Carbon could be generated from materials used for upgrades e.g. booster pumps, pipeline upgrades. 	 Use of renewables during construction and operation for energy supply and use of materials with lower embodied carbon.
Air	 If minor upgrades needed, short-term emissions of air pollutants likely during construction. 	• -
Soil	If minor upgrades needed, could result in habitat loss.	• -

SEA Topic	Issues	Benefits/ Opportunities
Material Assets	 If minor upgrades needed, use of materials will be required. It is likely that energy use will increase during construction phase. 	Opportunity to implement sustainable design measures.

D.14 Metering

Involves reducing water consumption by installing meters in currently unmeasured properties, and can include compulsory metering for household and non-household uses, smart metering, and other metering such as optant metering.

Table D.14: Metering

SEA Topic	Issues	Benefits/ Opportunities
Water	• -	Minimise water waste.
Population and Human Health	• -	• Increased awareness on water usage within the community.
Biodiversity, Flora and Fauna	• -	• -
Landscape	• -	• -
Historic Environment	• -	• -
Climate Factors	• -	 Provides a better understanding of the water consumption and potential future needs.
		 Identify future measures to minimise water waste.
Air	• -	• -
Soil	• -	• -
Material Assets	 If minor upgrades needed, use of materials will be required. It is likely that energy use will increase during construction phase. 	Opportunity to implement sustainable design measures.

D.15 Other consumption reduction

Involves reducing household and non-household consumption in ways other than metering. It can include tariffs/fees (introduction of special fees, changes to existing measured tariffs, introduction of special tariffs for specific users) and water recycling (rainwater harvesting / grey water reuse for new or existing household and non-household). It can also include water efficiency measures such as the provision of advice and information on direct abstraction and irrigation techniques or leakage detection and fixing techniques, water use audit and inspection, awareness campaigns, sponsoring water efficiency enabling activities by others, home visits to reduce plumbing losses, and the promotion of water saving devices

SEA Topic	Issues	Benefits/ Opportunities
Water	• -	Minimise water waste.
Population and Human Health	• -	• Increased awareness on water usage within the community.
Biodiversity, Flora and Fauna	• -	• -
Landscape	• -	• -
Historic Environment	• -	• -
Climate Factors	• -	• -
Air	• -	• -
Soil	• -	• -
Material Assets	 If minor upgrades needed, use of materials will be required. It is likely that energy use will increase during construction phase. 	Opportunity to implement sustainable design measures.

Table D.15: Other consumption reduction

D.16 Loss reduction

Involves measuring non-metering savings from leakages, either from network level/company side (capital works, operational) or customer side.

Table D.16: Loss reduction

SEA Topic	Issues	Benefits/ Opportunities
Water	• -	Minimise water waste.
Population and Human Health	• -	• Increased awareness on water usage within the community.

Biodiversity, Flora and Fauna	• -	• -
Landscape	• -	• -
Historic Environment	• -	• -
Climate Factors	• -	• -
Air	• -	• -
Soil	• -	• -
Material Assets	• If minor upgrades needed, use of materials will be required. It is likely that energy use will increase during construction phase.	Opportunity to implement sustainable design measures.

Assessment Scoring Criteria

SEA Objective	Datasets/Key Themes	Effect	Description	
 Biodiversity, Flora, Fauna: To protect and enhance biodiversity, ecological functions, capacity and habitat connectivity, including protecting designated sites and their qualifying features, priority species and priority habitats. To provide opportunities for habitat creation or restoration and deliver a net benefit / gain for biodiversity (BNG). To avoid introducing or spreading and, where feasible, manage invasive non-native species (INNS). 	 SPA SAC Ramsar site SSSIs MPA MCZ NNR LNR Priority habitats and species Non-designated sites Terrestrial, aquatic and marine habitats, species and protected sites Green networks and corridors (e.g. foraging areas and commuting routes, migration routes, hibernation areas etc. at all scales) LWS (where available) 		Major Positive	The option would result in a major enhancement on the quality of designated sites / habitats due to changes in flow or groundwater levels, water quality or habitat quality and availability. The option would result in a major increase in the population of a priority species. Effects could be caused by beneficial changes in water flows/water quality, or large amounts of creation or enhancement of habitat, promoting a major increase in ecosystem structure and function. The option would result in a major reduction or management of INNS.
			Moderate Positive	The option would result in a moderate enhancement on the quality of designated and/or non- designated sites / habitats due to changes in flow or groundwater levels, water quality or habitat creation and enhancement measures. The option would result in a moderate increase in the population of a priority species. Effects could be caused by beneficial changes in water flows/water quality, or moderate amounts of creation or enhancement of habitat, promoting a moderate increase in ecosystem structure and function. The option would result in a moderate reduction or management of INNS.
		en networks and dors (e.g. foraging s and commuting es, migration es, hibernation s etc. at all scales) s (where available)	Minor Positive	The option would result in a minor enhancement of the quality of designated and/or non-designated sites / habitats due to changes in flow or groundwater levels, water quality or habitat creation and enhancement measures. The option would result in a minor increase in the population of a priority species. Effects could be caused by beneficial changes in water flows/water quality, or small amounts of creation or enhancement of habitat, promoting a minor increase in ecosystem structure and function. The option would result in a minor reduction or management of INNS.
		0	Neutral	The option would not result in any effects on designated or non-designated sites including habitats and/or species). It will not have an effect on INNS.
		-	Minor Negative	The option would result in a minor negative effect on the quality of designated and/or non-designated sites / habitats due to changes in flow or groundwater levels, water quality or habitat loss or degradation. The option would result in a minor decrease in the population of a priority species. Effects could be caused by detrimental changes in flows/water quality, or small losses or degradation of habitat leading to a minor loss of ecosystem structure and function. The option would result in a minor increase or spread of INNS.

SEA Objective	Datasets/Key Themes	Effect	Description	
 To protect, conserve and enhance natural capital and the ecosystem services from natural capital to increase resilience to climate change. To meet WFD objectives relating to biodiversity. 		-	Moderate Negative	The option would result in a moderate negative effect on the quality of designated and/or non- designated sites / habitats due to changes in flow or groundwater levels, water quality or habitat loss or degradation. The option would result in a moderate decrease in the population of a priority species. Effects could be caused by detrimental changes in flows/water quality, or moderate loss or degradation of habitat leading to a moderate loss of ecosystem structure and function. The options would result in a moderate increase or spread of INNS.
			Major Negative	The option would result in a major negative effect on the quality of designated and/or non-designated sites / habitats due to changes in flow or groundwater levels, water quality or habitat loss or degradation. The option would result in a major decrease in the population of a priority species. Effects could be caused by detrimental changes in flows/water quality, or large losses or degradation of habitat leading to a major loss of ecosystem structure and function. The option would result in a major increase or spread of INNS.
		?	Uncertain	From the level of information available the effect that the option would have on this objective is uncertain
Soil: • To protect geological and geomorphological features, and the functionality and quality of soils, including the protection of high- grade agricultural land.	 Agricultural Land Classification Landfill sites – authorised and historic Mineral & Waste allocations (where available) 	+++	Major Positive	The option would result in a major enhancement on the quality of soils through the implementation of catchment approaches, remediation or other measures.
		++	Moderate Positive	The option would result in a moderate enhancement on the quality of soils through the implementation of catchment approaches, remediation or other measures.
		+	Minor Positive	The option is located on a brownfield site and has no effect on soils or existing land use. The option results in the remediation of contaminated land.
		0	Neutral	The option would not result in any effects on soils or land use.
		-	Minor Negative	The option is not located on a brownfield site and/or results in a minor loss of best and most versatile agricultural land or is in conflict with existing land use. The option results in land contamination.
		-	Moderate Negative	The option will result in a moderate loss of best and most versatile agricultural land or is in substantial conflict with existing land use. The option is partially overlying mineral resources leading to partial mineral sterilisation.

SEA Objective	Datasets/Key Themes	Effect	Description	
			Major Negative	The option will result in a major loss of best and most versatile agricultural land or is in substantial conflict with existing land use. The option results in land contamination. The option is directly overlying mineral resources leading to mineral sterilisation.
		?	Uncertain	From the level of information available the effect that the option would have on this objective is uncertain
Water: • To reduce or manage flood risk, taking climate	 ater: To reduce or manage flood risk, Environment Agency Flood Defences Environment Agency Main Rivers 	+++	Major Positive	The option results in addressing failure of WFD Good Ecological Status / Good Ecological Potential. The option would result in a major improvement to flood risk. The option would result in a major improvements in water efficiency, reduces demand and improves resilience.
 Flood Z Flood Z Surface To enhance or maintain the quality of surface and groundwater To enhance or waterbodies. Bathing desal of 	 Flood Zones 2 and 3 Surface Water Features WFD River Waterbody Catchments WFD River Waterbodies Cycle 2 Bathing Waters (for desal options) 	Flood Zones 2 and 3 Surface Water Features WFD River Waterbody Catchments WFD River Waterbodies Cycle 2 Bathing Waters (for desal options)	Moderate Positive	The option achieves savings through demand management and does not require abstraction to achieve yield. The option contributes to addressing failure of WFD Good Ecological Status / Good Ecological Potential. The option would result in a moderate improvement to flood risk. The option would result in a moderate improvements in water efficiency, reduces demand and improves resilience.
 maintain surface water flows and quantity and groundwater resources. To meet WFD 	 Shellfish Waters (desal options) Source Protection Zones WFD Groundwater bodies 	÷	Minor Positive	The option achieves savings through demand management and does not require abstraction to achieve yield. The option would result in a minor improvement to flood risk. The option would result in a minor improvements in water efficiency, reduces demand and improves resilience.
objectives and support the		0	Neutral	The option would have no discernible effect on river flows or surface/coastal water quality or on groundwater quality or levels. The option would not have an effect on or be affected by flood risk.
 achievement of environmental objectives set out in River Basin Management Plans. To increase water efficiency and increase 		Minor Negative	The option would result in minor decreases in river flows. River and/or coastal water quality may be affected and lead to short term or intermittent effects on receptors (e.g. designated habitats, protected species or recreational users of rivers and the coastline) that could not be avoided but could be mitigated. The option would result in minor decreases in groundwater quality or levels. The option is located in Flood Zone 2. The option would result in minor decreases in water efficiency, increases demand and reduces resilience.	

SEA C	bjective	Datasets/Key Themes	Effect	Description	
resilience of water supplies and natural systems to droughts.		-	Moderate Negative	The option would result in moderate decreases in river flows. River and/or coastal water quality may be affected and lead to long term or continuous effects on receptors (e.g. designated habitats, protected species or recreational users of rivers and the coastline) that could not reasonably be mitigated. The option results in the likely deterioration of WFD classification. The option would result in moderate decreases in groundwater quality or levels. The option is located in Flood Zone 3. The option would result in moderate decreases in water efficiency, increases demand and reduces resilience.	
			Major Negative	The option would result in major decreases in river flows. River and/or coastal water quality may be affected and lead to long term or continuous effects on receptors (e.g. designated habitats, protected species or recreational users of rivers and the coastline) that could not reasonably be mitigated. The option results in the deterioration of WFD classification. The option would result in major decreases in groundwater quality or levels. The option is located in Flood Zone 2 or 3 and further contributes to flood risk. The option would result in major decreases in water efficiency, increases demand and reduces resilience.	
		?	Uncertain	From the level of information available the effect that the option would have on this objective is uncertain.	
Air:		Air Quality Management Zones	+++	Major Positive	The option would result in a major enhancement of the air quality within one or more AQMAs.
•	• To reduce and minimise air	 Air quality monitoring sites 	++	Moderate Positive	The option would result in a moderate enhancement of the air quality within one or more AQMAs.
	construction and		+	Minor Positive	The option would result in an enhancement of the air quality.
	operation.		0	Neutral	The option would not result in any effects on Air Quality and AQMAs.
		-	Minor Negative	The option would result in a decrease of the air quality.	
			Moderate Negative	The option would result in a decrease of the air quality within one or more AQMAs.	
			Major Negative	The option would result in a major decrease in the air quality within one or more AQMAs.	
			?	Uncertain	From the level of information available the effect that the option would have on this objective is uncertain.

SEA Objective	Datasets/Key Themes	Effect	Description	
Climate Factors: • To minimise or reduce embodied and operational carbon and greenhouse gas emissions. • To introduce climate mitigation where required and improve the	Option Carbon data UKCP18 climate data Sea level rise projections	+++	Major Positive	The option will generate additional zero carbon energy that can be fed back into the grid The option will result in a major increase in carbon sequestration.
		++	Moderate Positive	The option will be carbon neutral The option will increase resilience/decrease vulnerability to climate change effects. The option will reduce operational carbon emissions by between 100 and 1,000 tonnes CO ₂ e/year. The option will result in a moderate increase in carbon sequestration.
		÷	Minor Positive	The option includes renewable energy sources that bring operational carbon to under 100 tonnes CO ₂ e/year The option will increase resilience/decrease vulnerability to climate change effects. The option will reduce operational carbon emissions by up to 100 CO ₂ e/year.
of assets and natural systems to		0	Neutral	The option would have no discernible effect on greenhouse gas emissions, nor would the option increase resilience/decrease vulnerability to climate change effects.
the threats of climate change.	-	-	Minor Negative	The option will have a minor impact on resilience/decrease vulnerability to climate change effects. The option will generate operational carbon emissions of between 100 and 1,000 tonnes CO ₂ e/year.
		-	Moderate Negative	The option will have a moderate impact on resilience/significantly decrease vulnerability to climate change effects. The option will generate operational carbon emissions of between 1,000 and 10,000 CO ₂ e/year. The option will result in a moderate release of previously sequestered carbon.
			Major Negative	The option will have a major impact on resilience/significantly decrease vulnerability to climate change effects. The option will generate operational carbon emissions of more than 10,000 tonnes CO ₂ e/year. The option will result in a major release of previously sequestered carbon.
		?	Uncertain	From the level of information available the effect that the option would have on this objective is uncertain.
Landscape: • To conserve, protect and enhance landscape and townscape	 Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty National Character Areas Green Belt land National Park 	+++	Major Positive	The option would have a major positive contribution to designated landscape (AONB or National Park) management plan objectives The option results in new, above ground infrastructure that significantly enhances the local landscape, townscape or seascape.
		++	Moderate Positive	The option would have a moderate positive contribution to designated landscape management plan objectives

SEA Objective	Datasets/Key Themes	Effect	Description	
character and visual amenity.				The option results in new, above ground infrastructure that has a moderate positive effect on the local landscape, townscape or seascape.
		+	Minor Positive	The option results in new, above ground infrastructure that has a minor positive effect on the local landscape, townscape or seascape.
		0	Neutral	The option would not result in any effects on the local landscape, townscape or seascape.
		-	Minor Negative	The option results in new, above ground infrastructure that has a minor negative effect on the local landscape, townscape or seascape.
		-	Moderate Negative	The option would have a moderate negative effect on a designated landscape or feature (i.e. significant visually intrusive infrastructure) whose effects could not be reasonably mitigated. The option results in new, above ground infrastructure that has a moderate negative effect on the local landscape, townscape or seascape.
			Major Negative	The option would have a negative effect on a designated landscape or feature (i.e. significant visually intrusive infrastructure) whose effects could not be reasonably mitigated. The option results in new, above ground infrastructure that has a major negative effect on the local landscape, townscape or seascape.
		?	Uncertain	From the level of information available the effect that the option would have on this objective is uncertain.
 To conserve, protect and enhance the historic environment and heritage assets, and their settings, including archaeologically important sites. 	 Listed buildings: Grade I listed structures Grade II* listed structures Grade II listed structures Registered Parks and Gardens: Grade I Registered Parks and Gardens Grade II* Registered Parks and Gardens Grade II Registered Parks and Gardens Grade II Registered Parks and Gardens Protected Wreck 			The option will result in enhancements to designated heritage assets and/or their setting, fully realising the significance and value of the asset, such as:
		+++	Major Positive	 Securing repairs or improvements to heritage assets, especially those identified in the Historic England Buildings/Monuments at Risk Register; Improving interpretation and public access to important heritage assets.
		++	Moderate Positive	The option will result in enhancements to designated heritage assets and/or their setting. Improving interpretation and public access to important heritage assets.
		+	Minor Positive	The option will result in enhancements to non-designated heritage assets and/or their setting.
		0	Neutral	The option will have no effect on cultural heritage assets or archaeology.
		_	Minor	The option will result in the loss of significance of undesignated heritage assets and/or their setting, notwithstanding remedial recording of any elements affected.
			Negative	There will be limited damage to known, undesignated archaeology important sites with a consequent loss of significance only partly mitigated by archaeological investigation.

SEA Objective	Datasets/Key Themes	Effect	Description	
	 Registered Battlefields Scheduled Monuments Conservation Areas World Heritage Sites 	-	Moderate Negative	The option will result in the loss of significance of undesignated heritage assets and/or their setting, notwithstanding remedial recording of any elements affected. The option will diminish of significance of designated heritage assets and/or their setting, notwithstanding remedial recording of any elements affected.
			Major Negative	 The option will diminish the significance of designated heritage assets and/or their setting such as: Demolition or further deterioration in the condition of designated heritage assets especially those identified in the Historic England Buildings/Monuments at Risk Register. Loss of public access to important heritage assets and lack of appropriate interpretation. There will be major damage to known, designated archaeology important sites with a consequent loss of significance only partly mitigated by archaeological investigation.
		?	Uncertain	From the level of information available the effect that the option would have on this objective is uncertain.
 Population, Human Health To maintain and enhance the health and wellbeing of the local community, including economic and social wellbeing. To secure resilient, high quality, sustainable and affordable water supplies over the long term for the health and wellbeing of the community. To increase access and connect customers to the 	 Noise action important area Indices of Multiple Deprivation 2015 Functional site: Schools Medical facilities OS Greenspace dataset: Allotments Bowling green Cemetery Golf course Sports facility Play space Playing field Public park or garden Religious grounds Tennis courts Natural England - Country Parks National Parks 	+++	Major Positive	The option leads to major positive effect on the health of local communities and will ensure that surface water and bathing water quality is maintained within statutory limits. The option creates new, and significantly enhances existing, recreational facilities, publicly accessible greenspace and/or tourism within the operational area.
		++	Moderate Positive	The option leads to positive effect on the health of local communities and will ensure that surface water and bathing water quality is maintained within statutory limits. The option enhances existing, recreational facilities, publicly accessible greenspace and/or tourism within the operational area
		- Allotments - Bowling green + - Cemetery	Minor Positive	The option has a temporary positive effect on the health of local communities and will ensure that surface water and bathing water quality is maintained within statutory limits
		0	Neutral	The option would not result in any effects on human health and existing recreational facilities and/or tourism.
		-	Minor Negative	The option has a temporary effect on human health (e.g. noise or air quality). The option reduces the availability and quality of existing recreational facilities and/or tourism within the operational area.
		-	Moderate Negative	The option results in the permanent removal of existing recreational facilities, publicly accessible greenspace and/or tourism within the operational area
			Major Negative	The option has a significant long-term effect on human health (e.g. noise or air quality). The option results in the removal of existing recreational facilities, publicly accessible greenspace and/or tourism within the operational area.

SEA Objective	Datasets/Key Themes	Effect	Description	
natural environment, provide education or information resources for the public. • To maintain and enhance the water environment for other users including recreation, tourism and navigation.	 Section 15 open access areas CRoW S4 Conclusive Registered Common Land 	?	Uncertain	From the level of information available the effect that the option would have on this objective is uncertain.
Material Assets To reduce, and make more efficient, the 	 Housing allocations (where available) Transport: Major roads – A 	+++	Major Positive	The option will re-use or recycle substantial quantities of waste materials and any new infrastructure will incorporate substantial sustainable design measures and materials. There will be no increase in energy consumption or energy will be from 100% renewable sources. The option improves national cycle routes or national trails.
 consumption of resources, and minimise the generation of waste. Avoid negative effects on built assets and infrastructure. 	roads - Major roads motorway - Railway line - National cycle route - National trails	++	Moderate Positive	The option will re-use or recycle moderate quantities of waste materials and any new infrastructure will incorporate some sustainable design measures and materials. There will be no increase in energy consumption or energy will be from 90% renewable sources. The option improves national cycle routes or national trails.
		 National trails + 	Minor Positive	The option will re-use or recycle a limited quantity of waste materials and any new infrastructure will incorporate some limited sustainable design measures and materials. There will be no increase in energy consumption or energy will be from 80% renewable sources. The option improves national cycle routes or national trails.
		0	Neutral	The option would not result in any effects on material assets.
		-	Minor Negative	The option will require new infrastructure with only limited opportunities for the re-use or recycling of waste materials. There are limited opportunities for sustainable design or the use of sustainable materials. The option results in a minor increase in energy consumption with no renewable energy options. The option results in a minor disruption on built assets and infrastructure, including transport.
		-	Moderate Negative	The option will require new infrastructure with only limited opportunities for the re-use or recycling of waste materials. The option results in a moderate increase in energy consumption with no renewable energy options.

SEA Objective	Datasets/Key Themes	Effect	Description	
				The option results in a moderate disruption on built assets and infrastructure, including transport links.
			Major Negative	The option will require significant new infrastructure that cannot be provided through the re-use or recycling of waste materials. There are no opportunities for sustainable design or the use of sustainable materials. The option results in a major increase in energy consumption with no renewable energy options. The option results in a major distribution on built assets and infrastructure, including transport links.
		?	Uncertain	From the level of information available the effect that the option would have on this objective is uncertain.



mottmac.com